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Results E45 For the year ended 31 March
BZ3B831ALEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
(Restated) Change
(B E7) e )
Continuing operations BEREXEK
Revenue (HK$'000) EERRB(TET) 86,762 323,390 (73.2)%
Gross profit (HK$'000) ER(FET) 58,985 147,594 (60.0)%
Gross profit margin SRR 68.0% 45.6% 22.4%
Profit for the year attributable KARIEB AEG
to owners of the Company NEEm N (FET)
(HK$'000) 10,905 957066 (98.9)%
Discontinued operation ERIERLEEK
Revenue (HK$'000) EERB(FET) 15,912 27394 (41.9)%
Profit for the year attributable KARIEB AEG
to owners of the Company NEEm N (FET)
(HK$'000) 2,375 22,371 (89.4)%
Continuing and discontinued FERCKILEEETE
operations
Basic/Diluted earnings per share & J& & 7K 7 # 58 2 A
(HK$) (&) 0.18 12.46 (98.6)%
Assets and Liabilities EEREE As at 31 March
R3A31H
2023 2022 Change
20234 20224 23
Total assets (HK$'000) BEE(FET) 9,188,964 8,919,158 3.0%
Total liabilities (HK$'000) waE(FET) 4,196,579 3,981,641 5.4%
Net asset value (HK$'000) BEFE(FET) 4,992,385 4,937517 11%
Net asset value per share (HK$) SR &EEFEGET) 67.5 66.7 1.2%
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Net Assets & Net Asset Value per share Profit (Loss) attributable to shareholders of the Company
EEFEREBREERE APERRELMAFEREN(BE)
(HK$ million & & & ) (HK$ million & & & 7T)

HKS66.7 HK$67.5

979
HK$38.8  p{is3sa  HK$39.3

4937 4992
3,547
3,235 3,230
316
22 13
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
=== Net Asset Value per share (HK$) B EEFE (1)
(298)
Financial ratio B At & As at 31 March
M3H31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
Gearing Ratio Nete BEAFBL R 0.71 0.72
Current Ratio MEN L = 3.0 3.8
Note: B2

The gearing ratio is calculated as a ratio of total bank borrowings to total BE BB REFTEE LB ERLBE A
equity. @leg ©
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Dear Shareholders,

Easyknit International Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”) is committed to
strategically investing in and developing quality properties, continue
to pursue new long-term growth opportunities to strengthen its
income base and to delivering attractive and sustainable returns to
its shareholders.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (the “Year"”), the Group's
revenue from continuing operations amounted to approximately
HK$86,762,000 as compared with the year ended 31 March
2022 (the “Previous Year") of approximately HK$323,390,000,
which represented a decrease of approximately HK$236,628,000.
For the Year, the Group's revenue from discontinued operation
amounted to approximately HK$15,912,000 as compared with
the Previous Year of approximately HK$27,394,000, which
represented a decrease of approximately HK$11,482,000.
For the Year, the Group’'s consolidated profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) was
approximately HK$29,943,000 as compared with the Previous
Year of HK$1,009,500,000. The basic and diluted earnings per
share from continuing and discontinued operations amounted to
HK$0.18 for the Year, as compared with HK$12.46 for the Previous
Year. The decrease in net profit was maigly attributable to, among
other things, (i) the absence of a one-of on bargain purchase
on acquisition of Eminence Enterprise “"Eminence”, a
51.60%-owned listed subsidiary of th stock code:
616) (2022: a one-off gain of approxi
and offset by loss on remeasurement
approximately HK$656,380,000); and (
from discontinued operation was appr
(2022: approximately HK$29,924,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW »

The property market in Hon
epidemic over the past t
prevention measure
turning point to stre
Hong Kong.

Property Sales

During the year unde
development project “
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B12.468 T o FRABIHEIZRARE:
(W TEKEsLCEERAR(EWL]D (K
NEEBBI60% RN ETHEBAR - I
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£ — Rk 25 491,676,151,0007% 7T - I 4
EMrE = L = R B B £656,380,000
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Property Investment

During the year under review, contribution from property rental
recorded a decrease as compared with the last corresponding
year, mainly attributable to certain properties held for development
were demolished for redevelopment and decreased in market
rent. Despite of negative impact of the COVID-19 Omicron
variant on the Group's property investment business, while
the overall occupancy remained satisfactory. During the Year,
Eminence through its wholly-owned subsidiary entered into a land
resumption agreement with Huzhou City Government in October
2022 which the Huzhou Government shall resume, and Eminence
shall surrender the investment properties located in Huzhou,
Zhejiang Province, The People’'s Republic of China (the "PRC")
that released and terminated of existing tenancies of the Huzhou
properties, and, completion of disposal of a residential property
in Singapore in December 2022. The disposals allowed the Group
to realise a gain and reallocate its capital to other investment
opportunities. The Group will constantly review and optimise its
tenant mix in order to strengthen recurring income.

Land Bank

As at 31 March 2023, the Group's attributable land bank in Hong
Kong with gross site area of amounted to approximately 39,300
square feet and all are under development, an overwhelming
majority of which are for sale purpose. The Group will continue to
replenish of its land bank when suitable opportunities arise.

OUTLOOK

After a three-year-long social distancing measures and quarantine
requirements to prevent the spread of COVID-19, the HKSAR
government has announced massive relaxations in the local
anti-epidemic measures since December 2022. All aspects
of social life have begun to return to normal and the demands
previously suppressed by the pandemic have been gradually
released in Hong Kong.

The relaxation is expected to revive the growth momentum of
Hong Kong in 2023 which enable more opportunities for economic
activities. In addition, Hong Kong is lowering the stamp duty for
first-time buyers for their residential properties in February 2023
which would help increase the willingness of first-time buyers and
believe would stimulate sales to the Group’s residential project
at Waterloo Road to be launched in the second half of 2023 and
the sales of remaining units in “Ayton”. However, the property
market has been under pressure due to interest rate hikes,
housing policies and interest rate movements will continue to be
determining factors.
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The re-opening of mainland China’s borders and the relaxation
measures have positively affected Hong Kong’'s economy, of
which the retail property is leading the way. It is expected to see
an increase over time in companies from mainland China and other
countries continuing to grow their operations or opening new
offices in Hong Kong. Leasing demand is expected to increase
which will strengthen commercial and office rents.

Looking ahead, risks and opportunities coexist. The opening of
the borders and the relaxation of anti-epidemic measures provide
an opportunity for an economic turnaround. However, there will
be different uncertainties from external factors include continued
geopolitical tension and tighter monetary policies from central
banks around the world to tame inflation. We will continue to
monitor the market conditions, and capture business opportunities
to enhance the performance of the Group, thereby delivering
long-term value and sustainable returns to our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

Facing a competitive and challenging environment, on behalf
of the board of directors of the Company (the “Board” or the
“Directors”), | would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere gratitude to all staff members for their dedication, hard
work and efforts in tackling the many tough challenges this year,
which help to maintain the Group’s effective operations. | would
also like to express my gratitude to our Directors for their guidance
and all our shareholders and customers for their continued support.

Koon Ho Yan Candy
President
Hong Kong, 28 June 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW

The Group was principally engaged in property development,
property investment, investment in securities and others and loan
financing businesses which property development and property
investment are the core businesses of the Group.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the Year, the Group's revenue from continuing operations
amounted to approximately HK$86,762,000 as compared with
the Previous Year of approximately HK$323,390,000, which
represented a decrease of approximately HK$236,628,000
or approximately 73.2%. This year's gross profit margin was
approximately 68.0% (2022: approximately 45.6%). For the Year,
the Group’s revenue from discontinued operation amounted to
approximately HK$15,912,000 as compared with the Previous Year
of approximately HK$27,394,000, which represented a decrease
of approximately HK$11,482,000 or approximately 41.9%.

For the Year, the Group’s consolidated profit attributable to
Shareholders was approximately HK$29,943,000 as compared
with the Previous Year of HK$1,009,500,000. The consolidated
profit from continuing operations for the Year was approximately
HK$25,341,000 as compared with the Previous Year of
approximately HK$979,576,000. The decrease in net profit was
mainly attributable to, among other things, (i) the absence of a
one-off gain on bargain purchase on acquisition of Eminence (2022:
a one-off gain of approximately HK$1,676,151,000 and offset by
loss on remeasurement of interest in Eminence of approximately
HK$656,380,000); and (i) the consolidated profit from discontinued
operation was approximately HK$4,602,000, as compared with
the Previous Year of approximately HK$29,924,000.

The basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing and
discontinued operations amounted to HK$0.18 for the Year, as
compared with HK$12.46 for the Previous Year.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the Year (2022: nil).

BEEENmR D

BmE

AEEXIZREDEER DEERE &
FREMBERENRERBERL  EHY
RERIDERERAEBENZLER °

b

AFEE AEEBRAFELCEEBNE
¥ 54 A86,762,0008 T MEFENAE
323,390,0005% 7T * Bk 2 49236,628,0007
TLEkH)73.2% © NEE K EF L4 £68.0%
(2022F : 4)45.6%) - A FE  NEBE KB
ERIEREEBHNEETEL R15,912,000%
JT 0 M EFE 4 7527,394,0008 7T ¢ B4
11,482,000/8 7T 3 £J41.9% °

AEE BREELAEEZREENNA
29,943,000/ 7T * i1 £ 4F € £1,009,500,000
BIL-AFE  REBELEEBNES
i F 4 525,341,000 0 MEFEHNA
979,576,000 7T ° FHm M O B E Z R
BEOVITEKESLUN —AEHEERE
Wz (20224« — R M UL %= #491,676,151,000
B UWHEFTESLEZTNEBEEY
656,380,000/ T AT 8H) - KRB B &1k
1 TSR AR T 49 /54,602,000 7T ¢
i FE %) /429,924,000% 7T °

REAFE REBBENMDRIEEEELRD
BEREARBERNB0ISE L EFE
Bl &12.467 7T °

REAKRE

EEeTRBRNAFERAKE (20225 ¢
&) e
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of each business segment of the Group is set out
below.

Property Development

Revenue from continuing operations recognised in this
business segment during the Year amounted to approximately
HK$28,647,000 (2022: HK$248,576,000). Review on existing
major projects of the Group is set out below:

Project Waterloo Road

A wholly-owned property development project of the Group
located at Nos. 93, 93A, 95 and 95A Waterloo Road, Kowloon,
Hong Kong will launch sales in third to fourth quarter of 2023.

This project is developed into a luxurious residential
accommodation with club house facilities and car parks. This
project offers a total of 56 units comprises diversified unit layouts
including special units, duplex units and studio flats to 4-bedroom
flats.

Project Chatham Road North

The Group, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, owns the site
located at Nos. 470, 472, 474, 476 and 478 Chatham Road North,
Kowloon, Hong Kong with a total site area of approximately 4,653
square feet (“Chatham Road North Project”).

The Chatham Road North Project will be redeveloped into a
composite building with residential and commercial use. The
estimated gross floor area after redevelopment is expected to be
approximately 41,747 square feet. The superstructure works are
currently undergoing at the site. This project is expected to be
completed in late 2024.

10
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Inverness Road Property — “Ayton”

“Ayton” is a completed residential project located at Nos. 14-20
Inverness Road, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong developed
and wholly-owned by the Group. It consists of two 8-storey
residential blocks comprising 60 residential units, 29 car parking
spaces and 3 motor parking spaces.

As at the date of this report, 34 units and 2 carparks released
were sold and the aggregate contracted sales amounted to
approximately HK$552,542,000. During the Year, 2 units among
the transactions have been completed (2022: 9 units and 2
carparks) and a revenue of approximately HK$28,647,000 (2022:
HK$248,576,000) has been recorded for sale of properties.

Property Investment

As at 31 March 2023, the Group's portfolio of investment
properties comprised of residential, commercial and industrial units
located in Hong Kong, the PRC and Singapore.

For the Year, the rental income of the Group from continuing
operations was approximately HK$43,255,000 (2022:
approximately HK$57,073,000), representing a decrease of
approximately 24.2% For the Year, the rental income of the Group
from discontinued operation was approximately HK$4,602,000
(2022: approximately HK$8,210,000), representing a decrease
of approximately 43.9%). The decrease in rental income was
primarily attributable to certain properties held for development
were demolished for redevelopment as well as decrease in market
rent.

As at 31 March 2023, the occupancy rate of residential units,
commercial units and industrial units of the Group’s investment
properties were 100.0%, 99.2% and 90.6% (2022: 100.0%,
99.2% and 97.6%) respectively. A gain on changes in fair value of
investment properties from continuing operations of approximately
HK$191,361,000 (2022: approximately HK$22,198,000) was
recognised during the Year. The segment reported a gain from
continuing operations of approximately HK$190,515,000 for
the Year (2022: approximately HK$49,157,000), representing
an increase of approximately HK$141,358,000 compared to the
Previous Year.

1
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Land resumption in the PRC by subsidiary of Eminence

On 5 October 2022, a land resumption agreement was entered into
between the People’s Government of Zhili Town, Wuxing District,
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC (“Huzhou Government”,
its own and its ultimate beneficial owners are independent third
parties), and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Eminence, pursuant to
which, among other things, the Huzhou Government shall resume,
and the Eminence subsidiary shall surrender, an industrial complex
in Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC with the compensation
amount of RMB386,982,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$439,752,000). An exemption has been granted by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) that the
entering into the land resumption agreement does not constitute a
transaction for the Company and Eminence, details of which were
set out in the announcement jointly published by the Company and
Eminence dated 5 October 2022.

Disposal of property in Singapore by subsidiary of
Eminence

On 4 November 2022, the purchasers, independent third parties,
accepted and exercised the option granted by Grow Well Profits
Limited ("Grow Well”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Eminence
and a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) as vendor,
to purchase a residential apartment in Singapore at S$12,500,000
(equivalently to approximately HK$68,150,000). The disposal
constitutes a discloseable transaction for the Company and a major
transaction for Eminence under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), details
of which were set out in the announcement jointly published by
the Company and Eminence dated 4 November 2022 and the
circular of Eminence dated 25 November 2022. The disposal
was completed on 16 December 2022. A gain of S$1,190,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$6,545,000) was recognised on
the disposal of this property.
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Very Substantial Disposal of investment properties to
Eminence Group

On 30 November 2022, the seller (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) entered into four (4) sale and purchase agreements
(collectively the “Sale and Purchase Agreements”) with
Eminence pursuant to which, amongst other things (i) the seller
agreed to sell, and Eminence agreed to acquire, the entire issued
share capital of four (4) indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company (the “Sale Companies”); and (ii) the seller agreed to
procure the assignment of the shareholders’ loans owning by each
of the Sale Companies to the Group to Eminence or its nominee,
at an aggregate consideration of HK$340,000,000 less a sum
equal to the amount of two bank loans owing to a bank by the
Group outstanding at the completion date. The sole material asset
of each of the Sale Companies is a separate commercial property
in Hong Kong.

The net purchase price of HK$214,000,000 shall be settled by (i)
cash in the sum of HK$5,000,000 in aggregate and (ii) a 5% per
annum coupon rate convertible note issued by Eminence in the
principal amount of HK$209,000,000 conferring rights to convert
at any time before the fifth (5th) anniversary of the issue thereof
the principal amount into Eminence shares on the basis of an initial
conversion price of HK$0.106 per conversion share (subject to
adjustments) (the “2023 CN").

The Sale and Purchase Agreements and the transactions
contemplated thereunder were approved at separate special
general meetings by the Shareholders and by the Eminence
independent shareholders both held on 15 February 2023
respectively. The completion took place on 20 February 2023.

Details of the transactions were set out in (i) the announcements
dated 14 December 2022 and 20 February 2023 and circular dated
21 January 2023 jointly published by the Company and Eminence;
and (ii) the announcement of poll results of the special general
meeting of the Company dated 15 February 2023.

Investment in Securities and Others

The Group invested in a diversified portfolio of investments
including listed and unlisted equity securities, equity-linked notes,
bonds and other investment products based on (i) potential return
on investment in terms of capital appreciation and dividend
payment for the targeted holding period; (ii) risks exposure in
comparison with the Group's risk tolerance level at the prevailing
time; and (iii) diversification of the existing investment portfolio.
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As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss amounted to approximately HK$191,160,000
(2022: approximately HK$405,674,000). There were no
investments held by the Group of which value was more than
5% of the total assets of the Group. The Group recorded a loss
in the securities investment segment from continuing operations
of approximately HK$71,940,000 during the Year (2022:
approximately HK$72,253,000).

As at 31 March 2023, details of the Group's financial assets are set
out as follows:

M2023F3A31H  AEBMIR A FEFA
B2 RVEE 4 /5191,160,00078 T (2022
1 #9405,674,00058 L) o A £ B I K #F
BHAEBREEBBINIEE - A&
EAFERABECEEBENELSERED
#B &% 15 /B5 18 £971,940,00078 JT (20224 : 49
72,253,000 L) °

R2023F3A31MH  AEBNEMEEFB
s

As at 31 March 2023 For the Year
R2023453A31H KEE
Approximate
percentage Dividend/
Numberof  Investment to Group's Interest Fair value Realised
Nature of investments shares held Cost Fairvalue total assets income  gain/(loss) loss
A58
agEn AYE
fi BY B8/ k¥/ BB
REME Rt#E RERE AYE Bl HEHA (B%) iz
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T T AT AT AT
Equity Investments
RERE
Best Food Holding Company Limited
(stock code: 1488) 97254,000 81378 76,358 0.8% — (3.974) -
BRERERAR (RHRSE : 1488)
Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd.
(stock code: 2318) 733460 55,510 37443 0.4% 1,884 (3.37) -
HETRRR(EE)RHERA(RARE: 2318)
Others N/A 18,698 13,829 0.2% 7159 9,919 (40,923)
Hep rER
Investment in limited partnership N/A 28230 28230 0.3% — — -
REERABLE AER
Others N/A 89,880 35,300 0.4% 5,079 (1.832) (12,774)
i rER
Total: 219,69 191,160 21% 14,122 739 (63,697)
st
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Loan Financing

The loan financing business of the Group is operated by Planetic
International Limited (“Planetic”, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) and City China International Limited (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Eminence and a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company), which are both a licensed money lender carrying
on business under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163
of the Laws of Hong Kong). For the Year, the Group recorded an
interest income from the loan financing business from continuing
operations amounted to approximately HK$13,224,000 (2022:
approximately HK$16,085,000), while the interest income from
the loan financing from discontinued operation amounted to
approximately HK$503,000 (2022: approximately HK$1,177,000).
The decrease in interest income was primarily due to decrease in
loans receivable balance of borrowings. Loss derived from loan
financing business from continuing operations was approximately
HK$12,302,000 for the Year (2022: gain of approximately
HK$8,845,000).

The target customer groups of the business are individuals and
corporate entities that have short-term funding needs and could
provide sufficient collaterals for their borrowings. The Group's
clientele is primarily acquired through business referrals and
introductions from the Company’s directors, senior management,
business partners or clients.

As at 31 March 2023, the gross carrying amount of loans receivable
amounting to HK$300,807,000 (2022: HK$345,332,000) of which
39% (2022: 45%) were secured by marketable securities with fair
values of HK$35,670,000 (2022: HK$36,900,000) or properties
with fair values of HK$98,245,000 (2022: HK$251,707,000) or
guaranteed money of nil (2022: HK$10,000,000). The Group is not
permitted to sell or repledge the collaterals, if any, in the absence
of default by the borrower. In addition, the gross carrying amount
of unsecured loans receivable amounting to HK$57,309,000
(2022: HK$60,158,000) are with personal guarantees. The largest
borrower of the Group by itself and together with the other four
largest borrowers of the Group accounted for approximately 26%
and 52% respectively (2022: 20% and 56% respectively) of the
Group's loans receivable as at 31 March 2023.
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During the Year, the range of interest rate on the Group's fixed-rate
loans receivable was 0% to 16% (2022: 2.3% to 16%) per annum
and the range of interest rate on the Group's variable-rate loans
receivable was prime rate less 1% to prime rate (2022: prime rate
less 1% to prime rate) per annum.

The Group has credit policies, guidelines and procedures in place
which cover key internal controls of a loan transaction including due
diligence, credit appraisal, proper execution of documentations,
continuous monitoring and collection and recovery. The due
diligence procedures included conducting research on the
borrowers' background, evaluating its current business operations
and financial conditions, market reputation and creditability,
and conducting financial analysis and recoverability analysis. To
minimise credit or investment risks, the Group will typically require
guarantees, including collaterals with expected realised value
exceeding the loan or investment amount, post-dated cheques,
and/or personal guarantees and corporate guarantees.

The Group generally provides short-term loans of maturity of not
more than two (2) years. The repayment terms and conditions
are determined from the factors including the liquidity needs of
the borrowers, the Group's funding and cash flows management
strategies, and the terms and rates of the prevailing market.

After drawdown of loan, the loan agreement will be filed with the
loan documents properly. The Group maintains regular contact
with the borrowers and carries out periodical review to assess the
recovery of the loan based on the business development, financial
status, repayment ability including such as recent settlement
record and any litigations and bankruptcy orders against borrowers.
The Group will take all necessary legal actions against the relevant
clients to follow up the settlement of the outstanding loans.
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The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss ("ECL") model on loans receivable which are subject
to impairment assessment under Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 9 “Financial Instruments”. The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In particular, the following information is being
considered when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the loans
receivable’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit
risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the borrower;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the borrower’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the borrower;

— an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environments of
the borrower that results in a significant decrease in the
borrower’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

During the Year, the impairment loss recognised in profit or loss

amounted to HK$11,562,000 (2022: HK$27,224,000) in its loan
financing business.
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Included in the gross amount of loans receivable are
HK$83,854,000 (2022: HK$86,702,000), net of accumulated
impairment allowances of HK$83,854,000 (2022: HK$70,702,000)
due from a group of borrowers including an individual (the
“Borrower”) with gross amount of HK$32,397,000 (2022:
HK$32,397,000) and other individuals (with personal guarantee
from that Borrower) with gross amount of HK$51,457,000 (2022:
HK$54,305,000). In prior years, the management assessed, taking
into account the relevant information from public domain, such
balances became credit-impaired and has taken various actions
to recover the balances. The management has requested the
borrowers to make settlement of the loans and total settlements of
HK$49,474,000 were received from the borrowers by way of cash
or properties during the Previous Year. During the Previous Year,
no allowance for impairment was made for a loan receivable newly
granted with gross amount of HK$16,000,000 since the value
of pledged asset is higher than the value of amount borrowed.
During the Year, there is a negotiation between the Borrower and
the Group on settlements which consist of (i) a change in the
pledged asset and (ii) the Borrower’s commitment on pursuing
the repayment of certain other borrowers’ credit-impaired loans.
Subsequently, during the Year, HK$6,799,000 was received. As
the pledged asset has been multiple-mortgaged, an impairment
loss of HK$16,000,000 was provided.

Below were the disclosable transactions of the Group on loan
financing business during the Year:

Extensions of financial assistance to Supreme Sino

On 13 September 2021, Planetic as lender entered into a loan
agreement with Supreme Sino Holdings Limited (“Supreme
Sino”) as borrower (a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability), pursuant to which Planetic had agreed to provide
a loan in a principal amount of HK$8,500,000 to Supreme Sino for
a term of 3 months at an interest rate of 3% per annum (the “SS
Loan 1”).
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On 12 November 2021, Planetic entered into another loan
agreement with Supreme Sino, pursuant to which Planetic
had agreed to provide a loan in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$50,000,000 to Supreme Sino (comprising the principal
and accrued interest of SS Loan |) for a term of 6 months at an
interest rate of 9% per annum (the “SS Loan IlI"). The SS Loan
II'is secured by a share charge over the then entire issued share
capital of Supreme Sino, a first legal charge over all the title,
rights and interest in commercial properties located in Mongkok,
Kowloon, Hong Kong (with the then market value of approximately
HK$91,000,000) owned by Supreme Sino and a personal
guarantee by the sole director and the sole shareholder of the
wholly-owned beneficial owner of Supreme Sino. On 11 May 2022,
the parties entered into a supplemental loan agreement to extend
the repayment date of the SS Loan Il to 29 December 2022 at the
same interest rate. On 30 December 2022, the parties entered into
a supplemental loan agreement to further extend the repayment
date of the SS Loan Il to 29 December 2023 at an interest rate of
12% per annum.

The provision and the extension of the SS Loan Il constitute
discloseable transaction under the Listing Rules for the Company,
details of which were set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 12 November 2021, 11 May 2022 and 30
December 2022 respectively.

LISTED SUBSIDIARY

Eminence, the major listed subsidiary of the Company, and its
subsidiaries (collectively the "Eminence Group”), is engaged
in property development, property investment comprising the
ownership and rental of investment properties, investment in
securities and others and loan financing businesses.

Investment in Eminence Shares

As at 1 April 2022, the Group, through Ace Winner Investment
Limited, Landmark Profits Limited and Goodco Development
Limited (“Goodco") (all of which were wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company), held an aggregate of 696,370,840 shares of
Eminence, representing approximately 74.76% of the then total
issued share capital of Eminence.
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(a)

(b)

Eminence Placing completed in April 2022

On 20 April 2022, Eminence completed a placing of a total
of 186,280,000 Eminence shares at the placing price of
HK$0.10 per placing share to not less than six (6) allottees
who and whose beneficial owners are independent third
parties (the "Eminence Placing |”). For more details, please
refer to the announcements of Eminence dated 30 March
2022 and 20 April 2022 respectively.

Immediately upon the completion of the Eminence Placing |,
the shareholding percentage of the Group in Eminence was
decreased from 74.76% t0 62.30%.

Adjustment of conversion price and exercise of
Eminence Convertible Notes

As at 1 April 2022, the total outstanding principal amount
of convertible notes held by Goodco was HK$97,280,000
which entitled Goodco to convert into a total of 389,120,000

(a)

(b)

R2022F 48 TR 5 LU B &

R2022F 48208 ;=K BRDR
NEeBERAFEAREE=ES
ANEBYE =) REEEEREE
% 70.107% T B2 & & $£186,280,0004%
sLBEA(ELUERED - E@EE %F
B E2EsLBBE S5 A2022943A8
308 }2022F4F20B K A 1ff o

EREXaLEEIE  AEERS WL
B 5 A% L I R 74.76% | £ £62.30%

HELRERTESLATEREE

R2022F481H  ExEFZABKRE
& 2 MR K A% 4858 597,280,000
BB TFTERALBRAEHEA

Eminence shares, details as follows: 389,120,000 & L& 15 - BT
Outstanding Number of Conversion Annual
Issue date principal amount Shares price Interest Maturity Date
BOTEH HARBzAEH R EE REE FH=E Ep:)=!
HK$ HK$

BT BT
2017.05.11 16,000,000 64,000,000 0.25 4% 2024.08.28
2017.09.26 11,280,000 45,120,000 0.25 4% 2024.08.28
2019.08.28 (“2019 CN") 70,000,000 280,000,000 0.25 4% 2024.08.28

(20195 AR R FEE )

Total 97,280,000 389,120,000
@it

20



(c)

(d)

KEBBREBBR AR 2022/23F 1)

Management Discussion and Analysis

Following the completion of Eminence Placing |, Eminence
has issued shares for cash at a price which is less than
95% of its current market price. Pursuant to the terms
and conditions of the 2019 CN, the conversion price of
2019 CN has been adjusted from HK$0.25 to HK$0.24 per
Eminence share and the total number of Eminence shares
would be allotted and issued upon full conversion of the
2019 CN increased from 280,000,000 Eminence shares to
291,666,666 Eminence shares.

Goodco fully exercised the conversion rights under the
aforesaid Eminence convertible notes which was completed
on 25 July 2022. Immediately upon the completion of the
conversion of the Eminence convertible notes, the Group
held an aggregate of 1,097,157,506 shares of Eminence,
representing approximately 72.25% of the total issued share
capital of Eminence.

Eminence Placing completed in September 2022

On 26 September 2022, Eminence completed a placing of a
total of 607,400,000 Eminence shares at the placing price of
HK$0.068 per placing share to not less than six (6) allottees
who and whose beneficial owners are independent third
parties (the “Eminence Placing Il”). For more details, please
refer to the announcements of Eminence dated 27 July 2022,
16 August 2022, 26 September 2022 and the circular dated
23 August 2022 respectively.

Immediately upon completion of the Eminence Placing I,
the shareholding percentage of the Group in Eminence was
decreased from 72.25% to 51.60%. Eminence remains as a
subsidiary of the Company.

2023 CN

On 20 February 2023, the Sale and Purchase Agreements
and the transactions contemplated thereunder was
completed and a total of 1,971,698,113 Eminence conversion
shares with par value of HK$0.01 at an initial conversion
price of HK$0.106 per Eminence conversion share (subject
to adjustments) shall be allotted and issued to Goodco upon
exercise of the conversion rights pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the 2023 CN. Details of which was disclosed
in the above section headed “Very Substantial Disposal of
investment properties to Eminence Group”.
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BLEERAFENZEE

The financial results of Eminence Group during the Year are SILEBERAEENMEEEHBBNT
highlighted as below:

Performance of Eminence Group during the Year

For the year ended 31 March

BE3A3MALEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
(Restated) Change
=) g
Continuing operations BERKEXK
Revenue (HK$'000) EERB(FET)
Rental income e A 24,408 30,528 (20.0)%
Interest income from REERMEZ
loan financing B U A 2,786 6,553 (575)%
Total revenue BMEXE 27,194 37081 (26.7)%
Gross profit (HK$'000) ER(FET) 24,225 34,171 (29.1)%
Profit for the year from continuing K B B LS ¥ K 2
operations (HK$'000) NEEmF (FET) 58,970 86,523 (31.8)%
Discontinued operation ERIEREEK
Profit for the year (HK$'000) RER &N (F#ET) 4,602 29,924 (84.6)%
Profit attributable to owners of S LA A FE(E % T
Eminence (HK$'000) (F#T) 63,572 116,447 (45.4)%
Earnings per share (HK cents) TR CEM)
From continuing and REFEREKL
discontinued operations REEK
— Basic —H K 3.75 12.50 (70.0)%
— Diluted — %8 3.43 9.77 (64.9)%
From continuing operations REFELEER
— Basic — HEK 3.48 9.29 (62.5)%
— Diluted — s 3.19 751 (57.5)%
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As at 31 March 2023 and the date of this annual report, the

BEEENmR D

2023F3ABNARAFHRAY SILEER

development land portfolio held by Eminence Group as below: BEEMEZERELBESWNT:
Anticipated
Intended Approximate year of
Location usage site area completion
& REMAZ HAOMEEE FEARIFEH
(square feet)
(FAR)
Nos. 646, 648, 648A Castle Peak Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong Industrial 9,206 2026
HHBENEBILIEGL6 - 648 - 648ATE I 20264F
No. 121 King Lam Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong Industrial 5,483 2023
BB NEIEME12158 I% 20234
Nos. 11, 13 and 15 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Commercial 2,857 2023
Kong [HES 2023%F
BAEMBEE M EHIR - 135 K155
Nos. 1B-1E Davis Street and Nos. 93 and 95 Catchick Street, Residential 7122 2025
Kennedy Town, Hong Kong F= 20254
EAEREHMBEZLTEHBRIERAR
= E #9355 R 959%
As at 31 March 2023, Eminence Group's portfolio of investment 72023438310 SILEEN R EWME R

properties comprised of residential, commercial and industrial
units located in Hong Kong, the PRC and Singapore. During the
Year, Eminence Group recorded rental income from continuing
operations of approximately HK$24,408,000 (2022: approximately
HK$30,528,000) and fair value gain from continuing operations
of approximately HK$78,967,000 (2022: approximately
HK$48,188,000) arising from change in fair value of investment
properties.

For more detailed business and financial performance of Eminence

Group, please refer to its annual report for the year ended 31
March 2023.

s

AEEMNRES FEEFNHOEE -
BMERTESEN - RAFE > slLEBKRSE
REFELEERHNES WA 424,408,000
7 7T (20224F : 930,528,000/ 70) K & & ¥
% TEEHELANRBFBELEELH

1B U 2 #978,967,0007%8 JT (20224 = 49
48,188,00078 7T) °
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group financed its operations through internally generated
cash flow and bank borrowings. As at 31 March 2023, the Group
had aggregate bank borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$3,529,177,000 (2022: approximately HK$3,562,704,000).
The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as a ratio of total bank
borrowings to total equity, for the year was approximately 0.71
(2022: approximately 0.72).

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has net current assets of
approximately HK$4,404,437,000 (2022: approximately
HK$4,491,434,000). Current ratio was approximately 3.0 (2022:
approximately 3.8). The cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March
2023 was approximately HK$398,894,000 (2022: approximately
HK$184,425,000), representing an increase of approximately 1.2
times or approximately HK$214,469,000 compared to the Previous
Year.

24

RBEERMBER

REBEBANPEEANR SR LBITEE
BEZEBEBIRHEE S - HN2023F3A318 © &
SBEIRITEEBEL A3529,177,000% T
(20224 : #93,562,704,0005 JT)° B K F
B AEENEEABRHRBIRTEEL
HHE=AE 2B #E0.71(2022F ¢
#70.72) °
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The maturity profile of the Group's secured bank borrowings is set
out below:

BEEENmR D

AEEBREERRITEE Z BB R
T

As at 31 March

M3A31H
2023 2022
2023F 20224
HK$000 HK$'000
TFET T T
Carrying amount repayable as follows (based on the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements):
EEEZEABENTREBEHINERBECETEERAIL) -
— within a period not exceeding one year 1,615,464 1,206,455
Er@BR—-—FHRER
— within a period of more than one year but not exceeding two years 884,750 888,846
EHEB-—FENMEAMFNRRENA
— within a period of more than two years but not exceeding five years 876,325 1,237,338
FHEAMFEINBERAAFNRERAA
— within a period of more than five years 152,638 230,065
ERFLAEHRREA
3,529,177 3,562,704
Less: Amount due within one year shown under current liabilities (1,615,464) (1,206,455)
BoBETRRBEEr —FRIBEE
Amount due after one year shown under non-current liabilities 1,913,713 2,356,249

BIARIERBEEZ - FREIYER

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s secured bank borrowings carry
interest at HIBOR plus 1.0% to HIBOR plus 1.825%, LIBOR plus
0.8% to LIBOR plus 1.0% (2022: HIBOR plus 1.0% to HIBOR plus
1.825%, LIBOR plus 0.8% to LIBOR plus 1.0%) per annum, with
effective interest ranging from 4.21% to 5.86% (2022: 1.24% to
2.11%) per annum.
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CHARGES OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2023, bank loans of the Group in the aggregate
amount of approximately HK$3,529,177,000 (2022: approximately
HK$3,562,704,000) which were secured by leasehold properties,
investment properties, properties held for development for
sale, properties held for sale, life insurance policies and listed
equity securities in Hong Kong and overseas of the Group having
a net book value of approximately HK$7,851,249,000 (2022:
approximately HK$7,464,811,000). In addition, a credit facility
granted by a bank for a property development project in Hong
Kong was secured by pledge of 300,000,000 Eminence shares
with fair value of HK$11,400,000 (2022: 300,000,000 Eminence
shares with fair value of HK$37,200,000) held by a subsidiary of
the Group.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group diversifies its source of funds including internal
generated cash flow and interest-bearing bank borrowings during
the Year to generate source of funds for its business operations.
The Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure
that it has adequate financial resources in meeting its financial
obligations.

EXPOSURE ON FOREIGN EXCHANGE
FLUCTUATIONS

All bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The
revenue and payments of the Group, being mostly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, matches the currency requirements of
the Group's operating expenses. The Group therefore has not
engaged in any hedging activities during the Year under review.
Management of the Group is of the opinion that the Group has
no material foreign exchange exposure in the usual course of the
Group's daily operation.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31
March 2023 (2022: nil).

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the Year, the Group invested approximately HK$578,000 (2022:
approximately HK$1,924,000) on the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment, and no additions of investment properties (2022:
HK$41,433,000).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had capital commitments in
respect of capital expenditure contracted for but not provided of
approximately HK$19,635,000 (2022: HK$20,339,000).

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(1) Further disposal of property in Singapore by a
subsidiary of Eminence

On 14 April 2023, the purchaser (an independent third
party) accepted and exercised the option granted by Grow
Well to purchase a residential apartment in Singapore at
a sale price of S$13,008,888 (equivalent to approximately
HK$76,752,400) subject to the terms and conditions of the
option to purchase entered into between Grow Well and the
purchaser. The disposal constitutes a major transaction for
the Company and a very substantial disposal for Eminence
under the Listing Rules. The disposal was approved by the
Shareholders pursuant to Rule 14.44 of the Listing Rules and
the Eminence shareholders at a special general meeting held
on 31 May 2023. Details of this transaction were set out in
the joint announcement dated 14 April 2023 and joint circular
dated 8 May 2023 published by the Company and Eminence
and the announcement dated 31 May 2023 published by
Eminence.

The completion of the disposal shall take place on 7 July
2023. The Group is expected to recognise a gain on the
disposal of approximately S$1,808,888 (equivalent to
approximately HK$10,672,400).

2]

BEEENmR D

HARAE
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BAERE
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(2) Deemed disposal in relation to placing of new
shares by Eminence

On 29 May 2023, Eminence entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent pursuant to which, Eminence
has conditionally agreed to issue, and the placing agent has
conditionally agreed to procure not less than six (6) allottees
(who and whose beneficial owners are independent third
parties) to subscribe for a maximum of up to 50,000,000
new Eminence shares at the placing price of HK$0.50 per
placing share (assuming the Eminence capital reorganisation
has become effective) subject to the terms and conditions
set out in the placing agreement.

Assuming all the placing shares are successfully placed,
the shareholding interest of the Company in Eminence will
be diluted from approximately 51.60% to approximately
26.59%. Such dilution of shareholding interest in Eminence
of the Company constitutes a deemed disposal transaction
and a major transaction of the Company under the Listing
Rules. A special general meeting of the Company shall be
held on 17 July 2023 for the Shareholders to consider and, if
thought fit, approve the placing agreement and transactions
contemplated thereunder. Details of which were set out in
the Company’s announcements dated 30 May 2023, 14 June
2023 and the circular dated 27 June 2023.

The placing shares will be allotted and issued under a specific
mandate which are subject to the approval of the Eminence
shareholders at a special general meeting to be convened
on 17 July 2023, assuming the capital reorganisation be
approved at the same meeting and has become effective.
Details of the Eminence capital reorganisation and placing
of new shares were set out in two announcements both
dated 29 May 2023 and the circular dated 23 June 2023 of
Eminence.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's businesses, financial condition, results of operations
and growth prospects may be affected by risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group's businesses,
including the following highlighted risks of (i) Hong Kong economic
conditions which may directly affect the property market; (ii)
availability of suitable land bank for future development; (iii) the
continuous escalation of construction cost in Hong Kong in recent
years; (iv) business cycle for property under development may
be influenced by a number of factors and the Group's revenue
will be directly affected by the mix of properties available for
sale and delivery; (v) all construction works were outsourced to
independent third parties and they may fail to provide satisfactory
services adhering to the Group’s quality and safety standards or
within the timeline required by the Group; (vi) fluctuations of fair
value gain or loss incurred on financial assets and investment
properties; (vii) credit risk and recoverability of provision of loans
which may incur bad debts during the downturn of economy; and
(viii) credit risk on resulting from loan borrowers’ failure to repay or
default contractual obligations which may result in an interruption
of cash flows and increased costs for collection.

In response to the abovementioned possible risks, the Group has
a series of internal control and risk management system to cope
with the possible risks and has serious scrutiny over the selection
of quality customers and suppliers. The Group keeps developing
and reviewing strategies, policies and guidelines on risk control,
which enable the Group to monitor and response to risk effectively
and promptly. The Group also actively proposes solutions to lower
the impact of the possible risks on the businesses of the Group.

PROSPECTS

Anti-pandemic measures have been relaxed, economic and social
activities have gradually resumed. In addition, new measures
such as adjustment to the value bands of Ad Valorem Stamp
Duty for First-home buyers have been introduced to support the
development of the property market and are expected to have a
stimulating effect on the economy.
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The resumption of quarantine-free travel around the world is
expected to revive the growth momentum of Hong Kong in 2023
by providing more opportunities for economic activities. While the
Hong Kong property market has been under pressure due to rate
hikes and inflation, the sector is still underpinned by solid demand.
The reopening of borders has undoubtedly encouraged domestic
consumption, the return of travellers to Hong Kong will support
further retail recovery. The retail market is expected to recover
gradually towards this year, with a significant growth in 2024 which
the demand for commercial space is expected to increase.

The Group will continue to focus its efforts in the development of
its existing principal businesses while exploring other opportunities
with a view to providing steady and favourable returns for its
shareholders and strengthen every segment of it businesses.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had 65 employees (2022: 89).
Staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments) amounted to
approximately HK$71,261,000 for the Year (2022: approximately
HK$57,970,000). The Group remunerates its employees based on
individual performance, experience and prevailing industry practice.
The Group provides a defined contribution to Mandatory Provident
Fund as required under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for all eligible
employees of the Group in Hong Kong. The share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 5 July 2012 was expired on 4 July
2022 (the “2012 Share Option Scheme"). Following the expiry of
the 2012 Share Option Scheme, the Company has no other share
option schemes as at the date of this annual report.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Ms. KOON Ho Yan Candy
President, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Ms. Koon Ho Yan, Candy, aged 38, has been re-designated to
the president and chief executive officer, and the chairman of
the Executive Committee of the Company on 13 August 2020.
She was appointed as an executive Director and authorised
representative and a member of the Executive Committee of the
Company in 2010. She is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Group. Ms. Koon obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Economics and Politics from the University of Durham, England in
2007. She also received her Bachelor of Laws degree and Legal
Practice Course qualification in 2009 from the University of Law,
England. Ms. Koon is the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, the vice
president of the Company.

Ms. LUI Yuk Chu
Vice President and Executive Director

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, aged 65, is a co-founder of the Group, an
executive Director and vice president and a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company. She is also a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. Besides, Ms. Lui is an
executive director and deputy chairman, and a member of the
executive committee of Eminence and serves as director of various
subsidiaries of Eminence. Ms. Lui has been involved in the textiles
industry for over 30 years and has extensive experience in design,
manufacturing, marketing and distribution of apparel. Ms. Lui was
appointed to the Board as an executive Director in 1994. In 2006,
Ms. Lui was appointed as vice president of the Company. Ms. Lui
is the wife of Mr. Koon Wing Yee, the co-founder of the Group.
She is also the mother of Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, an executive
Director.
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Mr. TSUI Chun Kong
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong, aged 72, has been an independent
non-executive Director since 2004. He is also a member and the
chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.
He obtained a Master’'s Degree in Business Administration from
the Oklahoma City University in the United States in 1991 and
is a fellow member of both The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Tsui has over 40 years of experience in the public
accounting profession and the commercial sector, especially the
travel industry. He has experience in the preparation for the listing
of shares on the Stock Exchange and worked for a few listed
companies. Mr. Tsui is now practising as a public accountant under
his own name.

Mr. JONG Koon Sang
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Jong Koon Sang, aged 74, has been an independent
non-executive director since 2005. He is also a member and
chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Currently, Mr. Jong is a fellow member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Association
of International Accountants, England; a fellow member of the
Chartered Management Institute, England; a fellow member of
The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong; the accountant ambassador
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants; and
Honorary Vice President of Accounting Student Society of Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology. Since 2014, he has
been elected as director and council member of the Association of
International Accountants, England. In the years of 2011 and 2012,
Mr. Jong was the President of The Association of International
Accountants, Hong Kong Branch. From 2010 to 2020, he was
a member of the Regional Advisory Committee of the Hong
Kong Hospital Authority. In 2019, Mr. Jong was appointed as the
alternative structured manager of Shek Lei Catholic Primary School
and Nam Wah Catholic Secondary School. Mr. Jong was appointed
by the foregoing schools in May and June 2020 respectively
as School Sponsoring Body Manager of the Incorporated
Management Committee commenced from 1 September 2020
to 31 August 2023. He has also been appointed as a Sponsoring
Body Manager of Shung Tak Catholic English College for his tenure
of office from 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2024. Mr. Jong has
over 40 years of management experience in the financial, industrial
and property business.
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Mr. LAU Chak Hang Charles
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Lau Chak Hang Charles, aged 36, has been an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman and a member of the
Nomination Committee, and a member of the Audit committee
and the remuneration committee of the Company since 6 August
2020. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Engineering from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is currently an executive
director at Frost & Sullivan Limited, a multinational management
consulting firm principally engaged in market research and growth
consulting service, corporate strategic and operational advisory
service, etc. Client coverage of such company spans across
different continents and wide spectrum of industries. Mr. Lau has
extensive experience in the financial industry.
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The Company believes that good corporate governance provides a
framework that is essential for an effective Board, accountability,
sound internal control, appropriate risk-assessment, monitoring
procedures and transparency to all Shareholders and stakeholders.
The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices through the establishment of a
comprehensive and efficient framework of policies, procedures
and systems throughout the Group.

CORPORATE STRATEGY AND CORPORATE
CULTURE

The Board defines and leads the purpose, values and strategy
of the Group. The Group is committed to strategically investing
in and developing quality properties, and to delivering attractive
and sustainable returns to the Shareholders. Despite the dynamic
operating environment, the Group places strong emphasis on
employee relations, workplace safety, and the efficient use of
materials, energy, and other environmental metrics, promoting a
culture of ethical conduct and integrity. A healthy corporate culture
is important to good corporate governance which is crucial for
achieving sustainable long-term success of the Group. The Board
considers that the corporate culture and the purpose, value and
strategy of the Group are aligned.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules.The Company has fully complied with the code
provisions of the CG Code throughout the Year, with the following
exceptions:

Code Provision C.2.1

The roles of president and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy serves as president as well as chief
executive officer of the Company. The Board considers this
arrangement to be appropriate for the Company as it preserves
the consistent leadership which is conducive to making effective
planning and better execution of long-term strategies consistently.
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The Board is of the view that a balance of power and authority
is adequately ensured by the operations and governance of the
Board which comprises experienced and high caliber individuals,
with half of them being independent non-executive Directors. The
Company will continue to review the existing structure when and
as it becomes appropriate.

Code Provision D.2.5
The issuer should have an internal audit function

The Group does not have an internal audit function. During the
Year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group and considered that the current risk
management and internal control processes are adequate to meet
the needs of the Group in its current business environment and
nothing has come to its attention to cause the Board to believe
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
inadequate. The Board was of the view that there is no immediate
need to set up an internal audit function within the Group,
however, shall review the need for one on annual basis.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the Year, the Board has six (6) Directors comprising three
(3) executive Directors and three (3) independent non-executive
Directors, namely:

Executive Directors

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy (President and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Vice President)
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky

(Vice President, resigned on 31 March 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong
Mr. Jong Koon Sang
Mr. Lau Chak Hang Charles

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors” of this annual report.
Save as disclosed in that section, to the best knowledge of the
Company, there is no other financial, business, family or other
material relationships among the Directors.
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Role and Delegation

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders for the activities and
performance of the Group. The Board meets on a regular basis,
at least four (4) times a year at approximately quarterly intervals,
and on other occasions when a board-level decision on a particular
matter is required. With a view to maintaining an appropriate
balance of authority and responsibility, the Board through various
committee (each as the “Board Committee”) by delegation to
carry out their functions which set out in their respective terms
of reference. Currently, there are four (4) board committees,
namely executive committee (the “Executive Committee”), audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) (Details of each of the Board
committees are provided below in this report). The Board is
responsible for formulating of corporate strategies, reviewing and
guiding the business and affairs, monitoring financial and operating
performance and is individual. The Board reserves the authority to
make final decisions for all major matters of the Company covering
internal control and risk management, dividend payout, major
transactions, release of financial information, appointment/removal
of Directors and auditors, and other significant operational and
financial matters.

There is no separation of the role of the president and the chief
executive officer in the Company. Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy as
the president provides leadership of the Board and as the chief
executive officer has taken up the management of the Group’s
business and overall operation. However, the day-to-day running
of the Company has been delegated to the divisional heads
responsible for the different aspects of the business.

The Board considers that this structure will not impair the balance
of power and authority between the Board and the management
of the business of the Group given that there are a strong
and independent element on the Board and a clear division of
responsibility in running the business of the Group. The Board
believes that the structure outlined above is beneficial to the
Company and its business.
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Attendance of Directors at Various Meetings

Details of the attendance of individual Directors at the Board and
Board Committee meetings held during the Year, annual general
meeting held on 26 August 2022 (“2022 AGM") and special
general meeting held on 15 February 2023 (“2023 SGM") are as
follows:

SREARE

BEERNESHERR

EREELEEAFERTNESSRES
ZE& S 2022F8A26HBITHR KA
FRE([2022F B RBF RG] %20234F2
H158 #17T B IR R 5l K 2 ([20234F & R
BRREDHHEBOT:

Meetings attended/held
HE/ETNEE
Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Board Committee Committee ~ Committee 2022 AGM 2023 SGM
2022FRE 20235 R
Exg ENZES ¥MZEE REZEE BEXE KIXE
Executive Directors HTEE
Koon Ho Yan Candy BEAM 4/4 — - — 17 17
Lui Yuk Chu BEK 3/4 — — — 1 111
Tse Wing Chiu Ricky Eip S
(resigned on 31 March 2023 (F2023%#3/318 8 1£) 44 — 17 7 7 11
Independent non-executive BYEHITES
Directors
Tsui Chun Kong RES 404 2/2 17 17 7N 17
Jong Koon Sang frS 4/4 2/2 11 11 11 11
Lau Chak Hang Charles 228 4/4 2/2 1 17 17N 17
Appointment and Re-election of Directors ZERERES

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee and the Board and
by the Shareholders in a general meeting.

In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”),
Directors who are appointed by the Board to fill casual vacancies or
as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office until the next
following general meeting or until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall be eligible for re-election at the
meeting after their appointments. All Directors, including those
appointed for a specific term, are subject to retirement by rotation
and eligible to offer themselves for re-election at the annual
general meeting no later than the third annual general meeting
since the last election or re-election.
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Induction and Continuous Professional
Development of Directors

An induction package would be provided to each newly appointed
Director to ensure that each Director is familiar with the role of the
Board, the responsibilities and obligations of Director under the
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Training materials or briefings in respect of the updates on, among
other things, the Listing Rules and other applicable statutory
requirements are regularly circulated to all Directors. The Company
also provides and circulates to the Directors with monthly and
regular updates relating to the Group'’s business, financial position
and business environment, in which the Group operates.

All Directors have provided a record of training they received during
the Year to the Company, which includes attending seminars,
reading various materials regarding directors’ responsibilities,
updates on the Listing Rules and corporate governance policy, etc,
and such records have been maintained by the company secretary
of the Company for accurate and comprehensive record keeping.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four (4) Board Committees, namely
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Executive Committee to assist in the execution
of the Board's responsibilities and to oversee particular aspect
of the Group's affairs. Each Board Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties and may access to
independent professional advice according to the Company's
policy, if necessary. Each Board Committee holds meetings
in accordance with the Bye-laws, its specific written terms of
reference and, where applicable, the proceedings of the Board
meeting. The written terms of reference of the Board Committees
are reviewed and updated regularly to ensure that they are aligned
with prevailing governance practices. Each committee is required
to report to the Board on its decision and recommendations,
where appropriate. The authority and duties of each of the Board
Committee are set out in its respective terms of reference which
are available on the Company’s and/or the Stock Exchange’s
websites.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Audit Committee comprises three (3)
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Tsui Chun
Kong (the chairman), Mr. Jong Koon Sang and Mr. Lau Chak
Hang Charles. Mr. Tsui Chun Kong and Mr. Jong Koon Sang both
possess the appropriate professional qualifications and accounting
and financial management expertise and in compliance with Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The principal functions of the Audit Committee are:
° to oversee the relationship with the external auditors;

° to review the interim and annual financial statements before
publication;

° to oversee the Group's financial reporting system and internal
control procedures; and

o to perform the corporate governance functions

During the Year, the Audit Committee members held two (2)
meetings with the Group senior management and the independent
auditor of the Company to review (i) the draft consolidated financial
statements of the Group (including the annual results for the year
ended 31 March 2022 and the interim results for the six-month
period ended 30 September 2022) before recommending them
to the Board for approval; (ii) the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group; and (iii) the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control system of the Company. It keeps
under review the independence and objectivity of the Company’s
independent auditor and the non-audit services provided by the
Company's independent auditor to the Group.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's consolidated
financial statements for the Year in conjunction with the
Company’s independent auditor and was satisfied that the
consolidation financial statements for the Year were complied with
the applicable accounting standards and Appendix 16 to the Listing
Rules. The Audit Committee therefore resolved to recommend the
consolidation financial statements for the Year be approved by the
Board.
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The Audit Committee is satisfied with, inter alia, the audit fees,
effectiveness of the audit process, independence and objectivity
of Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) and has
recommended to the Board the re-appointment of Deloitte as
the Company’s independent auditor for the ensuing year at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (2023
AGM").

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee comprises three
(3) independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Jong Koon
Sang (the chairman), Mr. Tsui Chun Kong and Mr. Lau Chak Hang
Charles, and one (1) executive Director, namely Mr. Tse Wing Chiu
Ricky (resigned on 31 March 2023).

The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee are:

° to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors and
senior management;

° to review and determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive Director and
senior management with reference to the Board's corporate
goals and objectives;

° to review and approve the compensation arrangements in
connection with any loss or termination of their office or
appointment, or dismissal or removal for misconduct to
executive Directors and senior management which shall be
fair and not excessive; and

o to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held one (1)
meeting to review and approve the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management of the Company by reference
to factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere within the group and in the market. It has also made
recommendation to the Board on the directors’ fee for independent
non-executive Directors. No Director was involved in determining
his/her own remuneration. Besides, the Remuneration Committee
had recommended to amend its terms of reference to the Board
for adoption, conform the amendments to the CG Code requiring
the Remuneration Committee to review and approve matters
relating to share schemes of the Company. The amended terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

40

ERZEEEMEHFTBRBIBY - BER
TEFMT(EGNZERER FRIE
FzBEREARBIERZEGE X R
B EITHARBBRREBEF A S (120235 i
RBFAEDRNEZSEZREREIARAN
RAT—FEZBILZEE

FMEES

RAFE FHEZESBRE=ZQ KRB
HITES HETELEE(EE) BEE
SEHERBZBERA  UR—1NEZHTESE
B &t ok #8 45 4 (R20234 3318 & E) »

FHERE e T ERAERE:

e HMEFERHUHARFAEZLSAER
ABFMBEREBTEZER

e Z2ETEZEMNLXERRAEN EE
BEREAOBATRIRETENATE
EREREREBNFMEFE:

e EENMMAEBRPTEFTNIREEA
BEMEMBERSKLEES  HETE
TRmMERERCBREENBERY
ZRFEATFETBD K&

o WBELTRAUNFT7TEFMR HE
B M EEREANER

RAFEE - HFHEEEAR - (DX EH -
NEREHEBEERARASREEEDN
FHEE ET2EZRERERMEUAFMN
XHMFHE  KHAER AKEARRD
BEIRERUNERBR - LIRRBIF
WITESNEFTHUSRESTSRHEZS -
MEEFE2HEBEEATZHHN - N
FHEZRECEMES SRR HRER
B AR ETEEERTRNERT
HEETELFMZEe R Rt ERE R
REABROABERANERE - FHZEEW
EIEF] B s B Al N R AT R AR R
BB -



KEBBREBBR AR 2022/23F 1)

Corporate Governance Report

The Remuneration Committee has discharged or will continue
to discharge its major roles to, among other things, approve the
terms of the service agreements of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company, make recommendations with
respect to the remuneration and policies of the Directors and senior
management of the Company and to review the remuneration
package and recommend salaries, bonuses, including the incentive
awards for Directors and senior management of the Company.

Remuneration Mechanism

The remuneration mechanism of employees of the Group is set up
and approved by the Remuneration Committee and the Board on
the basis of employee’s performance, experience and prevailing
industry practice.

The remuneration of the Directors is determined by the Board
after review and on the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to factors such as time commitment
and responsibilities of the Directors, the Company’s performance
and the prevailing market practice.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Nomination Committee comprises three (3)
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lau Chak Hang
Charles (the chairman), Mr. Jong Koon Sang and Mr. Tsui Chun
Kong, and one (1) executive Director, namely Mr. Tse Wing Chiu
Ricky (resigned on 31 March 2023).

The principal functions of the Nomination Committee are:

° to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

° to identify and nominate suitable candidates of Directors for
the Board's consideration;
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° to assess the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors; and

o to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the succession planning for the president and the
chief executive of the Company

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one (1) meeting
to (i) review the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board and the qualifications for all Directors and senior
management of the Group; (ii) review the board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”); (iii) review the nomination
policy (the “Nomination Policy”); (iv) assess the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors; and (v) nominate
the re-appointment of retiring directors to the Shareholders for
approval.

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy which incorporated
the selection criteria and nomination procedures for nomination
and appointment of Directors. Such policy is available on the
website of the Company.

In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate, the
Nomination Committee takes into account of, inter alia, the
diversity of the Board as a whole, the candidate’s reputation for
integrity, commitment in respect of time, interest and attention to
the businesses of the Group as well as such other factors as the
Nomination Committee may consider appropriate.
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In respect of the nomination procedure, all candidates are
required to submit his/her personal particulars and information
to the Nomination Committee. The secretary of the Nomination
Committee shall convene a meeting, and invite nominations
of candidates from Board members (if any), for consideration
by the Nomination Committee. For filling a casual vacancy, the
Nomination Committee shall make recommendations for the
Board's consideration and approval. For proposing candidates to
stand for election at a general meeting, the Nomination Committee
shall make nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation. A circular will be sent to the Shareholders
providing information as required pursuant to the applicable laws,
rules and regulations of the candidates nominated by the Board to
stand for election at a general meeting.

Board Diversity Policy

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. The Company has
adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out the approach to
achieve diversity. In designing the Board’'s composition, board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, industry experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on the
considerations aforesaid, and candidates will be considered, having
due regard to diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of
the Board Diversity Policy and the progress on achieving those
measurable objectives and will review the Board Diversity Policy
on a regular basis to ensure its continuing effectiveness. Such
policy is available on the website of the Company.
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The Board composition and diversity as at 31 March 2023 are as
follows:

M2023F3A31TH  EFgMHEMK K Z L
R IS

Composition ED INED
#H R HITES BYEMITES
Gender Female Male
4 5l Lo B
Age Group

31-40 1-7 i
= 4 4 B 61-70 =
Board tenture (No. of years)

2— 10-1 16-2

EEEEH(EH) 3 o1 620 -
Professional Experience Accounting Finance General Management
BEXERR g5t T &l —RERE
Number of Directors 0 | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 |
EE¥H

ED — Executive Directors #]77 %
INED — Independent Non-executive Directors ¥ 7 FE #1 77 & F

The Group is committed to maintain diversity (including gender
diversity) across all levels of the Group. The Group ensures fair
employment practices and offer equal employment opportunities
to recruit, promote and deploy employees based on their
skillset, abilities and how they fit the job requirements and future
development of our businesses. As at 31 March 2023, the Board
has two female Directors out of six Directors (approximately 33%).
As at 31 March 2023, approximately 51% (2022: 40%) of our total
workforces (excluding Directors) were female and approximately
49% (2022: 60%) were male. The total gender diversity of the
Group is balanced.

Board Independence

The Nomination Committee is responsible to assess the
independence of all the independent non-executive Directors
taking into account of the factors including (i) the compliance with
the criteria of independence as prescribed under Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules; (ii) must not have any involvement in the daily
management of the Company, or any financial or other interests
or relationships in the business of the Company; (iii) can provide
balanced, professional and independent advices and opinion to the
Board and play a leading role in the Board Committees.
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Throughout the Year, half of the Board were independent
non-executive Directors (three out of six Directors). All
independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific
term of three (3) years. At all times during the Year, the Company
has complied with the requirements under Rule 3.10 and 3.10A
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
(3) independent non-executive directors, representing at least
one third of the Board and with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualification or accounting or related
financial management expertise required under the Listing Rules.
The Board includes a balanced composition of executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors so that there is a
strong element of independence in the Board. The independent
non-executive Directors shall be of sufficient calibre and stature for
their views to carry weight.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Despite
the fact that each of Mr. Tsui Chun Kong and Mr. Jong Koon Sang,
has served as an independent non-executive Director for more
than nine (9) years, the Board is of the view that their duration
of service will not interfere with their exercise of independent
judgement in carrying out their duties and responsibilities as
the independent non-executive Directors and believes that their
valuable knowledge and experience in the Group’s business will
continually benefit the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
All independent non-executive Directors do not have any executive
or management role in the Company nor have been under the
employment of any member of the Group. Each of them receives
a fixed fee, not commensurate with the profit and performance
of the Group. They can bring an independent judgment to bear on
issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources,
key appointments and standards of conduct. Their presence
helps to enhance the Board’s balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives. The Board considers that all independent
non-executive Directors have met the independence guidelines of
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee with authority delegated by the Board
be regulated by its terms of reference, which are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. During
the Year, the Executive Committee comprises all the three
(3) executive Directors, namely Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy (the
chairman), Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky (resigned
on 31 March 2023). It meets as and when required between
regular Board meetings of the Company, and operates as a general
management committee under the direct authority of the Board.
Within the parameters of authority delegated by the Board, the
Executive Committee is committed to the implementation of
the Group's strategy set by the Board, monitors the Group’s
investment and trading performance, funding and financing
requirements, and reviews the management performance.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND
RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors. Having
made specific enquiry with the existing Directors, all of them
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code regarding their dealings in securities of the
Company during the Year.

The Company also adopted a code on no less exacting terms
than the Model Code to regulate dealings in the securities of the
Company by certain employees of the Group who are considered
to be likely in possession of inside information in relation to the
Company or its securities.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Deloitte has been re-appointed as the independent auditor of the
Company at the 2022 AGM until the conclusion of the 2023 AGM.
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During the Year, the audit and non-audit fees paid or payable to
Deloitte were as follows:

SREARE

RAFEE BENHAENEHNEZRIEE
ZERIWT:

Fees paid/payable to

Services rendered for the Group Deloitte
AREAEBERMNRS B BN EEHNER
HK$000
FET
Audit services: FEZRS

— annual financial statements — FEUBHHRE 3,613

Non-audit services: FEEZIRTE
— taxation and professional services —RIEREERE 51
Total: Bt 3,664

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation
and publication of the timely financial statements of the Company
which gives a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group and ensure that they are prepared in accordance with the
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
Management of the Company had provided monthly updates
for giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and projects to enable the
Directors to discharge their duties. In preparing the accounts for
the Year, the Directors have adopted suitable accounting policies
which are pertinent to the Group’s operations and relevant to
the financial statements and have presented an understandable
assessment of the Group's position and prospects.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, the
accounts are prepared on a going concern basis and they are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to the events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

A statement by the independent auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report of this annual
report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

With the requirement set out in the code provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code in respect of the responsibilities for performing the
corporate governance duties, the Board has delegated its following
responsibilities to the Audit Committee:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and
employees; and

° review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report of the
Company.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Group is committed to achieving and maintaining the highest
standards of openness, probity and accountability. The Group
encourages reporting of concerns and actual or suspected
misconduct or malpractice or unethical acts (e.g. corruption) by
individual employee and/or external parties in any matter related to
the Group.

The adoption of a comprehensive Whistleblowing Policy in March
2022 enhanced the Group's whistleblowing mechanism. The
policy aims to enable the Company’s employees and those who
deal with the Company to raise concerns, in confidence and
anonymity, with the Audit Committee about possible improprieties
in matters related to the Company, in order to help detect and
deter misconduct or malpractice or unethical acts in the Company.

Anti-corruption Policy

The Company takes a zero-tolerance approach towards all forms
of bribery and corruption and is committed to observing and
upholding high standards of business integrity, honesty, fairness,
impartiality and transparency in all its business dealings at all
times. The Company strictly prohibits any form of fraud or bribery,
and is committed to prevention, deterrence, detection, reporting
and investigation of all forms of fraud and bribery.
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The Board had adopted an Anti-corruption Policy in March 2022
which sets out the basic standard of conduct which applies to all
directors, officers and employees at all levels of the Group. They
must conduct their activities in full compliance with this Policy, the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), and all other applicable laws relating to bribery or corruption
in each jurisdiction in which the employees do business. It also
provides guidance to all employees on acceptance of advantage
and handling of conflict of interest when dealing with the
Company's business. The Company also encourages and expects
its business partners including suppliers, contractors and clients to
abide by the principles of this Policy.

Shareholders Communication Policy

The Company endeavors to maintain good long-term relationship
with the Shareholders and its potential investors. The Board has
adopted a Shareholders Communication Policy in 2019 and is
regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness. The policy governs
our framework for providing shareholders with ready, equal and
timely access to balanced and easily comprehensible information
about the Company.

The Shareholders Communication Policy sets out the framework
in place to promote two-way communication with Shareholders,
stakeholders and potential investors.

Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to the
Shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal
channels including (i) printed copies of corporate communications
(including but not limited to interim and annual reports,
announcements, circulars and other regulatory disclosures)
required under the Listing Rules, which Shareholders can select
to receive through the Company’s website instead; (ii) general
meetings of the Company provides one of the primary forums for
communication with the Shareholders. Such meetings provide
the Shareholders with the opportunity to share their views and to
meet the Board and certain members of senior management; (iii)
updated information regarding the Group available on the website
of the Company; and (iv) the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar and Transfer Office who deals with Shareholders for
shareholdings and related matters.

The Whistleblowing Policy, the Anti-corruption Policy and the
Shareholders Communication Policy have been circulated to all
employees and are available on the Company’s website. The Audit
Committee, on behalf of the Board, is responsible to conduct
regular review to ensure their implementation and effectiveness.
In June 2023, the Audit Committee reviewed the policies and
considered that the policies have been effectively implemented.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Currently, the Board has undertaken the overall responsibility for
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is
willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic objectives and
ensuring that the Group established and maintained appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems. The
Audit Committee provides independent review on effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
and gives their recommendation to the Board. Each department is
responsible for identifying, assessing and managing risks within
its business, ensuring that appropriate internal control for effective
risk management are implemented. On behalf of the Board, the
Audit Committee also regularly reviews the corporate governance
structure and practices within the Group and monitors compliance
fulfilment on an ongoing basis.

All departments of the Company are required to undergo a
self-risk assessment annually. It covers all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls. The Audit
Committee shall then review the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems based on the self-risk
assessment submitted by departments and also considering the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programs and budget of the Group's accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting function.

Under the enterprise risk management framework, policies
and procedures are in place to identify, assess, manage,
control and report risks. Such risks include strategic, credit,
operational (administrative, system, human resources,
reputation), environmental, social and governance ("ESG")
issues, market, liquidity, legal and regulatory. Exposure to these
risks is continuously monitored by the Board through the Audit
Committee.

After reviewing the annual review on effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group as reported
by the Audit Committee, the Board considers the risk management
and internal control systems in respect of financial, operational,
compliance, risk management and adequate of resources were
effective and adequate in respect of the Year. The management of
the Company confirmed that there is no significant deficiency and
weakness in the internal control system has been identified.
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The internal control systems are designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the
Group and minimise the adverse impact results from the risks.
The risk management and internal control system are designed to
mitigate rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group does not have an internal audit function. The Board
considered that the current risk management and internal
control processes are adequate to meet the needs of the Group
in its current business environment and nothing has come to
its attention to cause the Board to believe the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems are inadequate. The
Board was of the view that there is no immediate need to set up
an internal audit function within the Group, however, shall review
the need for one on annual basis.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy which sets out the
principles and guidelines of the Company in relation to the
distribution of dividend to its Shareholders. Subject to compliance

with applicable rules and regulations, the Board may, at its
discretion, determine the declaration of payment of dividend(s)
to its Shareholders in any amount, frequency in any financial
year depending on, among other things, the Group’'s operation
and financial performance, economic conditions, the Group's
business strategies and operations, liquidity position and capital
requirements as well as the interests of the Shareholders.

The dividend payout ratio will vary from year to year. There is no
assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for
any given period.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages Mr. Lee Po Wing as its Company Secretary
who is not an employee of the Company. Mr. Lee has confirmed
that for the Year under review, he has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training. Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the
executive Director and chief executive officer of the Company is
the person whom Mr. Lee Po Wing could contact for the purpose
of code provision C.6.1 of the CG Code.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for convening a special general
meeting

Pursuant to the Bye-laws and the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Bermuda Companies Act”), Shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition (state the purpose of the meeting, be signed)
to the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require
a special general meeting (the “SGM") to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. If
the Directors do not within twenty-one (21) days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionists or any of them representing more than one half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene
a meeting in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of
the Bermuda Companies Act, but any SGM so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of three months from the said date of
deposit of the requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the SGM,
and must be signed by the Shareholder(s) and deposited at the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Block A,
7th Floor, Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6, 481-483 Castle
Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong (the “Principal
Place of Business”) for the attention of Company Secretarial
Department.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at the
general meetings

Shareholders may submit a requisition to move a resolution at
a general meeting pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act.
The number of Shareholders necessary for a requisition shall
be: (a) any number of Shareholders representing not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having
at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting; or (b)
not less than 100 Shareholders holding the issued ordinary shares
of the Company (the “Shares”). The requisition specifying the
proposal, duly signed by the Shareholders concerned, together
with a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in the proposal or the business to be dealt with
at the general meeting must be deposited at the Principal Place of
Business. The Company would take appropriate actions and make
necessary arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned would
be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto
in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act. Moreover, the
notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for consideration
of the proposals submitted by the Shareholders concerned varies
as follows pursuant to Bye-law 63 of the Bye-laws:

(@) for an annual general meeting of the Company and any
SGM at which the passing of a special resolution is to be
considered, it shall be called by at least twenty-one (21) days'
notice in writing;

(b)  for all other general meetings of the Company (including a
SGM) shall be called by at least fourteen (14) days’ notice in
writing (the notice period must include ten (10) business days
under the Listing Rules’ requirement); and

(c)  the notice shall be exclusive of the day on which it is served
or deemed to be served and of the day for or which it is
given.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
Director for election as a Director at a general meeting, the
Shareholder should follow the “Rules and Procedures Governing
the Election of Directors”, which is available on the website of the
Company.
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Procedures for putting enquiries by the
Shareholders to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in written form via the following channel:

Company Secretarial Department
Block A, 7th Floor

Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6
481-483 Castle Peak Road

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

Hong Kong

E-mail: 1218share@easyknit.com

In respect of the other shareholding/entitlement affairs:
Tricor Secretaries Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has not made any changes to its Bye-laws. The
Company’s memorandum of association and the Bye-laws are
available on the websites of the Company (www.easyknit.com)
and the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).
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The Directors present this report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in property development,
property investment, investment in securities and others and
loan financing, details of which are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

No interim dividend was paid to the shareholders of the Company
during the Year (2022: nil.).

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the Year (2022: nil.).

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five (5) financial
years, as extracted from the consolidated financial statements, is
set out on page 274 of this annual report. This summary does not
form part of the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND ANALYSIS OF KEY
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The business review of the Group as required under Schedule 5 to
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and the key financial performance indicators to the businesses
of the Group, including, among other things, (i) a fair review
of the Group’s business; (ii) a description of principal risks and
uncertainties facing to the Group; (iii) an analysis using key financial
performance indicators and (iv) future development in the Group’s
business, can be found in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. These discussions
form part of this directors’ report.

The corporate social responsibility, environmental policies and

performance of the Group are disclosed in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report of this annual report.
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As far as the Board is concerned, the Group has complied in
material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group
during the Year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the
Year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the
Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws
or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders of
the Company.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company's reserves available for distribution to the
shareholders of the Company as at 31 March 2023 amounted
to approximately HK$938,304,000 (2022: approximately
HK$864,960,000).

Details of the movements in reserves of the Company during
the Year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity and note 42 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy (President and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Vice President)
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky

(Vice President, resigned on 31 March 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong
Mr. Jong Koon Sang
Mr. Lau Chak Hang Charles

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, Ms. Lui Yuk Chu
and Mr. Tsui Chun Kong will retire from office by rotation at the
2023 AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Director an annual written confirmation pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that
all independent non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors” of this annual report.

CHANGE IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information of the Directors after 29 November 2022, the date of
the interim report of the Company for the six months ended 30
September 2022, are set out below:

o Details of changes in the Directors’ remuneration up to 31
March 2023 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statement of this annual report.

° Mr. Tse Wing Chu Ricky resigned as an executive Director
and vice president of the Company, and a member of
the Executive Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee on 31 March 2023.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the provisions of the Listing Rules and the Bye-laws. No
Director has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements headed “Related Party Transactions/Connected
Transactions” of this annual report, there were no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the Group's
business, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with a
Director, or a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at any
time during the Year or at the end of the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

The Company was deemed to be interested in approximately
51.60% interest in Eminence as at 31 March 2023, which was
accounted for as a subsidiary of the Company. The principal
businesses of Eminence and its subsidiaries are the property
development, property investment, investment in securities and
others and loan financing. As at 31 March 2023, Ms. Lui Yuk Chu,
who was an executive Director and vice president of the Company,
was also an executive director and deputy chairman of Eminence.

The Company and Eminence are separate listed entities run by
separate and independent management. Ms. Lui cannot personally
control the Board and is fully aware of, and has been discharging,
her fiduciary duty to the Company and has acted and will continue
to act in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. Therefore, the Directors believe that the Company is
capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s
length from, Eminence.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023 and up to the date
of this annual report, none of the Directors had any interest in a
business which may compete with that of the Group and which is
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")), as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing
Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the Shares of the Company

KEBBREBBR AR 2022/23F 1)

Directors’ Report

EFEEHE

ESERRM - HERORERER
ZHEBRAXR

R2023%F3HA31MH  EERARAFETHK
ABRARAHHEBE EZBE(ERREEFK
HEKRMN(BERBERAG ) EXVE) 2 I
moHEROREERY  BEREZES
NEERO EB2HERARNRREBEFTEZ
Btz kAR - iR LR A
FrEiZEFRIBRSITNE AR KRB AT
ZHEETRABWT:

RAEXTRMDZHFR

Number of Ordinary Shares

EERRAHA
Approximate
% of
Personal Family Corporate Other Shareholding
Name of Director Interest Interest Interest Interest Total (Note vi)
BHAER
B
EEpE fBAER RikER AR EH Hitt s Bt (#i itvi)
Koon Ho Yan Candy (“Ms. Koon") 73,000 — — 29,179,480 29,252,480 39.53%
BEAMIELZ L)) (Note i) (Note ii)
(B #t0) (Bt itii)
Lui Yuk Chu (“Ms. Lui") 73,000 73,000 13,899,664 — 14,045,664 18.98%
EER(ExL)) (Note ifi) (Note iv) (Note v)
(M i) (Hitiv) (Hitv)
Notes: Bz

(i)

(ii)

These interests represent options granted to Ms. Koon as beneficial
owner under the 2012 Share Option Scheme, details of which are
disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme of the
Company” in this directors’ report.

29,179,480 shares are registered in the name of and are beneficially
owned by Magical Profits Limited which is wholly-owned by
Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned
by The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited in its capacity as
the trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries include
Ms. Koon). As a result, Ms. Koon is deemed to be interested in the
shares by virtue of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of The
Magical 2000 Trust.
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(i) These interests represent options granted to Ms. Lui as beneficial
owner under the 2012 Share Option Scheme, details of which are
disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme of the
Company” in this directors’ report.

(iv)  These interests represent options granted to Mr. Koon Wing Yee
("Mr. Koon"), the spouse of Ms. Lui, as beneficial owner under the
2012 Share Option Scheme, details of which are disclosed under
the section headed “Share Option Scheme of the Company” in this
directors’ report. Ms. Lui is deemed to be interested in those shares
in which her spouse, Mr. Koon, was interested.

(v) 13,899,664 shares are owned by Sea Rejoice Limited which is
wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. Lui.

(vi)  The percentage represented the number of shares over the total
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2023 was
73,988,403 shares.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief executive
of the Company had, as at 31 March 2023, registered any interest
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be recorded
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF THE
COMPANY

On 5 July 2012, the 2012 Share Option Scheme was adopted and
approved by the then shareholders of the Company for a period of
10 years commencing on the adoption date whereby, the Board,
may at its discretion, grant share options to any eligible participants
(including Directors and employees of the Group) to subscribe for
the shares of the Company subject to the terms and conditions as
stipulated in the 2012 Share Option Scheme.

The scheme mandate limit in respect of the granting of options to
subscribe for shares of the Company under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme has been refreshed at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 8 August 2019 which the total number of shares
of the Company may be allotted and issued pursuant to the grant
or exercises of the options under the 2012 Share Option Scheme
shall not be exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as
at 8 August 2019 (i.e. 91,320,403 shares).
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Details of movements of the share options during the Year are
listed below in accordance with Rule 17.07 of the Listing Rules:
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Number of share options

BREHE
Exercise Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
Date of price per As at during during during as at Exercise  Vesting
Grantee grant share 2022.04.01 the Year the Year the Year  2023.03.31 period date
#2023%F
BR R2022F REFE REFE REFE 3A318

ERA BmA®m  TEE 4R ERE EBOE

(Note ii) HK$
(H1 i) BT

BAX K17 Tl BEAH

Directors (Note )

BE(Wit)

Ms. Koon 2021.08.30 3.99 73,000 = = = 73,000 2021.08.30- 2021.08.30
BExt 2031.08.29

Ms. Lui 2021.08.30 3.99 73,000 = = = 73,000 2021.08.30- 2021.08.30
Eut 2031.08.29
Employees (Note ii)

EE (W izi)

Mr. Koon 2021.08.30 3.99 73,000 = = = 73,000 2021.08.30- 2021.08.30
BRAE 2031.08.29

Koon Chun Ting 2021.08.30 3.99 73,000 = = = 73,000 2021.08.30- 2021.08.30
BRE 2031.08.29

Koon Wai Yan 2021.08.30 3.99 73,000 = = = 73,000 2021.08.30- 2021.08.30
BEM 2031.08.29

Total 365,000 s = s 365,000

@t

Notes: Bt -

(ii)

(iii)

These grantees are substantial shareholders of the Company (the
“Substantial Shareholders”).

These grantees are associates of the Substantial Shareholders.

The closing price of the shares immediately before the grant of
share options on 30 August 2021 was HK$3.90.

The number and/or exercise price of the share options may be

subject to adjustments in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
changes in the Company's share capital.
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Apart from the above movements, no share options were granted,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme during the Year.

As at 31 March 2023 and at the date of this annual report, an
aggregate of 365,000 shares under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme, representing approximately 0.49% of the total number
of issued shares of the Company, may be issued upon exercise of
share options granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme. Since
the adoption of the 2012 Share Option Scheme, no shares have
been issued upon exercise of all the share options granted under
the scheme.

Upon the expiry of the 2012 Share Option Scheme on 4 July
2022, no further share options can be granted thereunder, but
its provisions shall remain in full force and effect to the extent
necessary to give effect to the exercise of any share options
granted thereunder prior to its expiry which remain outstanding,
and the exercise of such options shall be subject to and in
accordance with the terms on which they were granted, the
provisions of the 2012 Share Option Scheme and the Listing
Rules. Following the expiry of the 2012 Share Option Scheme, the
Company has no other share option schemes as of the end of the
Year.

Further details of the 2012 Share Option Scheme of the Company

are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report.

62

B b B Sh - A G A R R R
20124 W RR ST BB B - 1T - KK
LR

7R2023F3A31H A R ANF 3 HHY - 20124
B8 A% 5T 2018 T A ££365,000/% A% 7 (1 4~
NAEBEBEITIR M L8 40.49%) 7] 1£20124F
RS TR B RETER T -
BEM2012FBARER S & - EREE
EHIREOWMBEERETHEERETRND -

2012 BE RS HE AT I 2022 7 AAB B B 1%
HBETAARHEMERE  EELER
MTHEXDAESTRRORER - BF
HIA T A (T ] R 17 150 B8 A% W 72 BN HA A
TMAIBRTE  TEEEEREABETH
BB 202FERETEG X R LW
FRA - 2012F AR EFTBI B HE - A AR
RAFERBEELERETE -

BEARFRONFEREFENFBIR
RE B TS TR R M RE35 o



SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF EMINENCE

On 29 June 2012, a share option scheme (the "Eminence Share
Option Scheme"”) was adopted and approved by the then
shareholders of Eminence for a period of 10 years commencing
on the adoption date whereby the board of directors of Eminence,
may at its discretion, grant share options to any eligible participant
to subscribe for the Eminence shares subject to the terms and
conditions as stipulated in the Eminence Share Option Scheme.

The scheme mandate limit in respect of the granting of options
to subscribe for shares of Eminence under the Eminence Share
Option Scheme has been refreshed at the annual general meeting
of Eminence held on 1 August 2019 which the total number of
shares of Eminence may be allotted and issued pursuant to the
grant or exercises of the options under the Eminence Share Option
Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the shares of Eminence in issue
as at 1 August 2019 (i.e. 310,583,205 Eminence shares).

During the Year, no share options were granted, exercised, lapsed,
cancelled or outstanding under the Eminence Share Option
Scheme. As at 31 March 2023, there was no outstanding share
option under the Eminence Share Option Scheme.

Upon the expiry of the Eminence Share Option Scheme on 28
June 2022, no share options can be granted thereunder and
Eminence has no other share option scheme.

Further details of the Eminence Share Option Scheme are set out
in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Share Option Scheme of the
Company” and “Share Option Scheme of Eminence” above and
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report, at no time during the Year was the Company, its holding
company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER
THE SFO

As at 31 March 2023, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of Part
XV of the SFO shows that, other than the interests disclosed in
“Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures”, the following shareholders had notified
the Company of their relevant interests in the ordinary shares and
underlying shares of the Company, which represent 5% or more of
the issued share capital of the Company:

BERFZRPEROATIREN
REREZR AR

7R2023F3A318 - ARRIIBEFEHFNLBE
IEPIEXVEBEIIHEEF 2 T ERRER
MET BRIESHRRD BAERMDEE
BECHEDRABIMBRE ERIN T
BREMEAQRBEREARAFEBR KRG
MEERD AR MZEEREE
RARABBEEITRA 5% L

Long positions in Shares of the Company RAEARRGDZHR
Number of Approximate %
Name of Shareholder Notes Capacity Shares Held Total of Shareholding
RREEE8B iz BB BFERGEAR By BEREAEIL
(Note iv)
(Ht #Ziv)
Magical Profits Limited / Beneficial owner 29,179,480 29,179,480 39.43%
EHBEAA
Accumulate More Profits Limited / Interest of controlled 29,179,480 29,179,480 39.43%
Corporation
XEHEE 2R
The Winterbotham Trust / Trustee 29,179,480 29,179,480 39.43%
Company Limited
BEBREXTARAA EFEA
Winterbotham Holdings Limited / Interest of controlled 29,179,480 29,179,480 39.43%
Corporation
REHEE 2R
Christopher Geoffrey Douglas / Interest of controlled 29,179,480 29,179,480 39.43%
Hooper Corporation
REHEE 2B R
Mr. Koon i Interest of spouse 13,972,664
BERAE L 3
ji - Beneficial owner 73,000 14,045,664 18.98%
EHBEBA
Sea Rejoice Limited i Beneficial owner 13,899,664 13,899,664 18.78%
LEERRDA EHBEBA
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Notes:

(i) 29,179,480 shares are registered in the name of and are beneficially
owned by Magical Profits Limited, which is wholly-owned by
Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned
by The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited in its capacity as
the trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of which
include Ms. Koon, an executive director of the Company). The
Winterbotham Trust Company Limited is owned as to 75% by
Winterbotham Holdings Limited. Winterbotham Holdings Limited
is owned as to approximately 99.99% by Mr. Christopher Geoffrey
Douglas Hooper.

(ii) 13,899,664 shares are owned by Sea Rejoice Limited which is
wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. Lui, an executive director of
the Company. On 30 August 2021, Ms. Lui was granted 73,000
share options of the Company under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme. Mr. Koon, being the spouse of Ms. Lui, is deemed to be
interested in 13,972,664 shares of the Company by virtue of the
SFO.

(i) These interests represent options granted to Mr. Koon as beneficial
owner under the 2012 Share Option Scheme, details of which are
disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme of the
Company"” in this directors’ report.

(iv)  The percentage represented the number of shares over the total
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2023 was
73,988,403 shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
required to be recorded in the register kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions for the Year are set out in note
37 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
The Company has not entered into other transactions with its
connected parties which are required to be disclosed in this annual
report in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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With regard to the related party transactions which also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions,
the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in so far as they
are applicable.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of any business of the Group were entered
into or existed during the Year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Year, the five (5) largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 94.4% of the Group's purchases and
the largest supplier accounted for approximately 52.4% of the
Group's purchases.

The five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 43.1% of the Group's revenue and the largest
customer accounted for approximately 19.7% of the Group’s
revenue.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the
Company, none of the Directors and their respective close
associates or any shareholders of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
total issued share capital) have any interest in the five (5) largest
suppliers or customers of the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group values its employees who are the Group’'s most
important assets. Staff are rewarded with competitive
remuneration packages and benefits. The Group is committed to
fostering a conducive, harmonious and discrimination-free working
environment. Occupational health and safety is the top priority
across the Group's operations. Safety guidelines are established to
safeguard the employees from any occupational hazards.
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The Group is also dedicated to providing high quality properties,
products and services to meet its customers’ needs and is striving
to maintain good relationship and close communication with our
business partners, banks, contractors and vendors. Thus, senior
management of the Group have kept good communication,
promptly exchanged ideas and shared business update with them
as and when appropriate. During the Year, there was no material
and significant dispute between the Group and its business
partners.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable and other donations of
approximately HK$1,322,000 (2022: HK$1,189,000).

REMUNERATION MECHANISM

Details of the Company’s remuneration mechanism are set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Bye-laws, and subject to the applicable laws and
regulations, every Director and other officers of the Company shall
be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any
of them shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices and related
matters provided that the indemnity shall not extend to any matter
in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any
of them. A Directors Liability Insurance is in place to protect the
Directors and officers of the Company against potential costs and
liabilities arising from claims brought against the Directors and
officers of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company's corporate governance practices are set
out in the “"Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float of its shares as required under
the Listing Rules as of the date of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REVIEW

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. Information
of the duties of Audit Committee and its composition are set out
in section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual
report.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF REPORTING
PERIOD

Events after the end of reporting period are set out in section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” and in note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
have been audited by Deloitte, certified public accountants, who
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
as independent auditor of the Company at the 2023 AGM.

By order of the Board
Koon Ho Yan Candy
President and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 June 2023
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the "ESG
Report”) was prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.
It provides an overview of the ESG management approach as well
as sustainability initiatives and performance of the Group with
respectively key performance indicators (“KPIs") for the period
from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023 (the “Reporting Year").

Reporting Scope

The scope of this ESG Report covers our property investment,
investment in securities and others and loan financing operations
which represent the Group’s most significant economic,
environmental and social impacts. As compared to last year, there
were no changes to the scope of reporting.

Reporting Principles
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BERABRESD IREBE EMRAMEE =+t
HOGRE HeRERABEEINNEX
B o NS Bl AN & B 0202294718
F2023F3ANBHBM (REEE ) HIRIE -
HERELEEFHARASEEREEK
MERBUREENBREREZ(EESE
MIEE]) -

HEE

AR HEREABRENHERERM
MYERE BHEREMKRERERBE
X% DHASELE RERLERRA
AFZFEINETRE - BEFMAL
BERELEZS -

BEE ¥ R Al

Identified ESG issues that are
material to the Group and
stakeholders for disclosure
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Disclosed KPIs in a measurable
manner
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Adopted consistent
methodologies for meaningful
data comparisons over time
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Provided an unbiased picture of
the Group's ESG performance
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Governance Structure

The Board has overall responsibility for the oversight and decision
making of the Company’s ESG matters, including policies,
measures, performance and risks. The Board is responsible for
identifying, evaluating, priortising and managing material ESG
issues. Under the leadership of the Board, relevant departments
and business units play an important role to ensure the smooth
adoption of ESG practice, from policy development to action
plan implementation. Delegated managers are accountable for
the actual implementation of the policies and in turn delegate
responsibility and authority to subordinates staff according to their
functions. The effectiveness of ESG practice and the progress
made against targets are reviewed by the Board in meetings.

The Group has also collected the views of key stakeholders on
ESG matters during daily operations and conducted a materiality
assessment to identify important ESG issues for the Group, details
of which are disclosed in the sections headed "“Stakeholders’
Engagement” and “Materiality Assessment” below.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group attaches great importance to the valuable opinions
of stakeholders. We maintain close communications with major
stakeholders including customers, shareholders, employees,
suppliers, business partners, government departments and
regulators through various channels, so to collect their opinions
and suggestions on the Group and enable us to make continuous
improvements. The relevant channels for communication are set
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out as follows:

Stakeholder Groups

Engagement Channels

BHHEER SHRE
Employees * Meetings and Briefings e Employee Activities
B8 eERER EEIED
° Training Sessions e Surveys and Interviews
HZEEI SESFEEDS A
° Intemal Emails and Publications
A BB B B K R )
Customers e Corporate Website e Property Sales Activities
B NEHEE ) % 3H &R B
e Surveys e Property Management Work
FEHRE MEERE T
Suppliers and Business e Screening and Assessments e Surveys
Partners B R R T BESEEES
HEMREEREH * Business l\/Ieetings
%i’\& = u%“&:
Investors and Shareholders e Annual General Meeting e Analyst Briefings and Announcements
KREERBKRR BREBERSG DMEER R DM
Government and Regulators e Consultations
T R B B 1R i )
Community e Community Events
ft 1@ E &
Media ® Press Releases
e ¥ E
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Materiality Assessment EEMFIMG
The Group conducted a materiality review to determine material AEBEZR=FBFRFETEEMHEZ - U
ESG issues for disclosure by following a three-step process: ETEAREREENEERE HERE

SRR
N
Reviewed ESG disclosures of industry peers to identify common disclosure practices.
Identification ZHEELATRNERE  HERERFESE  UEIERNEESES -

a5l )

Proritisation

HEBEHS

Validation

B

Consolidated and analysed the results of the peer benchmarking exercise to develop a prioritised list of ESG
issues of varying materiality levels for confirmation.

FREIMEFEQAAEENRNER  UBE-—RERBEHIINRE - HEREEEEBE - DUMtRR - J

\
The Group’s senior management convened a meeting to confirm a finalised list of material KPIs for disclosure.

FEEEREEERAHER  URREZFHRENEEEE  FAKESE -

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY TtEHESSEE

The Group recognises that our business has an important role in =~ NEBER#HD| > RPN EEBREZEEF
contributing to a more sustainable future. As we drive business B ABHEEMAFENREIELTH -
growth, we strive to integrate corporate social responsibility ERMHEHEKEEORE  HMBNE
("CSR") into our day-to-day operations. Guided by our CSR Policy, ¥ dH e@&F((b¥dSEE)MARE
we have made continuous efforts to manage our environmental 2i& - A E¥H ESTHENEET » &
footprint, stock a robust talent pipeline and cater to the needs of FITEHTEHEERMNBRBECY » HHE R
the disadvantaged. KBWAABE TREBDHENTEE -
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OUR ENVIRONMENT

The Company is committed to the sustainable management of
our environmental footprint and continual improvement of our
performance. In line with our environmental stewardship, we
focus our efforts on energy efficiency, resource management and
cultivation of environmental awareness among employees.

The Group strictly complied with applicable environmental laws
and regulations, including but not limited to the Air Pollution
Control Ordinance (Chapter 311), Waste Disposal Ordinance
(Chapter 354) and Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 358)
of the Laws of Hong Kong. During the Reporting Year, the Group
was not aware of any serious violations of relevant environmental
laws and regulations.

Improve energy efficiency

K EREIR K 2

Energy Conservation

BRI REIR

HPIVIRR
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Promote staff awareness
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Monitor consumption data
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Energy Consumption and Emissions

Electricity consumption in our managed properties and office
premises represents a significant proportion of our carbon
footprint. The Group targets to reduce the energy consumption
and emission. The Group is committed to reducing or maintaining
the total Greenhouse Gas (“GHG") emission intensity between
90% to 120% for the next reporting year, against the level of
the baseline year ended 31 March 2023. To this end, we actively
explore energy-saving opportunities and adopt hardware upgrades
to enhance our energy performance over time. At our managed
properties, we transitioned all our lighting fixtures to LED lights and
equipped motion sensor controls in public areas to ensure efficient
energy use and to minimise unnecessary consumption. We also
maintain indoor temperatures at a comfortable 24°C to 26°C and
installed low emissivity or double-glazed windowpanes to optimise
thermal conditions and insultation, reducing heat loss. Our offices
are also renovated with energy efficiency in mind, for instance, we
maximise natural lighting wherever possible to reduce the need for
lighting fixtures. We also set up an independently controlled lighting
system to allow for flexible and efficient usage of lights in different
office areas. When procuring appliances and electronics, the
Group has placed an emphasis on choosing newer more energy-
efficient models. To maximise cooling efficiency, we regularly
hire professional technicians to clean or replace our air filtration
elements. During lunch breaks and outside of office hours, the air-
conditioning and power connections are also partially turned off.

The Group’s air emissions and GHG emissions mainly generated
from the combustion of purchased electricity for office operation
and fuels by self-owned vehicles. The emissions and energy
consumption data for the Reporting Period are presented in below
together with comparative figures of preceding period:
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Air Emissions & 58 5 7 UnitE {y 2022/23% E 2021/22% E
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) & &1t % kgF®= 15.99 N/AZ i
Particulate Matter (PM) £ L %) kg T & 118 N/AR i@ B
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) & @1t ¥ kgT 3= 0.41 N/AZ i
1. The Company starts to disclose the air emissions data in 2022/23. 1. N2 R 1R2022/234F [ 5 6 B B R BE R
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Greenhouse Gas Emissions Unit

BERBHHE By 2022/23% E 2021/225 E
Scope 1 emissions tonnes of CO_e 233.87 36.09
HENHNE M-S tiRE =

Removal (Tree Planting) (Scope 1) tonnes of CO%e 0.23 N/AA & FA
RBR 2 (B KB E)(#E) W= iR E E

Scope 2 emission tonnes of CO_e 118.47 173.98
gEE2HEHE WS tiRE =

Scope 3 emission' tonnes of COe 3.56 2.90
HEHME WS iR E &

Total emission tonnes of CO_e 355.67 212.97
B = W —EtiRE =

Intensity tonnes of COe/FTE 5.47 2.39
R WM_fiREEFRE2BES

BRMZETHRNTAMERBAKNAE-
2021/ 22F EMEBEERAE  URBE
BOEFE R SR AEREHERR o

0 We take into account the electricity used for processing fresh water L
by government departments. The data of 2021/22 has been adjusted
to reflect the actual consumption and/or associated emissions.

Energy Consumption Unit

RE By 2022/23% E 2021/225 E
Direct Energy Consumption ‘000 kWh 252.35 121.37
B T {6 F & B

Indirect Energy Consumption ‘000 kWh 272.74 334.91
BEZEER = T &+ FL

Total Energy Consumption ‘000 kWh 525.09 456.28
e TETE

Intensity 000 kWh/FTE 8.07 5.13
g TETE® SA2BES
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Waste and Resource Management

Due to the Group’s business nature, it did not generate hazardous
waste; as for non-hazardous waste, it is mainly domestic and paper
waste from its office operations. Waste lamps, carton box and
used papers were collected by the outsourced service providers
and management office, and waste printing cartridges and other
hardware wastes were sent back to suppliers.

R - HERERHRE

BURERER

HRAEENEELEE  EXTELERE
BEYV EXNEETEEYD HXERXA
MAELEBENEARBRERY -BEER
A MRAE R P R AR R SN B AR A R i
BREEREKE MERHME2REAM
BrEEY XL EHERE

Non-hazardous waste produced Unit

BEBREYELLE By 2022/23F E 2021/22F E

Concrete and Metal Tonne 2,108.50 1,020.00

BET RSB 148

Paper Waste Tonne 1.78 2.00

FE 4R U

Recycled Metal Tonne 1,133.60 118.00

EN ey i

Excavated Materials, Metal and General Tonne 2,654.20 N/A
Refuse U5 i A

BEME  @BR MR

Total amount of waste produced Tonne 5,898.08 1140.00

BEYELHE I

By intensity Tonne/FTE 90.74 12.81

= WE %R 2B ES

s
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The Group is committed to reducing or maintaining the production
of non-hazardous waste intensity between 90% to 120% for the
next reporting year, against the level of the baseline year ended 31
March 2023. The Group has taken a series of measures to reduce
use of papers and for other general waste, including:

° use digital copy file whenever possible, including for financial
reports, meeting notices, circulars, and corporate information
issued to our shareholders which significantly reduced our
printing and mailing

° when hard copies are necessary, we promote the use of
recycled and Forest Stewardship Council certified paper and
use double-sided printing by default

° in our office common area, we provide durable and reusable
food containers, cutlery, and cups to eliminate single-use

plastics as much as possible

° set up multi-material recycling collection bins in the public
areas of our managed properties
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The Group believes that water is a limited and valuable
resource and is indispensable to us as well as to society and
the environment. Therefore, we strive to reducing the water
consumption and are committed to conforming with principles
of water conservation in our business operations. During the
Reporting Year, we have not encountered any problems in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose. We conduct regular monthly
inspections on our pipes and taps to ensure no leakages in our
office premises and managed properties. Additionally, sensor taps
and water efficient fixtures were installed in all the washrooms to
better manage water consumption.

R - HERERHRE

AEBRRKRKLD-—EERAEENER
HBHRMAXNEEERREL AT D o Bt
BB BRKEL BT IRERMNE
BEEDETHAOKNREY - RBEFE -
HAIE R BUE AR £ 388 BE A R o
BMPEBEAETHREETBRKESR  BRRK
ORISR EEYELBELRIR/K -
BESN - HPIEEMA LT H %K R EKE
BREKEKE  NWEHHMEERKE -

Water Consumption ¥k 2 Unit B {7 2022/23F E 2021/22% &
—intotal A £ 5 M3y 75 K 8,328 6,781
— by intensity LA %3 & 5 m¥FTES oK /SR 2B ES 128.12 105.95
Cultivating Environmental Awareness BERRER

To build a lasting environmentally conscious culture, we actively
raise sustainability awareness of our employees. At our office
premises, signs and internal notices relating to responsible energy,
water and material consumption are posted in common areas and
washrooms to strengthen the awareness of energy conservation
and consumption reduction for all employees, which helps to
guide all employees to form good habits of conservation and
environmental protection, thus laying a solid foundation for the
sustainable development of the Group.

During the Reporting Period, there were no non-compliance cases

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

.

REIFBANRREZR XX HMABEHZE
SREIMNAKERRERE ERMAORA
B AHBRERATFEBRETREE
EMEER - KRR ERAEBENRERERLA
MBS AR EBETHEEMREEE
EEPREELREIERBHONMERREN
RUHBE tMAAKEMNARERRE

EREMER -

RBEHHE SEEERMBEREHN
AAKR LS AEEREZEEDH
ELRBENERMBERE -
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B -

Climate Change

HERER

wE

To address the climate-related impacts and risks to our business,
we have been adopting different strategies to enhance our
governance and improve our resilience to climate change. In terms
of risk management, we have identified the climate-related risk as

follows.

Climate-related risks

Impacts to our operations

RIR21

REHSHEMEBOREEBZER AR
BRI RREE AR E R L RE LR
RELCHNBERESD -FEAREEMS » K
P92 8 Bl DA T SRR AE B L B o

RIZERAARE HRMEBHNZE

Hurricane and other
extreme weather
events

Change in long-term
rainfall pattern

Possible damages to the physical
properties and building structure, and
disruption of utilities supply which may
lead to loss in business and revenue.

Possible damages to the building
facilities and structure, and an increase to
the building operation and maintenance
costs.

In terms of precautionary measures to minimise the potential
damages related to the risks:

1) Display typhoon signals in an obvious location of the

buildings;

2) Remind tenants to shut the windows and lock doors

securely;

3)  Inspect the pumping system and remove any blockage of
drainage outlets and channels; and

4)  Perform routine inspection and/or maintenance on buildings

and facilities.

The Group is determined to mitigate the impact of climate change
on the operation and will constantly review the policy to improve
the measures and disclosures.
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OUR PEOPLE

Employees are the engine which drives the success of our
business. As such, we remain committed to providing an inclusive,
engaging and supportive work environment which facilitates
personal development and safeguards the health and well-being of
all employees.

R - HERERHRE

EMHHWET

BETHHRMOEBEEKD - Bt - &
M—EZNRH-—EZHEST TEZH
RIS F TERRE  MMEEBAZER
WREZEBETHREMBH -

Employment Occupational
and Labour Health and Training and Caring
Standard Safety Development Company
BB K55 TR BEREREREZE gk BE R FARETHAT

OUR PEOPLE EHMMET

Employment and Labour Standards

The Group takes great care to ensure a workplace free from
any prejudice or discrimination, supporting fair recruitment and
employment practices based on individual merit, experience and
qualifications regardless of race, religion, gender, disability, family
status, age or any other basis restricted by law.

During the Reporting Year, the Group has strictly complied with
any relevant laws and regulations, including but not limited to:

° Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

o Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485
of the Laws of Hong Kong)

° Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the
Laws of Hong Kong)

o Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws of
Hong Kong)

7S

BREKRETER

AEBEFREZERRIESARBEMAR
REER XHEREALEN BREE
BEORAFRERERES WAwEEK-
RE MR BAKR REMR - FikHAE
fa] B SOR R R BI AR o

RBEFE AEEESHERETEMEREA
FRMOER  BRETERR:

o (ERBIEDNEBEEDESTE)
o (BEHIMERTE S EIEFINE B LB
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During the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of any serious
violations of laws and regulations that had created significant
impacts on the business and operations of the Group relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare.

The Group's total workforce (excluding Director) by Gender,
Employment Category, Age Group and Geographical Region:

RBEEFE AEBLTABEEFMKE
EREMEFMEER BREREN THF
B BRH FERE 2ot RESR
AR B a M Rt AR EOER - B Y
AEENEBREEERBERTENER -

AEBZER - BEEE  FhARN Lt
BEEONEERAB(TERES):

Total Employment Categories
EEAH ¥ 5l 2022/23F & 2021/22F &
Gender Male 32 53
1 51 B
Female 33 36
i
Employment category Full time 65 89
EEHER S
Part time 0 0
B
Age group Below 30 1 4
F e 48 Bl 305 AT
30-50 32 38
3075% £505%
Above 50 32 47
505% WA £
Geographical region Hong Kong 62 85
i @ BE
Mainland China 3 4
R B A

30
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R - HERERHRE

The Group's employee turnover rate (excluding Directors) by ANEBEILZ MR« FHE AR iR 2 H &R
Gender, Age Group and Geographical Region: BRAER(TMBEES) :
Percentage of Turnover rate Categories 2022/23 2021/22
REEFDL ¥ 5l 2022/23F E 2021/22F &
Gender Male 15.6% 13.2%
% 7 XS
Female 3.0% 16.7%
7
Age group Below 30 0% 0%
F AR 305 AT
30-50 6.3% 23.7%
305% £505%
Above 50 12.5% 8.5%
505% WA £
Geographical region Hong Kong 9.7% 15.3%
i @ aBE
Mainland China 0% 0%
H B A

The use of child labour is strictly forbidden in any of our operations.
During the recruitment process, applicants are required to present
identification documents to the Human Resources Department
for age and identity verification to prevent the use of child labour.
Human Resources Department is responsible for checking and
scrutinizing applicants’ identification documents, education
background and qualifications to guarantee that applicants meet
the recruitment criteria.

Use of forced labour is also strictly prohibited. Employees are
encouraged to report any cases relating to forced labour practices.

The Group constantly reviews and assesses its employment
practices, as well as engaging employees, to avoid child and
forced labour and ensure compliance with relevant laws. If any
case of non-compliance is discovered, the Group will immediately
terminate employment and further investigate to avoid recurrence.
During the Reporting Year, no operation has reported any child
or forced labour. Also, the Group was not aware of any serious
violations of laws and regulations that had created significant
impacts on the business and operations of the Group relating to
preventing child and forced labour.
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Occupational Health and Safety

Ensuring staff health and safety of is always our priority. The Group
has strictly complied with relevant laws and regulations, including
but not limited to the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
(Chapter 509). Following our safety guidelines, we have worked
diligently and implemented precautionary measures to minimise
potential occupational hazards across our operations. For instance,
an emergency protocol has also been established providing
guidance on standard procedures to handle extreme weather
situations such as typhoons and rainstorm warnings. At our office
premises, apart from conducting regular fire drills and carpet
cleaning, we ensure a clear indication of emergency evacuation
routes which are unobstructed at all times. Similar control
measures have been put in place at our managed properties
alongside quarterly inspections of the firefighting system, including
sprinklers and smoke detectors.

During the Reporting Year and the past three years, the Group
had not identified work related injuries or fatalities and there are
no lost days due to work injuries. Also, the Group was not aware
of any serious violations of laws and regulations hat had created
significant impacts on the business and operations of the Group
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

Training and Development

To remain agile in a fast-paced business environment, we support
staff at all levels to enhance their professional knowledge to
cater to the needs of employees from different departments and
at varied career stages. To encourage continuous learning, we
subsidise staff members to participate in different external training,
including courses, seminars and workshops. Our employees are
also eligible to receive one day of paid study leave for the purpose
of learning and development.
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Breakdown of total employees trained (excluding Directors) by

REMMEEELIONZIEREAZ(T

Gender and Employee Category: BIEEE)HMA:
Percentage of total
employees trained Categories
ZlEREABET L ¥ 5l 2022/23F & 2021/22F &
Gender Male 18.75% 11.32%
14 B B
Female 30.30% 22.22%
g
Employment category Junior Staff 16.67% 20.00%
EEER MNHET
Middle Managers 26.32% 12.00%
RRERE
Senior Managers 37.50% 12.50%
=R E R

Average Training Hours Completed Per Employee (excluding
Directors) by Gender and Employee Category:

Average training hours

BUENLEBEEEALA I NERZREETE
BREE)TRE I FHEE:

completed per employee Categories
BEEREEXZHZINFIRE Fhl 2022/23F & 2021/22F &
hours/ /| ¥ hours/ /| ¥
Gender Male 0.81 1.36
% Al S
Female 117 2927
M
Employment category Junior Staff 0.48 4.44
EERA MFZET
Middle Managers 1.32 2556
RRE R
Senior Managers 1.56 2.46
mRERE

83



Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2022/23 Annual Report

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R - HERERHRE

Caring Company

To attract and retain every talent, we offer attractive remuneration
packages and fringe benefits, including medical health insurance
and a range of leave entitlements. We provide employees who
work overtime with overtime pay and other related benefits in
accordance with relevant laws, regulations and internal policies.
Our human resources department is responsible for annual
performance appraisals and determines promotion arrangements
and salary increments. Additionally, we encourage our employees
to maintain a good work-life balance by organising different
staff activities such as festive celebrations, weekly breakfasts
and fitness classes. To enable employees to share festive joy
with their families, such as Chinese New Year's Eve, Mid-
Autumn Festival and Christmas Eve, staff is dismissed earlier for
celebration. Through these events, we look to cultivate a stronger
communal and caring spirit within the Group and facilitate deeper
interpersonal connections among our colleagues.

OUR VALUE CHAIN
Supply Chain Management

As part of our supply chain management approach, we prioritise
business partners who share our dedication to environmentally
and socially responsible practices. To ensure our stringent
requirements are fully met, appropriate monitoring and assessment
mechanisms have been put in place. Suppliers who fail to deliver
the promised quality are subject to a series of inspections and
reviews. This holistic approach enables us to better manage ESG-
related risks arising from our supply chain whilst building effective
long-term relationships with our partners.

At our managed properties we have appointed specialised
consultants to provide advisory services on equipment and
materials procurement. The consultants have been specially
directed by the Group to consider sustainability factors such as
energy consumption and environmentally sustainable materials in
addition to quality and costs.

During the Reporting Year, the Group has a total of 67 suppliers
(2021: 164), of which 62 suppliers in Hong Kong, 4 suppliers in
Mainland China and 1 supplier in Singapore. All major suppliers
have been reviewed.
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Responsible Services and Business Ethics

The delivery of quality and responsible services is essential to our
business sustainability. As such, we have established stringent
mechanisms and standard procedures to provide employees with
guiding principles in relation to quality assurance, customer service
and privacy.

In respect of the Group’s investment in securities and others
business, we follow the guidelines outlined by the Independent
Commission Against Corruption and Securities and Futures
Commission (“SFC"). The investment team comprises of
professionals with diversified backgrounds licensed with the
SFC in various regulated activities: dealing in securities (Type 1),
advising on securities (Type 4) and asset management (Type 9).

Anti-corruption

The Company upholds the highest ethical standards and
accountability throughout our operations and has a zero-tolerance
approach for corruption or malpractice of any form. All employees
are required to follow our Employee’s Handbook which outlines
our expectations for professional and appropriate behaviour.

The Group strictly complies with all applicable laws and regulations
regarding anti-corruption, including the Anti-money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Chapter 615 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

In March 2022, the Company had adopted an Anti-corruption
Policy which sets out the basic standard of conduct which applies
to all directors, officers and employees at all levels of the Group.
Pursuant to the policy, all employees (1) should not accept gifts
and benefits that are beyond common business hospitality; and (2)
should not offer a bribe to any person for the purpose of obtaining
or retaining business. The Company has made the policy available to
all employees via internal e-mails and company website. During the
Reporting Year, the Group provided regular trainings on anti-corruption
policy for the directors and employees by (i) online seminars organised
by regulatory and professional bodies and (ii) reading articles
and materials in respect of regulatory updates. Managers or key
employees are also required to ensure that all employees reporting to
them, and external parties within their area of responsibility working
on behalf of their respective companies, understand and comply with
the prohibitions in this policy.
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The Group conducts prudent due diligence to identify and verify the
customers and beneficial owners, as well as the purpose and intended
nature of the business relationship, constant monitoring to identify
and report suspicious activities or transactions, comprehensive record
keeping and staff awareness training regarding its daily operations.

During the Reporting Year, no legal cases regarding corruption were
brought against the Group or its employees, and the Group is not
aware of any incidents of bribery, extortion, fraud or other violations.
There were no confirmed cases of non-compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations relating to business ethics practices.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Group has enhanced its group-level whistleblowing
mechanism by the adoption of a comprehensive Whistleblowing
Policy in March 2022. The policy has been established for our
employees and the relevant third parties (e.g. customers, suppliers,
creditors and debtors) who deal with the Group to raise concerns
in confidence about suspected misconducts, malpractices or
fraudulent activities relating to the Group.

All employees and the relevant third parties of the Group are
encouraged to report material risk issues or transactions by a
designated form directly addressed to the Audit Committee of
the Company. Depending upon the circumstances, an appropriate
investigating officer with suitable seniority at the Company will be
appointed or a special committee will be set up by the Company
to investigate the matter. A final report, with recommendations
for change or improvement (if applicable), will be produced to the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee will then review the final
report and if appropriate, make recommendations to the Board.
The employee/external party who reports the concern will receive
in writing the outcome of the investigation.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group respects intellectual property rights. Employees are
required to follow the Group's policies and procedures regarding
intellectual property right when making use of materials, pictures,
contents as well as all other forms of private intellectual property
that are not produced by their own or possessed by the Group in
order to comply with relevant laws such as the Patents Ordinance
(Chapter 514 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Besides, the Group
has registered its trademark and retained a detailed record of the
intellectual property rights it possesses to protect its intellectual
property rights.
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Complaint-handling

We actively seek feedback from our tenants and have also set
out designated communications channels for any complaints or
enquires. Once a complaint, enquiry, or maintenance request has
been received, it will be logged and classified based on the nature
of the issue and level of urgency. The issue will then be passed
along to the relevant teams which will handle and communicate
back to the tenants according to our standard procedures in a
timely and effective manner.

During the Reporting Year, the Group did not received any products
and service related complaints.

Data Privacy

The Group places great importance on data privacy and customer
information handling. We set out clear privacy guidelines
and procedures covering the use and management of data
and information in accordance with the relevant regulatory
requirements, including the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Only authorised
personnel can access customer data on a need-to-know and need-
to-use basis. Employees are required to follow our personal data
handling procedures and only directly relevant personal information
required for business transactions are collected from customers.
No personal data is collected by any third parties without prior
consent and authorisation from the data owners.

During the Reporting Year, there were no complaint cases relating
to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.

OUR COMMUNITY

We leverage our resources to contribute to the position
development of the communities we serve. Working together
with the Easyknit Charitable Foundation, we help to support
underprivileged members of our communities through donations
and collaboration with other charities and social enterprises.
During the Reporting Year, the Group contributed approximately
HKD1,320,000 in education and health care sectors. Apart from
offering financial and in-kind contributions to people in need, we
encourage staff to participate in different charitable activities and
voluntary services.
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HKEx ESG Reporting Guide Content Index

HKEx KPI

Bk 32 P A 2

BERE|

Description

BXA(RE - tERERBRREEDR

Page Index

A. Environmental
RIE

BAMER

1t

B %S

A1
Emissions

23587

Al General Disclosure 72-73, 75
— MR
A1.1 The type of emissions and respective emissions 73-74
data
PER ) 1 5 2 AE B BE BB
A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) 73-74
greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity
BExEE) ke REE(EE)RZERE IR A
W B R (0 ) TS
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, | Due to the business
where appropriate, intensity nature of the Group,
FFTEEBEEEWMBEE (LANEFTE) X (1 #E A) % | this KPI is considered
E not applicable.
ERAEEMNER M
B ARERIER
WEBTER -
Al1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) 75
and, where appropriate, intensity
FFEAREEEDRE UWEFA8E) R(MER =
IS
A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps 73
taken to achieve them
W FrEI IR EEER AEELEEMIER
B Y 25 B
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous 76

wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them
HAEEBEEREEREYMN T L REMAE
YHREEERAENELBEMEKRIN LT
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HKEx KPI
B X AT % Description Page Index
HERESR M HEiS%&s5|
A2 A2 General Disclosure 72-73, 75, 77
Use of Resources —MREE
"REA A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type 74
(e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in "000s)
and intensity
REAEASNEER SEEER(NE - R3oh)
BEEUTETFRSAE)REER
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity 77
BEKEREE
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set 73,76
and steps taken to achieve them
MM PRI Ve RE AR ERERAEDE LR
13 P R ER B 20 B
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing 77
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them
e it SR ER @ R KR Rl BEA R AR PRET AL
WAKBZERRREINELAFRMEMA LT
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products | Due to the business
(in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per|nature of the Group,
unit produced this KPI is considered
SR MATABEMBMNRE (LABEFTE) X (203 A) | not applicable.
BAEEEMLE ERAEENEBM
2 tERERER
HRETER -
A3 A3 General Disclosure 72-73, 75, 77
The Environment and — MR
Na:tural Respl{rces A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities 73-77
BRERKRER .
on the environment and natural resources and the
actions taken to manage them
HAEBIHEHRERARERNEATER
EXRNEREEHEZENTE
A4 A4 General Disclosure 78
Climate Change — MR R
REREL A4 Description of the significant climate-related issues 78

which have impacted, and those which may impact,
the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them
HMBERRAGEEHETAEETENEAR
REBEEE REHTH
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HKEx KPI
B X AT # Description Page Index
BEMER HEiS%&5|
B. Social
e
B1 B1 General Disclosure 79-80
Employment — =
L B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age 80
group and geographical region
BRUHR - BEEER FRANEKMWEE S OE
B8
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and 81
geographical region
TR FRAMNRMEE SDHNEBRAE
B2 B2 General Disclosure 82
Health and Safety — B E
(]
RRRZ2 B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred 82
in each of the past three years including the
reporting year
BEZFEZFEBRBEFE)EENAIMET
oD @5 =
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury 82
EIBEIXIEAH
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety 82
measures adopted and how they are implemented
and monitored
M PTERME B ERERE T 2E R AREHA
BITRERAE
B3 B3 General Disclosure 82
Development and —MREE
Training .
o B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and 83
BEREI
employee category
RUENKREEREFESHXIEEB DL
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee 83
by gender and employee category B
RENMREEEMNE S  BREETKZIN
15 R B
B4 B4 General Disclosure 79-80
Labour Standards — =
2T %R . .
ETRA B4.1 Description of measures to review employment 81
practices to avoid child and forced labour
i T B ES B E AR R ET REH S
T
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such 81

practices when discovered
M EZERERBAREERE BB LRI
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HKEx KPI
B X AT % Description Page Index
HERESR M HEiS%&s5|
B5 B5 General Disclosure 84
Supply Chain — MR
I{\ﬂa@ngﬁg%mf;nt B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region 84
~ BB O EREE
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging 84
suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices
are being implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored
HAEHEBERHEERNED  MERTEBED
Bt EREEE URBARTRERFE
B5.3 Description of practices used to identify 84
environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored
MR EABRNEEESEARGNRERTGRE
BEED - ARMBERITRERT X
B5.4 Description of practices used to promote 84
environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored
HAEREHEERASREREZARRER LR
BIER - ARMBEAITRERFE
B6 B6 General Disclosure 85
Product — MR
%ezpinsmlhty B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject | Due to the business
mEE
to recalls for safety and health reasons nature of the Group,
EEICEXERBE AL Z EEEEEIEHMZA | this KPlis considered
Bl HE D not applicable.
ERAEENRBE
2 BB ERIER
WRANER -
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints 87
received and how they are dealt with
EEERERRRBHORFEHENUNRES FE
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and 86
protecting intellectual property rights
et PR 4 RRE A EE S E B
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall | Due to the business
procedures nature of the Group,
HiliEER cRAEAERERER this KPI is considered
not applicable.
ERAREENEBK ML
B hERERIER
HBESTER -
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy 87

policies, how they are implemented and monitored
ROHEEEHRERLEBBE - U RBEHT
N ERTE

Sl
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HKEx KPI

B X AT # Description Page Index

BEREE A HEiS%&5|
B7 B7 General Disclosure 85-86
Anti-corruption — AR
RES .

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding 86

corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases
REBRANEBETASIHEHESRBIITEEEN
B FARGNEE RFALE

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle- 85-86
blowing procedures, how they are implemented and
monitored

AP BEERBREF  URBBERITRESR
WAl

B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to 85-86
directors and staff.
HARMEEREIRHEORETHEI -

B8 B8 General Disclosure 87
Community — MR
;;\Es*;rgnt B8.1 Focus areas of contribution 87
FrIEREE
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area 87

EHIBREMAERNER
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF
EASYKNIT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Easyknit
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 99 to
273, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2023, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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B A2 REN RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

BARESSEE

FARBFTFRAERERMOEE HE -
REAEARBREANBATRA/SEEN
FH GULFARERMEAEBERAH
BHREMEABARETREN - RATD
SHELEHREHEFNER -

27

S

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matter
BRENEE
Valuation of investment properties

REYEZ1GE

We identified the valuation of investment properties
as a key audit matter due to the significant judgments
and assumptions made by management of the Group in
determining the fair value.

mY SREEEEREBETAFERIREXRZH
B BR - RABNRENE cHER—RERE
BES=N

At 31 March 2023, the fair value of investment
properties was approximately HK$2,565 million,
with a fair value gain recognised in profit or loss
of approximately HK$200 million (note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements).

M2023F3H3MB: | B W X2 X ¥ E D A
2,565,000,000% 7T REER R ZAFERRLN A
200,000,000 7T (47 & BF 75 2= M1 5215) ©

The Group's investment properties are stated at fair
value based on valuations performed by independent
firms of qualified professional property valuers (the
“Valuers"”). Details of the valuation techniques and key
inputs used in the valuations are disclosed in note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements.

EEEREMECATEDNIREBYUGEREER
ERT(HEMDELEZEEIR - BEMKRABZ
BEFERFEHAZFBERGEEHBRERWM T
15K FE o
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RMNETNTEEARETEE

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

BMEREMELREBEZHBREFBHE:
° Obtaining an understanding from the Valuers and
management of the Group about the valuation
techniques, performance of the property
markets, significant assumptions adopted, critical
judgmental areas, key inputs and data used in the
valuations;

HEEMR EEBREEEBETHRMEBEAE D
¥MBERE FRACEZERR T ZHEEH
B fHEMRAZEFEZH A REE:

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuers;

AELEMNER EORERIE:

Assessing the integrity of information provided
by management of the Group to the Valuers by
comparing, on a sample basis, details of rentals
to the respective underlying existing lease
agreements; and

BRAAMETALBKERREEOCESFB

Ml ESEEEEREGHEMZENZE
BiE X

Assessing reasonableness of key inputs used
by the Valuers and management of the Group
by comparing relevant market information
with similar properties and assessing the
appropriateness of specific assumptions of the
properties by reference to character, location and
other individual factors which affect the valuation
of properties.
FRCBAEAYEMRBAMSERTR2ER
BYEGBEZYESRS LEMEAER A
ZEUTEEEBRZAES M - WA G ERD
R EEEERERACEERAZEGREME -
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Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. WWe have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. WWe remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Leung Chui Shan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 June 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEsRkEtAEZEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

2023 2022
20234 20224
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FET
(Restated)
(=&EH)
Continuing operations S BB
Revenue EER 5
Sales of properties HEYE 28,647 248,576
Rental income AelA 43,255 57073
Interest income from loan financing REEHREE 25 B WA 13,224 16,085
Building management EFERE 1,636 1,656
86,762 323,390
Cost of properties sold and services 5 & ¥ 3 & 1% # R 75 Ak A&
rendered (27,777) (175,796)
Gross profit EH 58,985 147594
Other income, gains and losses Hib e A s R B8 32,986 19,873
Distribution and selling expenses 18 $H B AR (11,415) (37.856)
Administrative expenses THRAX (108,968) (96,715)
Other expenses Hipf 2 (384) (231)
Write-back on properties held for REOBELEERRMEFE
development for sale, net 23 11,832 1,629
Gain on changes in fair value of BREMELAFEES
investment properties U = 11,15 191,361 22,198
Loss on revaluation of intangible BREEZEMEBR
assets 22 (5,847) (723)
Impairment loss on intangible assets & 2 & 2 i {8 & 18 22 (3,207) =
Net loss on changes in fair value ?ﬁ’&:ﬁﬁ Jr)\?ﬁ SCEMEE
of financial assets at fair value ZATEESHEERTE
through profit or loss (62,879) (36,295)
Release on disposal of debt HERRREAFETAES
instruments at fair value through FEHRE EBLIA
other comprehensive income — (3,819)
Gain on settlement of loans receivable # 1 #) % E W & 3t 2 U 25
by properties 21 — 35,846
(Impairment loss) reversal of CREE (/JX TE fEE B R E
impairment loss on financial &5 18 # mF
assets, net:
— Loans receivable —ERE R 11, 21 (11,783) (27261)
— Debt instruments at fair value -\ ﬁﬁﬂ\ﬁ\ﬁﬂ’i‘@
through other comprehensive WmeEBIR
income 19 (5,378) (22,286)
— Debt instruments at amortised —REHEKNAFEZER
cost TA 20 119 (1,090)
Gain on bargain purchase on W — R B AT 2 % B
acquisition of a subsidiary Uz 16 - 1,676,151
Loss on remeasurement of interestin EF st E —M#E AAlER 2
an associate B8 16 - (656,380)
Share of results of an associate DE—BHEARER - (1,250)
Share of results of joint ventures DIERBENRIER 109 (5)
Finance costs RN 7 (67,673) (28,415)
Profit before taxation B 35 Al & A 8 17,858 990,965
Income tax credit (expense) FE#Ee(EX) 10 7,483 (11,389)
Profit for the year from continuing REFBELEEEBOERFEET
operations 25,341 979,576
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GERSEREMZARER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

2023 2022
20235 2022
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
k23 FAET FET
(Restated)
(&)
Discontinued operation BT
Profit for the year from discontinued 2R B 2 & Ik 48 & Z 15 0 A F
operation JE % 11 4,602 29,924
Profit for the year KEE & F 29,943 1,009,500
Other comprehensive (expense) HitZmE(Bx) WA
income
Items that may be reclassified GERRIGEEF D EE B 2
subsequently to profit or loss: EE -
Share of other comprehensive DME—HEE AR 2 HEM
expense of an associate: ZERAX:
Share of fair value through DME—HBEREZ
other comprehensive income BRAFEFAEM
reserve of an associate EEN G — 33
Reclassification of translation RERHEME AR ER
reserve to profit or loss upon BRENTBEEERZ
deemed disposal of interest b 5
in associate - (570)
Reclassification of fair value REALEHE AR
through other comprehensive REFHIEEERZ
income reserve to profit or BRAFEFTAEAM
loss upon deemed disposal 2EHKWERE
of interest in associate — (12,707)
= (13,244)
Exchange differences arising BRESINEBRUBRREE
on translation of financial ZEHER
statements of foreign operations (36,244) 13,798
Change in fair value of debt BAFEFAEMZERZE
instruments at fair value through CEBIAZRATEEE
other comprehensive income (3,389) (22,656)
Release on disposal of debt HERBREATEERTA
instruments at fair value through HizEEa2EBIA
other comprehensive income — 3,819
Impairment loss on debt FABRZEBRAFERFA
instruments at fair value through HizEha2EBIA
other comprehensive income ZREEEFE
included in profit or loss, net 5,378 22,286
Other comprehensive (expense) REEzHM2EFEI) KA
income for the year (34,255) 4,003
Total comprehensive (expense) FEFEz2E (A WABE
income for the year (4,312) 1,013,503
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meEsRkEtAEZEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

2023 2022
20234 20224
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FET
(Restated)
(=&EH)
Profit for the year attributable to ARRHEAANEBEARFE
owners of the Company: pil
— from continuing operations — REFBELEED 10,905 957066
— from discontinued operation AL f”““ = 2,375 22,371
Profit for the year attributable to KRG B AEBLEERFE
owners of the Company kil 13,280 979,437
Profit for the year attributable to IR EREERNFE R F
non-controlling interests:
— from continuing operations — REFEREXR 14,436 22,510
— from discontinued operation —xBaag Z?Jt CEETE 2,227 7553
Profit for the year attributable to e IR M = B AN F S i A
non-controlling interests 16,663 30,063
Profit for the year KEE & F 29,943 1,009,500
Total comprehensive (expense) AAREBARGEZE (%)
income attributable to owners of LN LEE
the Company:
— from continuing operations — RERFAEKEXED (26) 946,621
— from discontinued operation — REERIEREER (17,402) 32,443
Total comprehensive (expense) AXralEBAREG2ZE(FAX)
income attributable to owners of NG
the Company (17,428) 979,064
Total comprehensive income JEE R EEEEERA
(expense) attributable to non- (B ) BE -
controlling interests:
— from continuing operations — REFELCEER 29,433 23,486
— from discontinued operation AR (16,317) 10,953
Total comprehensive income FEERERELEEZEKRA
attributable to non-controlling R
interests 13,116 34,439
Total comprehensive (expense) AEE2E(AX)WARE
income for the year (4,312) 1,013,503
HK$ HK$
Earnings per share ik &F| B BT
(Restated)
(=&EF)
From continuing and discontinued REFBEMBRIFEEER
operations
— Basic and diluted — HEAREE 13 0.18 12.46
From continuing operations REFBREERK
— Basic and diluted —ﬁ$&§&% 13 0.15 12.17
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e BRI R

At 31 March 2023 #2023%¥3531H

2023 2022
20234 20224
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
k3 FE T FETT
Non-current assets EmMBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BEREZE 14 196,783 203,234
Right-of-use assets FREEE 689 1,082
Intangible assets mEEE 22 500 7063
Investment properties "EME 15 2,194,541 2,423,573
Interests in joint ventures AERAER 17 214 52
Financial assets at fair value AV EGFAERZZ
through profit or loss TREE 18 48,930 43,274
Debt instruments at fair value BAFEFAEMEER
through other comprehensive WamzEBBIA
income 19 471 —
Debt instruments at amortised BB ECER
cost TA 20 36,614 40,936
Loans receivable e W & 5k 21 30,621 93,949
Deferred tax assets FIERIEE E 29 16,862 13,559
Deposits 4o ra 285 285
2,526,510 2,827007
Current assets mENE E
Properties held for development BIEHEERYE
for sale 23 4,770,716 4,418,372
Properties held for sale BIEREME 728,950 789,228
Trade and other receivables E 5 & H e Uk IR 24 66,230 165,375
Prepaid income tax TS H 5 25,424 =
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFTABRTZ
through profit or loss TREE 8 142,230 362,400
Loans receivable FE W B 21 159,272 152,031
Debt instruments at fair value BEAFEFAHEMEE
through other comprehensive W EBBIE
income 19 624 4,884
Debt instruments at amortised BEEN AT EZEY
cost TH 20 — 15,436
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEY 25 398,894 184,425
6,292,340 6,092,151
Assets classified as held for sale DEERBIELEEE
— investment properties — B 5 370,114 -
6,662,454 6,092,151
Current liabilities mEaE
Trade and other payables B 5 & E MR 26 118,920 153,104
Deposit received for disposal of HEDPHEARKEHEERE
assets classified as held for sale BT W i% & 15 226,802 -
Contract liabilities AR 8E 26 29,085 16,534
Amount due to a non-controlling FE < FE 4R A% AR 3R R IB
shareholder 27 211,694 159,114
Tax payable FE - i 18 55,644 65,112
Lease liabilities HESE 408 398
Secured bank borrowings BEBRITEER 28 1,615,464 1,206,455
2,258,017 1,600,717
Net current assets REEEFE 4,404,437 4,491,434
Total assets less current liabilities EELTERLBDEE 6,930,947 7318,441
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e BRI R

At 31 March 2023 #2023%¥3531H

2023 2022
20234 2022
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
o3 FE T FET

Non-current liabilities FEmEBBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EXLRIARE 29 24,537 23,955
Secured bank borrowings BEMEITEE 28 1,913,713 2,356,249
Lease liabilities HEAE 312 720
1,938,562 2,380,924
4,992,385 4,937517

Capital and reserves BEARRFEE
Share capital i A& 30 7,399 7399
Reserves & 3,444,404 4,170,307

Equity attributable to owners of the AR R HE A A FE(E # 25

Company 3,451,803 4,177,706
Non-controlling interests IE ¥ % 2= 1,540,582 759,811
4,992,385 4,937517

The consolidated financial statements on pages 99 to 273 were &= E € W2023F6 A28 #L R BEE XS
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 ~ 99H £273B Z i A B /K - M T I E

June 2023 and are signed on its behalf by: ERREZE:
LUI YUK CHU KOON HO YAN CANDY
BEEH B A ik
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EZ -
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mEREZSER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£20234#3531H 1- £ &

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANARBARL
Fair value
through other
Share comprehensive Property Non-
Share Share Capital options  Translation Special ~ Contributed income  revaluation ~ Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve Teserve surplus reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
BRATE
HARK2E
B ROEE  RABE  BEERE  ERRE  GHBE  BABRR  GEEE NFEMEE  RHEA B FERER a3t
HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Fér Fér Fér Fér A FEr FEr FEr Fér Fér Fér TET -2
fhote ) fnote ¢) fnoted)
(Witb) (Wite) (Wit
At 1 April 2021 R021E4A1R 8220 234,663 196,565 - 510 9,800 220937 (205) 69,872 2490851 3231213 (828) 3230445
Exchange differencesarising ~ BE SN EHE KR
on translation of financil RELZERZE
statements of foreign
operations S S S S 10315 o = = = S 10315 3483 13798
Changenfairvalue of debt AT E:
instruments at fair value: ]
through other comprehensive
income - - - - - o = (19.970) = o (19970) (2,686) (22,656)
Release on disposal of debt
instruments at fai value
through other comprehensive
income - - - - - - - 2730 - - 2730 1,089 3819
Impairment loss on dsbt HABRFRIELTE
instruments at fair valug FARMRERE
through other comprehensive 2B I A 25 E
income included in profit or BB
loss - - - - - - - 19,79 - - 1979 2490 22,086
Share of other comprehensive A - EEE QT
income of an associate 2ERE - - - - - - - B - - kel - k¢
Release on deemed disposal of BB BfEHERE LR
interest in associate s - - - - 570) - = [12,707) - - (13277) - (13277)
Profitfor the year TERET = = = = = = — = = 979437 979437 30,083 1,009,500
Total comprehensive income A 2E A
(expense] for the year %) = = = = 9,745 - = (10,18 = 979437 979,064 34439 1,013,503
Share repurchase and
cancellation (note 30 (821) (32391) - - - - - - - - 33212 - (33212
Acquisition of & subsidiary
fhote 16) il - - - - - - - - - - - 726,200 726,200
Recogniton of equity-settled B EL E MR
share-based payment BARRR - - - 51 - - - - - - 581 - 51
At31 March 2022 R2022%3A318 739 202212 196,565 581 10315 9,800 220931 (10,323) 69,872 3410288 4177706 759,81 4931517
Exchange diferencesaising B €550 £ KB %
on translation of financil BRELZEN
statements of foreign 28
operations - - - - (31532) - - - - - (31532) (4m2) (36,244)
Chenge infairvalueof debt ~ RAFE AL
instruments at fair valug 2EREER
thiough other comprehensive T2 2 AT
income 29 - - - - - - - (2:846) - - (2846) (543) (3389)
Impaiment loss on debt FABERZEAT
instruments at fair valug B ARLEE
thiough other comprehensive Mz 2 EH TR
income includedinprofitr 2 B EE B
loss - - - - - - - 3,670 - - 3,670 1,708 5318
Proftfor the year AERET - - - - - - - - - 13280 13280 16,663 29,943
Total comprehensive (expense] A EE 2 (H3%)
income for the year WA - - - - (31532) - - 824 - 13,280 (17428) 13,116 (4312
Deemed disposal of partial R ERGEB AL
nterestinasubsidiaryupon ~ ER KB
placing of shares (rote 76/ INPA: Y 3
(H#16) - - - - 4,351 - - - - (995,803) (991,452) 1,050,632 59,180
Acquisition of additional nterest 1B 1
ina subsidiary by conversion
of convertible notes
fnote 16) = - - - 1018 - - - - 281,959 282911 (282,97) =
At31 March 2023 2023538318 1399 202212 196,565 581 15,848) 9,800 220937 (9.4%9) 69,872 2,169,724 3,451,803 1,540,582 4,992,385
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Notes:

(a)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the credit arising from
the reduction of share capital of the Company in October 2006.

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital issued by the Company and
the nominal value of the share capital and share premium of the
companies forming the Group pursuant to the group reorganisation
prior to the listing of the Company's shares in 1995.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the credit arising
from the reduction of certain reserves of the Company in August

2004.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group includes the gain on
revaluation of certain leasehold properties of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

EE

(@)  AEBEZIBRARHERERENR20065F10H K
REVRFTESX ZERK -

b) AEEZEHHNFELRARIBDTHETRA
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19 LMz S EEH) B TE A
ZBRAEERBRODEEZZHE -
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WYEZEfHWRES -



Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2022/23 Annual Report

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &
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(1,433) 2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash flows from operating activities REEH s HERE
Profit before taxation bk Bt A i A 26,509 1,027243
Adjustments for: B
Interest income FEHA (19,796) (22,425)
Interest expense M EFX 67,673 28,415
Depreciation of property, plant W BMELREZEZ
and equipment e 7,021 8,167
Depreciation of right-of-use FREEAEZIE
assets 393 673
Dividend income from listed EHREZEREKA
investments (11,641) (10,825)
Gain on changes in fair value of KEMEZRNTFEE
investment properties I 2= (200,225) (37064)
Gain on settlement of loans LA % EREKRER 2
receivable by properties — (35,846)
Gain on disposal of property, i ’%%% N ]
plant and equipment 2 W - (382)
Write-back on properties held BEBEREERYE
for development for sale, net F R (11,832) (1,629)
Net loss on changes in fair value EAFEFTABER
of financial assets at fair (M RAFEFTAE
value through profit or loss mZEMEEZ
("FVTPL") NYPEZHEIEFE 68,271 37905
Release on disposal of debt &R IR A FER
instruments at fair value A H b2 E U &
through other comprehensive (MEAFEEFA
income (“FVTOCI") Emermki=ml)z
EBB LA - 3,819
Impairment loss on loans BWE R 2 BEEE
receivable, net F R 11,562 27224
Impairment loss on debt EAFEGFAHMER
instruments at FVTOCI WamvEBBIAREZ
(B & 18 5,378 22,286
(Reversal of) impairment loss HBEK A E 2
on debt instruments at B TR A
amortised cost & 18 (B E) (119) 1,090
Share of results of an associate DR — BB E AT EE - 1,250
Share of results of joint ventures DA ERRERE (109) 5
Gain on bargain purchase on WiE—ERBARZ
acquisition of a subsidiary & B U s - (1,676,151)
Loss on remeasurement of EFstE —EBE QA
interest in associate w2 BE - 656,380
Loss on revaluation of intangible mEEEZEMER
assets 5,847 723
Impairment loss on intangible EREERESRE
assets 3,207 —
Written-off of other payable 58 H & 1 3R (1,732) —
Recognition of equity-settled T 22 A5 HE 5 DA R A5
share-based payment % ENEN = - 581
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mERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

2023 2022
20234 20224
NOTE HK$000 HK$'000
o3 FET FET
Operating cash flows before LEBECEHAI 2
movements in working capital KERERE (49,593) 31,439
Increase in properties held for FEH SR Y 120
development for sale (263,348) (658,441)
Decrease in properties held for sale 35 1E H & ¥ 2 55 23,391 171,702
Decrease (increase) in financial assets I A FEFAEBZ Z ¢/ E
at FVTPL BER A () 35,410 (13,531)
Decrease in trade and other Z 5 & H W EkIE R
receivables 101,066 1,540
Decrease (increase) in loans FE W E FOR A (38 n)
receivable 44,525 (12,795)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other B 5 & £ {tf &~ 7 18 ORt 2)
payables 30 (32,329) 6,415
Increase in contract liabilities A #H B EE 12,551 10,258
Cash used in operations KEFTAE® (128,327) (463,413)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENEBNEH (5,910) (5,644)
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") BftHEAREXME((HEHE])
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") paid 1 2FEH (D EFRT aE'=
D) (26,776) =
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded EREBFBEFNEB 108 —
Dividend received 2R B 11,641 10,825
Interest received from loan financing REEZX @ E M E W F B 13,727 17,262
Net cash used in operating activities R &EEH) 2
HEFE (135,537) (440,970)
Cash flows from investing activities HRERZEEFH RS RE
Proceeds from disposal/maturity of & A FEFAEZR 2
financial assets at FVTPL CMEEZLE FIH
Z P15 5IE 731,575 183,312
Deposit received for disposal of PESEARBELERE
assets classified as held for sale il 3% & 224,253 =
Proceeds from disposal of LEREMEZFBRIEA
investment properties 68,150 1915]1
Proceeds from repayment of debt EEREERETEZ
instruments at amortised cost B TAEMEHIE 20,022 =
Other interest received Hae s B 6,924 8,905
Proceeds from disposal of HEEREEE B REAE
intangible assets 401 3,447
Acquisition of financial assets at WEEAFEFABRZEZ
FVTPL EWMEE (625,359) (302,342)
Purchase of intangible assets BABEEE (2,839) (10,733)
Advance to a joint venture EN—M&EAF/KIE (1,921) —
Purchase of property, plant and BAME BEKRRZB
equipment (578) (1,924)
Proceeds from redemption of debt B RIIZ A FEFAH M2
instruments at FVTOCI Hk = ERE T AR
1518 — 31,204
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BMEMKREZ
plant and equipment FT18 318 — 931
Net cash outflows on acquisition of W H —fHM B AR 2R
a subsidiary i F R 16 - (111,852)
Purchase of debt instruments at BALBHEKAGTEED
amortised cost TA — (42,258)
Purchase of debt instruments at BARATE f?\ = ﬁﬂ €a
FVTOCI U = 2 & — (10,667)
Addition of investment properties EMEEME - (1,433)
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RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Net cash from (used in) investing R Q (AR REFBH RS
activities FE 420,628 (233,893)
Cash flows from financing activities & E MEEH HERE
Bank borrowings raised E5RTEE 670,504 1,830,377
Proceeds from placing of sharesby — R E R A B S H <~
a subsidiary Ffr 18 3018 59,180 S
Advance from a non-controlling —IEIERBRR BT
shareholder 52,580 57826
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEE (696,260) (1,252,012)
Interest paid =ESEUESS (144,121) (51,800)
Payment of loan arrangement fee SHERTHER (8,179) ==
Repayment of lease liabilities EEgHEaE (398) (656)
Repurchase of shares Al - (33,212)
Net cash (used in) from financing (A REBEETSH 2H S
activities i (66,694) 550,523
Net increase (decrease) in cash and R & RN &FEWIZINOR D)
cash equivalents pEig-t 218,397 (124,340)
Cash and cash equivalents at FNHeRRESZEEY
beginning of the year 184,425 308,222
Effect of foreign exchange rate INEERE o T E
changes (3,928) 543
Cash and cash equivalents at end FREcLREZEY
of the year, represented by bank BIRITHEHABRES
balances and cash 398,894 184,425
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Easyknit International Holdings Limited (the “Company”; the
Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as
the “Group”) is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and the principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section of the
annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and
joint ventures are set out in notes 40 and 17, respectively.
The Group also operated in the PRC which was discontinued
in current year (see note 11).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$") which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual
periods beginning on 1 April 2022 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£20234#3H31H 1t F &
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e T RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the October Insurance Contracts'
2020 and February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets

HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current

or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)3

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants®
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies!

HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction'

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in
the foreseeable future.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
(the “2020 Amendments”)” and Amendments to
HKAS 1 “Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”)”

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for
at least twelve months from reporting date for classification
of liabilities as current or non-current, which:

° clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by
the transfer of the entity’s own equity instruments,
these terms do not affect its classification as current
or non-current only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32
“Financial Instruments: Presentation”.

° specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are
in existence at the end of the reporting period.
Specifically, the amendments clarify that the
classification should not be affected by management
intentions or expectations to settle the liability within 12
months.

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months
from reporting date which are conditional on the compliance
with covenants, the requirements introduced by the 2020
Amendments have been modified by the 2022 Amendments.
The 2022 Amendments specify that only covenants with
which an entity is required to comply with on or before the
end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date. Covenants which are required to comply with
only after the reporting period do not affect whether that
right exists at the end of the reporting period.
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e T RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
(the “2020 Amendments”)” and Amendments to
HKAS 1 “Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”)” (Continued)

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the disclosure
requirements about information that enables users of
financial statements to understand the risk that the liabilities
could become repayable within twelve months after the
reporting period, if the entity classify liabilities arising from
loan arrangements as non-current when the entity’s right to
defer settlement of those liabilities is subject to the entity
complying with covenants within twelve months after the
reporting period.

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective date
of applying the 2020 Amendments to annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. The 2022
Amendments, together with the 2020 Amendments, are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024, with early application permitted. If an entity
applies the 2020 amendments for an earlier period after the
issue of the 2022 Amendments, the entity should also apply
the 2022 Amendments for that period.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group's right to defer settlement
for borrowings of HK$1,913,713,000 is subject to
compliance with certain financial ratios within 12 months
from the reporting date. Such borrowings were classified
as non-current as the Group met such ratios at 31 March
2023. Upon the application of the 2022 Amendments, such
borrowings will still be classified as non-current as the
covenants which the Group is required to comply with only
after the reporting period do not affect whether that right
exists at the end of the reporting date and such borrowing
will still be classified as non-current.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£20234#3H31H 1t F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAGESUBHRREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBER

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated

31 RRGEMBHRREE

financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties, certain intangible assets and
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair
values or revalued amounts, at the end of the reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of

the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.
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e T RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated 31 RBESEMBERREEH®)

RAUGEMBHRREERE
FETEE @

financial statements (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”
and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs are to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an

investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there

are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£2023F3/531H 1L F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REFRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FESFHBE®

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REGRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FEEHBER®E)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. The
concentration test is met if substantially all of the fair
value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a
single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable
assets. The gross assets under assessment exclude
cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and
goodwill resulting from the effects of deferred tax
liabilities. If the concentration test is met, the set of
activities and assets is determined not to be a business
and no further assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the Group
identifies and recognises the individual identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating
the purchase price first to investment properties which
are subsequently measured under fair value model and
financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price
is then allocated to the other identifiable assets and
liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the
date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise
to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REFRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FESHBEK®)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets
which includes an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs. The acquired processes are considered
substantive if they are critical to the ability to continue
producing outputs, including an organised workforce
with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience
to perform the related processes or they significantly
contribute to the ability to continue producing outputs
and are considered unique or scarce or cannot be
replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the
ability to continue producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related
costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

For business combinations in which the acquisition
date is on or after 1 April 2022, the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of an asset and a liability in the “Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting 2018" issued in
June 2018 (the “Conceptual Framework"”) except for
transactions and events within the scope of HKAS
37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets” or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 “Levies”, in which the
Group applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of
the Conceptual Framework to identify the liabilities it
has assumed in a business combination. Contingent
assets are not recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and
HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to
share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree or share-based payment arrangements
of the Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy below);

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations” are measured in
accordance with that standard; and

° lease liabilities are recognised and measured at
the present value of the remaining lease payments
(as defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired
leases were new leases at the acquisition
date. Right-of-use assets are recognised and
measured at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared
with market terms.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REFRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

3.2 FESHBE®)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are initially measured at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets or at fair value. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquire prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income and measured under
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” would be accounted
for on the same basis would be required if the Group
had disposed directly of the previously held equity
interest.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REGRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

3.2 TESTHER®E)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and
joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. Changes in
net assets of the associate or joint venture other than
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes
in ownership interest held by the Group. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate or joint venture
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REFRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

3.2 FESHBE®)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the
date on which the investee becomes an associate or
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or joint venture, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group's share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or
joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to the
Group.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REGRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FEEHBER®E)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use. This condition is regarded
as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is
available for immediate sale in its present condition
subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale
is highly probable. Management must be committed
to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from
the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell, except for investment properties which continue
to be measured in accordance with the accounting
policies as set out in investment properties sections.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REFRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FESFHBE®

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration for (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

The Group recognises revenue from property sales at
a point in time when legal title of property has been
transferred to customer, being when the customer
has the ability to direct the use of the property and
obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of the

property.

124

KEEFEHNZEXEE (&)

i 75 & AT B — TR - 12
BEREEE Z2XBEATR
ZERBHEBNEETNERM
12 B R HE AR

s EPRAKSEHEANRRE
WE R ZFRANEEEQAM
R

s REANE AKREMNEQD
BlEREREFPIERNE
Bk

s AKEMEHLREERZ
HASEARERBEN
BE MAKEHBRH
TRURESEEHNNR
g o

BRI 2XBRREFESHR

B R B S R

o

BHAEREARERNEFEBAN
SECEEPEIMAREBEEK
RESB)NERIREOEL -

EMESEMBRBBEERFPE -
AEERERYMREHELXE
HEZEFEERERAYWELR
EEMBEZMENTE R

Ny

I+
N B ©

/

B



KEBBREBBR AR 2022/23F 1)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Over time revenue recognition. measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of direct measurements of the value of the goods or
services transferred to the customer to date relative to
the remaining goods or services promised under the
contract, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to
consideration in an amount that corresponds directly
with the value of the Group’s performance completed
to date, the Group recognises revenue in the amount to
which the Group has the right to invoice.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those
costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a
customer that it would not have incurred if the contract
had not been obtained.

The Group recognises property sales commissions
as an asset if it expects to recover these costs. The
asset recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or
loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to
which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing
all incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs
would otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or
loss within one year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£2023F3/531H 1L F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REFRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FESFHBE®

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from
business combinations, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and
instead account for the lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£20234#3H31H 1t F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MUGSUBHRREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EETTER @)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FEEHBER®E)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability; and

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not
meet the definition of investment property or inventory
as a separate line item on the consolidated statement
of financial position. Right-of-use assets that meet the
definition of investment property and inventory are
presented within “investment properties”, “properties
held for development for sale” and “properties held for
sale” respectively.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REFRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

3.2 FESHBE®)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term except for investment properties
measured under fair value model.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAGESUBHRREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EETBER @)

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FEEHBER®E)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)
Classification and measurement of leases (Continued)

Rental income which is derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business is presented as revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers” to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated
from lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that
were not part of the original terms and conditions are
accounted for as lease modifications, including lease
incentives provided through forgiveness or reduction of
rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the
lease payments for the new lease.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£2023F3/531H 1L F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REFRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FESFHBE®

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. When a fair value gain
or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit
or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss
is also recognised in profit or loss. When a fair value
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income. Non-monetary items
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that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of HEERBEERENREER
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary HEMEAZEHEZER RN&F
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in EEELHBCEZTER -

which they arise.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£20234#3H31H 1t F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEEHBEXR®E)

MAGEUMBHRREERE
EEHBE e

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HKD) using
exchange rate prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates or joint arrangements that
do not result in the Group losing significant influence
or joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REFRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FESFHBE®

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation of
capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income, gains and losses".
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAGESUBHRREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EETBER @)

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FEEHBER®E)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REFRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FESFHBE®

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and interest in an associate and joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REGRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FEEHBER®E)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxation entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax
or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes. Property,
plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REFRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FESHBEK®)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at
initial recognition. To the extent the allocation of the
relevant payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in
the consolidated statement of financial position except
for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model and
properties held for development for sale that are carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in
the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REGRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FEEHBER®E)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

If there is a transfer from investment property carried at
fair value to owner-occupied property evidence by the
commencement of owner occupation, the property’s
deemed cost for subsequent accounting shall be its fair
value at the date of change in use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values, adjusted to exclude
any prepaid or accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that
item is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On
the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the
relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly
to accumulated profits.

For a transfer from investment property carried at fair
value to inventories, the property’s deemed cost for
subsequent accounting shall be its fair value at the date
of change in use. An entity shall transfer a property
from investment property when, and only when,
there is a change in use, such as commencement of
development with a view to sale.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REFRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FESFHBE®

Investment properties (Continued)

The Group transfers a property from inventories to
investment property when there is a change in use
to hold the property to earn rentals or/and for capital
appreciation rather than for sale in the ordinary course
of business, which is evidenced by the inception of
an operating lease to another party. Any difference
between the fair value of the property at the date of
transfer and its previous carrying amount is recognised
in profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss
in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Crypto assets held by the Group are classified as
intangible assets in the scope of HKAS 38 “Intangible
Assets”. Crypto assets are initially measured at cost
and subsequently carried at a revalued amount less
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REGRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FEEHBER®E)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Any revaluation increase arising from revaluation of
crypto assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in investment revaluation
reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognise in profit or loss, in which case the increase is
credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount
arising on revaluation of a crypto assets is recognised in
profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance,
if any, on the investment revaluation reserve relating to
a previous revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable
revaluation surplus is transferred to accumulated
profits.

Other intangible asset with indefinite useful life that is
acquired separately is carried at cost less subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not
amortised. An intangible asset is derecognised on
disposal, or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising
from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

52

BELE (&)

EfMNZEREEELEZEM
EfBEREMEE KRS T E
R YREEER-FEBETRE
HEBOEAMRBETERNR
—HREEZEHBRBERN HE
ZBERAT - BRRBETAEZ
HLLAMBEZBBRR &
ENZEREEEL 2REF
BERIREBDZER  HEUED
BEBEHZREEZREER
ERERMB)SR  -BEM-E
EHRHER®RE ASELHE
HRBHBEARG R -

EBURBAAEREAFHN
H@\EEEZEMKANREER
R BEBRIIK -

EREERERFHNETLEE
MERE BEEERHLER
AFEHEEAHIHLETEH K
T ] 2R 2R 4 078 Rt By AR L FE AR ©
RIERETVEEMELE 2
S EBERERZEELEMBER
REELEAECEZBEAEIRN
RIEERZEEHRANEBERS
FER -



Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2022/23 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REFRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FESHBEK®)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible asset other
than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
with finite useful live to determine whether there
is any indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss
(if any). Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever
there is an indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to relevant cash
generating units when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or
group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAGESUBHRREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEBE e

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

3.2 FEGHBE®E)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible asset other
than goodwill (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (for
a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on reasonable
and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the
Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts
of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with
the recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating
units. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately to profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease under that standard.
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STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FESHBEK®)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible asset other
than goodwill (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (for
a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior year. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease under that standard.

Properties held for development for sale

Properties held for development for sale which are
intended to be sold upon completion of development
are classified as current assets. Except for the
leasehold land element which is measured at cost
model in accordance with the accounting policies of
right-of-use assets, properties held for development for
sale are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on a specific identification
basis including allocation of the related development
expenditure incurred and where appropriate, borrowing
costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for the properties less estimated
cost to completion and costs necessary to make
the sales. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and
non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to
make the sale.

Properties held for development for sale are transferred
to properties for sale upon completion.
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Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties and
are classified under current assets. They are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position include:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and
demand deposits; and

(b)  cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose
of meeting short-term cash commitments rather
than for investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
cash equivalents as defined above.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.
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e T RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REFRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FESFHBE®

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income which is derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business is presented as revenue.
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e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REGRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FEEHBER®E)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at the date of initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in
a business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” applies.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£20234#3531H 1- £ &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAGEUBKHRREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EETBER @)

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEEFHEXR®)

Financial instruments (Continued) TETAE)

Financial assets (Continued) TREE (E)

Classification and subsequent measurement of EMEECHEREREFE

financial assets (Continued) (%)

A financial asset is held for trading if: EATERATHEZREEAR

X5

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of e FERATHHALEM
selling in the near term; or U B sk

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of e HVHBERE HAXE
identified financial instruments that the Group HEEEMNA #5 € m
manages together and has a recent actual pattern THHEHN —HH LA
of short-term profit-taking; or B HAE A HE R E

X : sk

e it is a derivative that is not designated and e HABARAEEERAX

effective as a hedging instrument. MEHRTAMNITETA -
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost
and debt instruments subsequently measured
at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset from
the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£20234#3531H 1- £ &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(i) Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts
for debt instruments classified as FVTOCI as a
result of interest income calculated using the
effective interest method, and foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.
All other changes in the carrying amount of
these debt instruments are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under
the heading of FVTOCI reserve. Impairment
allowances are recognised in profit or loss with
corresponding adjustment to other comprehensive
income without reducing the carrying amounts
of these debt instruments. When these debt
instruments are derecognised, the cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss includes any interest but excludes any
dividend earned on the financial asset and is
included in the “net loss on changes in fair value
of financial assets at FVTPL" line item.

Film right investment is the Group’s investment
in a film production project which entitles the
Group to share certain percentage of income
to be generated from the related film based on
the Group's investment portion as specified in
respective film right investment agreement but
the Group has no control nor joint control over the
investment. Film right investment is classified as
financial assets at FVTPL.
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e T RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REFRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FESFHBE®

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model (including trade and
other receivables, loans receivable, debt instruments at
FVTOCI, debt instruments at amortised cost and cash
and cash equivalents) which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
("12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessments are done based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and lease receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

For all other assets, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases
in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£20234#3531H 1- £ &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument'’s
external (if available) or internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the borrower or
debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the borrower’s or debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant

deterioration in the operating results of the
borrower or debtor;
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KEBBREBBR AR 2022/23F 1)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the borrower
or debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the borrower's or debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if (i) it has a low risk of default, (i) the borrower
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and (iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group
considers the credit risk of the debt instrument
mainly with reference to external credit rating of
“investment grade” as per globally understood
definitions.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£2023F3/531H 1L F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.

(i) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.
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KEBBREBBR AR 2022/23F 1)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that
the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

° it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for

that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£2023F3/531H 1L F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries
are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition. For a lease
receivable, the cash flow used for determining
the ECL is consistent with the cash flows used
in measuring the lease receivable in accordance
with HKFRS 16.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

o Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.
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e T RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

Except for investments in debt instruments that
are measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of loans receivable
and debt instruments at amortised cost where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through
a loss allowance account. For investments in
debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI,
the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
FVTOCI reserve without reducing the carrying
amount of these debt instruments. Such amount
represents the changes in the FVTOCI reserve in
relation to accumulated loss allowance.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAGESUBHRREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EETBER @)

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FEEHBER®E)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity instruments in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amount due to a non-controlling shareholder and
secured bank borrowings) are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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e T RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FRGSHBREAEERT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEFBE @
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

3.2 FESHBE®)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows as a result of interest rate
benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows of a financial asset or financial liability to
which the amortised cost measurement applies as a
result of interest rate benchmark reform, the Group
applies the practical expedient to account for these
changes by updating the effective interest rate, such
change in effective interest rate normally has no
significant effect on the carrying amount of the relevant
financial asset or financial liability.

A change in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows is required by interest rate benchmark
reform if and only if, both these conditions are met:

° the change is necessary as a direct consequence
of interest rate benchmark reform; and

° the new basis for determining the contractual
cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous basis.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans/state-managed retirement benefit schemes/the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.
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e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REGRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FEEHBER®E)

Short-term employee benefits (Continued)

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees after deducting any amount already paid.

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others providing similar services are measured at
fair value of the equity instruments at the date of grant.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the date of grant without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of
equity instruments that will be eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest based on assessment
of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to accumulated profits.
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e T RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies

The followings are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group's investment properties portfolios and concluded that
the Group's investment properties located in Hong Kong
and Singapore are not held under a business model, whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in determining the deferred taxation on investment
properties located in Hong Kong and Singapore, the directors
of the Company have determined that presumption that
the carrying amounts of investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered through sale is not
rebutted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties
(Continued)

For the Group's investment properties located in the PRC, in
prior years, the directors of the Company concluded that they
were being held under a business model whose objective
was to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather
than through sale. Therefore, in determining the Group’s
deferred taxation arising from investment properties located
in the PRC, the directors of the Company determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model were
recovered through sale was rebutted.

In current year, as initiated by the municipal government,
the Group entered into a land resumption agreement with
municipal government to surrender these investment
properties. Such investment properties have been classified
as assets classified as held for sale as at 31 March 2023 and
the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered
through sales is not rebutted. However, since it is a land
resumption conducted by municipal government, the
transaction is not subject to land appreciation tax.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets within the next financial year.

Fair value of investment properties

The Group's investment properties are measured at fair value
for financial reporting purposes. The Group has a designated
team to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
key inputs for fair value measurements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Fair value of investment properties (Continued)

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent they are available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages independent firms of qualified
professional property valuers to perform valuation of the
Group's investment properties. At the end of the reporting
period, the management works closely with the independent
firms of qualified professional property valuers to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and key
inputs for fair value measurements. \Where there is a material
change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the directors of the Company.
Information about the valuation techniques and key inputs
used in determining the fair value of the Group's investment
properties is disclosed in note 15.

Determination of net realisable value of properties
held for development for sale/properties held for
sale

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of
the Group’s properties held for development for sale/
properties held for sale, which are situated in Hong Kong
and amounted to HK$5,499,666,000 at 31 March 2023
(2022: HK$5,207,600,000), with reference to current market
environment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may exceed
its net realisable value. Appropriate reversal of previously
recognised write-down for estimated irrecoverable amount
is recognised in profit or loss when the net realisable
value increases. The estimates of net realisable value are
determined based on the best available information and with
reference to valuations made, less the estimated costs to
completion and costs necessary to make the sales. Actual
realised amount may differ from estimates, resulting in a
decrease or an increase in the net realisable value of the
properties held for development for sale/properties held for
sale and additional write-down or reversal of write-down
previously recognised may be required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE

Revenue from continuing operations represents the
aggregate of the amounts received or receivable in respect
of rental income and building management from property
investment, interest income from loan financing and property
sales from property development during the year.

Revenue from sales of properties was recognised at a
point in time when the completed residential property
was transferred to customers, being at the point that the
customer obtained the control of the completed residential
property and the Group had present right to payment and
collection of the consideration was probable. The Group
received deposits from customers pursuant to the payment
terms of the sale and purchase agreement. The transaction
price allocated to the remaining unsatisfied performance
obligations was HK$128,516,000 (2022: HK$64,569,000) as
at 31 March 2023 and the expected timing of unrecognising
revenue is within one year.

For building management services, the Group bills a fixed
rate for services provided on a monthly basis and recognises
as revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right
to issue the invoice and that corresponds directly with the
value to the customers of Group's performance completed.
The Group acts as principal and is primarily responsible for
providing the building management services to the property
owners, who simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefit provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs, the Group recognises the fee received or
receivable from property owners as its revenue over time
and all related building management costs as its cost of
services. The Group elected to apply the practical expedient
by recognising revenue in the amount to which the Group
has right to invoice. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is
not disclosed.

Rental income and interest income from loan financing
fall outside the scope of HKFRS 15 and the revenue from
contracts with customers from continuing operations for the
year ended 31 March 2023 amounted to HK$30,283,000
(2022 (restated): HK$250,232,000).
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group's chief executive officer,
being the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM"),
for the purposes of resources allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on types of goods delivered
or services provided. This is also the basis of organisation,
whereby the management has chosen to organise the Group
around differences in products and services.

The Group's operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” are (i) property investment,
(i) property development, (iii) investment in securities and
others and (iv) loan financing.

Operation in the PRC, including the property investment,
investment in securities and others and loan financing was
classified as discontinued operation in the current year. The
segment information reported does not include any amounts
for the discontinued operation, which are described in more
detail in note 11. Prior year segment disclosures have been
represented to conform with the current year’s presentation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Segment revenue and results

6. DIER @
D EMERER K

(a)

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue
and results from continuing operations by reportable

BE2HDH

PEIDAKE KB F

BREEXEGMEEBANREREZ

segment: DT
For the year ended 31 March 2023 B E2023F3A31H L FE
Investment
Property Property in securities Loan
investment development  and others financing  Consolidated
FER
NERE NERR AR E ENRE an
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET
(note)
i)
SEGMENT REVENUE PHERE
External sales HRHE 44,891 28,647 - 13,224 86,762
RESULTS ES
Segment results LEES 190,515 (10,552) (71,940) (12:302) 95,721
Unallocated corporate income LGNNI 4,034
Unallocated corporate expenses AN [ F (13,949)
Other expenses AT (384)
Share of results of joint ventures AMEAELAEE 109
Finance costs BEKK (67673)
Profit before taxation from continuing ~ KEHERLERNKE
operations AE 17858
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 2EER
(a) Segment revenue and results (Continued) (a) PHEXBEREED
For the year ended 31 March 2022 (Restated) B Z2022F3HF31H IE F B (4
E7))
Investment
Property Property in securities Loan
investment  development  and others financing  Consolidated
BHR
NERE  PEER HRE  ERRE i

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TET TET TET TET TET

(note)
()
SEGMENT REVENUE PHE%E
External sales MREE 58,729 248576 - 16,085 323,390
RESULTS %5
Segment results PHEE 49,157 25,180 (72,253 8,845 10,929
Unallocated corporate income BEORIRFAKA 342
Unallocated corporate expenses AR RAARY (10,176)
Other expenses A% (231)
(ain on bargain purchase on acquisition 4B — M B A7 2 i
of a subsidiary BB Yo 1,676,151
Loss on remeasurement of interest ~ E# it E—FBE AR
in an associate EREE (656,380)
Share of results of an associate HMEi-FEBEARER (1,250)
Share of results of a joint venture Mi-HAERFAEE (5)
Finance costs BEKA (28,415
Profit before taxation from continuing  REHELLEKNE
operations BT 990,965
Note: Rental income generated from properties held for Mat: REBELEERYWEZH
development for sale (included in property development SWA(BREEMERR DI
segment) was included in property investment MEBRREMERE S
segment. A o
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

(b)

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

6. PEER @

Segment revenue and results (Continued) (a) PHEXBEREE®
Segment results represent the profit earned or loss DEHEBERKS D EBHRE 2 K
incurred from continuing operations by each segment BEREBELEEB 2 &M REE
without allocation of share of results of an associate ZEE EFRREIRSIH—E
and joint ventures, gain on bargain purchase on GERNAIREERAIZEE W
acquisition of a subsidiary, loss on remeasurement of B-HNBAR Z:EREK
interest in an associate, finance costs, other expenses = EFFE—RHBEE AR ER
and unallocated corporate income and expenses. There LR BMEKE HAX K
are asymmetrical allocations to operating segments EOMz AR ARAS - &8
because the Group allocates all fair value changes of DEzBETFETEBE S
financial assets at FVTPL to segment of investment TRAXRERDEIEAF AR
in securities and others without allocating the certain AERZERMEEZAFTESE
financial instruments to those segment assets. This is BEEAFREMBEES B I
the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of KOBRBreMIAEZED
resource allocation and performance assessment. HEE - LHUFFEmEELsg
ARREBEEWR ERERSBERE
WA/ ZBE -
Segment assets and liabilities (b) PHEERAE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and REERERDIBAONAEEZ
liabilities by reportable segment: EERBEWET:
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Segment assets D EE E
Continuing operations SEICEET
Property investment MR E 2,355,532 2,448,508
Property development YEERE 5,613,343 5,451,292
Investment in securities and others B 5 K& Hi 8 & 192,360 411,691
Loan financing BERmE 190,392 252,175
Total segment assets o ERE E R 8,351,627 8,563,666
Assets relating to discontinued FRARIEKEEBNEE
operation 370,114 —
Interests in joint ventures BENAERE 214 52
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREFEEY 398,894 184,425
Unallocated financial assets molk 2 RFEEFA
at FVTPL BRZemMEE 36,204 63,984
Unallocated corporate assets EORZ AR EE 31,911 107,031
Consolidated assets HEEE 9,188,964 8,919,158
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. 7HER @)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) (b) PHEEREE @)
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Segment liabilities DEBE

Continuing operations BREREEER
Property investment R 258,300 46,567
Property development YEERE 317,598 245,895
Investment in securities and others & #H &k Hith & & 1,128 11,544
Loan financing EXRmE 1,528 13,441
Total segment liabilities DEBEAERE 578,554 317447
Secured bank borrowings BHEMETEE 3,529,177 3,562,704
Tax payable FE - 74 18 55,644 65,112
Unallocated corporate liabilities Eoldz AEAE 33,204 36,378
Consolidated liabilities rEAE 4,196,579 3,981,641

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to operating and
reportable segments other than assets relating to
discontinued operation, interests in joint ventures,
unallocated financial assets at FVTPL, cash and
cash equivalents and other assets.

— all liabilities are allocated to operating and
reportable segments other than secured bank
borrowings, tax payable and other liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

(c)

Other segment information

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or
loss or segment assets from continuing operations:

DEER @)
(c) HftbmpEER

B & 15 5 B 3 I o 5 18 o 2 1
HEGELEBN I BEEHR

e
For the year ended 31 March 2023 B E2023¥3A31H IF FE
Investment
Property Property i securities Loan
investment development andothers  financing Unallocated Consolidated
5L
NERE  WERE  EfRE  ERHE E7R 4E
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7T &7 FER FET &L FAT
Amounts included in the measureof ~ BREESTEELSTE
segment assets o segment results. B EZSE:
Capital additions BREN - 437 2,856 - 124 347
Depreciation of property, plant and ¥ BERRELNE
equipment 3382 3,202 13 - 3N 6,969
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEINE - - 393 - = 393
Gain on changes in fair value of RENEZAVEENE
investment properties (191,361) - - - - (191,361)
Net loss on changes in fair value of BATENAERZEBE
financial assets at FVTPL E/LTEEDES
i - - 62,879 - - 62,879
Loss on revaluation of intangible assets  EFEE 2 BfiEE - - 5,847 - = 5,847
Impairment loss onintangible assets ~ EFEEZ HEEE - - 3,207 - = 3,207
Impairment loss on loans receivable, net M E 2 FEE R F % - - - 11,783 - 11,783
Impairment loss on debt instruments at R A FEAZ 2 EUNH
FvTOC| LEBIRZAEER - - 5,378 - - 5,378
Reversal of impairment lossondebt K EHK A EZEBIE
instruments at amortised cost LREBERE - - (119) - - (119)
Write-back on properties held for BERELERRNE
development for sale - (1,832) - - - (11,832)
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e T RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£2023F3/531H 1L F &

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(c)

Other segment information (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2022 (Restated)

6.

DEER @)
(c) HitbpZHEER (&)

B F2022F3H31H 1 FEF (4
E7)

Investment
Property Property  in securities Loan
investment  development  and others financing ~ Unallocated ~ Consolidated
E5R
NERE  WEEE ERRE BRAE EAR &8
HK$ 000 HKk$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Amounts included in the measure of ~ BREESBEELSHE
segment assets or segment results.  EHEV S E:
Capital additions EREN 41,437 1,834 10,779 = 40 54,090
Depreciation of property, plant and nE BRERREINE
equipment 3959 3513 17 - 590 8,079
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEE - - 563 110 = 673
Gain on changes in fair value of REMEZNTEEDNG
investment properties (22,198) - - - — (22,198)
Net loss on changes in fair value of BRVEIABRZERE
financial assets at FVTPL ExLTEEDER
e - - 36,295 — — 36,295
Gain on settlement of loans receivable &R EERER 2 H
by properties - — - (35,846 = (35,846
Loss on revaluation of intangible assets  EF4E 7 EEEE - = /s = = e
Impaiment loss on loans receivable, net BN EF 2 BEREFE - - = 21261 = 27261
Impairment loss on debt instruments at R AT B A2 ENE
FvTOCI LEBIAZAEER - - 22,286 - - 2,286
Impairment loss on debt instruments at K& ERAHEZ BRI
amortised cost LREBE - = 1,090 = = 1,090
Impairment loss on other receivable, net £ ftt fE W 2B ¢ I B8
2 - - 3819 - - 3819
Write-back on properties held for RESELERRNE
development for sale - (1,629) - = - (1,629
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

(d) Geographical information

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

The Group's continuing operations are located in Hong
Kong (place of domicile) and Singapore.

The Group's revenue from external customers based on
location of its customers for segments and information
about its non-current assets (excluding those related
to discontinued operation and deferred tax assets and
financial instruments) by geographical locations of the

assets are detailed below:

2 EE R @)
(d) HEER

AEBEBZFHELEDUREL (E
JE ) B ¥ hn g -

AEEZOBEPAEME D
MRBIREPZEXRBRRE
EZREMBINZERBEE
(TEREERIEREXEBRE
ERBEEERESBRTAARN
BE)ERIMT:

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
REIREFZEER ERBEE

2023 2022 2023 2022
2023%F 20224 20234 20224
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET

(Restated)

(&= 5)

Hong Kong (place of BEBCERH)

domicile) 84,060 320,655 2,255,686 2,063,541
PRC s — — — 387783
Singapore ¥on i 2,702 2,735 137,041 183,680
86,762 323,390 2,392,727 2,635,004

S



Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2022/23 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£2023F3/531H 1L F &

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DHER @
(e) Information about major customers (e) FEEFZER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years REBEFEERMASEBAE X
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group HHBI0% A ENEE & X5
from continuing operations is as follows: wmR
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Customer Al EPA 20,257 =
Customer B? BB 11,755 —
Customer C! EEC - 65,000
Customer D' ZPFD — 43,510
Customer E’ EFE - 42,648
! Revenue from property development. ! REMEBR 2EERE -
2 Revenue from property investment. 2 RKEMEREZEERE -
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. RERAE
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Continuing operations BERKEER
Interest on bank borrowings IRITEBEEZF B 144,815 59,208
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEZHME 22 27
144,837 59,235
Less: Amount capitalised in the cost of 5l : IR & BI& & & K AN E A
qualifying assets e (77.164) (30,820)

67,673 28,415
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8. BR¥iANER
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
(Restated)
(E5)
Continuing operations BEEEER
Profit before taxation has been arrived & % B & Kl 2 F0 B
at after charging:
Directors’ emoluments (Note 9 (a)) EE2ME (H779() 12,667 1,743
Other staff costs, including retirement  E B T B A - 8 38R K42 F
benefits scheme contributions BEEaT:N 56,652 43,943
Share-based payments (excluding D AERNR(TEE
directors) =) - 349
Total staff costs i SN 69,319 56,035
Auditors’ remuneration % BX BT BN & 4,917 5,053
Cost of properties recognised as ERAERT 2WERK
expense 23,390 171,202
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BELRREBZTE
equipment 6,969 8,079
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEEZINE 393 673
Net exchange loss & 5 518 F 8 - 85
and after crediting: EEFtA:
Dividend income from listed KEEMRE ZKRBKWA
investments 11,641 10,825
Government grants (Note) BT/ B (0 5F) 1,256 —
Interest income from FEBWAKE
Debt instruments at amortised cost RBENTGFTECES
TA 2,973 2,434
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BERAFEAAEMEMEUK
mZEBIA 233 2,149
Banks and others RITR HA 1,442 444
Gain on disposal of property, plantand H&EY X « BE L& E 2K =
equipment — 382
Written-off of other payable 88 B Ath B S 3R IE 1,732 —=
Net exchange gain & 5 U = % 58 2,052 —

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group recognised

government grants of HK$1,256,000 (2022: nil) in respect
of Covid-19-related subsidies, which were related to
Employment Support Scheme provided by the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£2023F3/531H 1L F &

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'SAND 9. = - HETHAREEES

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS pd ) [
(a) Information regarding directors’ (a) EEAEEMES2ER

emoluments

Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company H E2023FE3A3IB L FE AR

for the year ended 31 March 2023 are as follows: REEMEFBOT:

Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
HiEs BUkHfES
Koon
Tse Wing HoYan  JongKoon  TsuiChun  LauChak
Chiu Ricky  Lui Yuk Chu Candy Sang Kong Hang Total

WK Bk ETR #RE RER ) 3c) Ay
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS0O0
FiEr FiErn FEr FiEr FiErn FiEr FiEr

(note (i) (note (i)
() (i)
Fees £3h2 - - - 165 155 165 465
Other emoluments Eie
—salaries and other benefits  —H 4 RE &R 1,500 8,163 2410 = = = 12,073
— retirement benefits —RIKRHE
scheme contributions 3 18 75 36 - - - 129
Total directors' emoluments ~ EZHSEE 1518 8,238 2,446 155 155 155 12,667
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Information regarding directors’
emoluments (Continued)

Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2022 are as follows:

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£20234#3H31H 1t F &

9. EEX -BHETRARKESR

A ) AC)
(a) EEEEME>EE (&)

#H £2022F3831BIEFE AR
REEMEFBOT:

Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
#TEZ Bukangs
Koon
Tse Wing HoYan  JongKoon ~ TsuiChun  LauChak
Chiu Ricky  Lui Yuk Chu Candy Sang Kong Hang Total
kg BEK BOR EEE BER HEE a8
HKS000  HK$0OD  HK$00O  HK$OOO  HK$O00  HKSO00  HK$000
7t FAr  FEr  TEr  TEn TAr TEx
fnote (j) fnote (i)
(W) (W)
Fees 0k - - - 155 155 155 465
Other emoluments Hde
—salaries and other benefits ~ —E & REfET 1,500 7265 2,055 - — - 10,820
—retirement benefits scheme  — R IREFIF B F
contributions 18 79 29 — — — 226
— share-based payments —ARGBERAR - 116 116 - - = 23
Total directors’ emoluments E3hehE 1518 7560 2,200 155 155 155 11,743
Notes: B i -

(i)

(ii)

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu, Ricky is the Vice President and
Executive Director of the Company. His emoluments
disclosed above for the years ended 31 March 2023
and 2022 include those for services rendered by him as
the Vice President and Executive Director. He resigned
from Vice President and Executive Director of the
Company with effect from 31 March 2023.

The Company determined to provide certain residential
units and carparking spaces to Mr. Koon Chun Ting, a
son of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and a director of subsidiaries
of the Company, and Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy free of
rental and charges for as long as they are employed by
the Group. Aggregate rateable value of these properties
as set by the Hong Kong Rating and Valuation
Department was HK$2,998,000 (2022: HK$2,998,000).

i

(i) ®BXBEEAARAZEERE
FHNITESE - A LHEZM
% B % & =2023%F %2022
FIAMALFEEAE EE
RRMITEEAMIREZRE -
HHEBEIERUITES B
2023 3A3MHI A -

(i) ARBREAEEHELZLIHNR
FRARBKMBRAREEEHE
EEEUREAMREZTIREZ
EEEEMNREREM TR
EZERAEEENREALSE
H-RETEEZMPERES
el 2 SWEZER=MA
& /2,998,000 7T (20224 :
2,998,000/ 7T) °
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e T RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Information regarding directors’
emoluments (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the

Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the

Company.

(b) Information regarding employees’
emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during
the year included two (2022: two) directors. The
emoluments of the remaining three (2022: three)
highest paid individuals, not being directors, are as

9. EE - BETBRARKEER
Z M )

(a) FRAESMEzER (@)

tRBBRZATEEHNES T E
RBEEBARARAEEER
EHBIREMESOMS -

Lt BRZBILIFRNITE S M
TETERBEFER/RARAESRL
REMESNEE -

(b) EREEME2ER

RER AEBREZSHATLT
BIEMAZQR0202F MA)ESE -
HH=Z2Q002F : =Z2)WkE
EZERSHFATZESMNT

follows:

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAE T
Salaries and other benefits He K EMEF 19,567 11,632

Retirement benefits scheme iR RTE F & &Y 6 30
contributions 36 59
Share-based payments LA R 10 3 B HE AT K - 232
19,603 11,923
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e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£20234#3H31H 1t F &

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'SAND 9. = - HETHAREES

EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (continued) ZHE e
(b) Information regarding employees’ (b) EEEEEMEZER (®)

emoluments (Continued)

The emoluments of these employees fall within the ZERBZMEN T T EE:
following bands:

Number of individuals

BEAH

2023 2022

20235 20226

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7T £ 2,000,000/ 7T — 2

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £ 2,500,000 7T 2 —

HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000 8,000,001 7T £8,500,0007% JT - 1

HK$15,000,001 to HK$15,500,000 15,000,0015% 7t £15,500,0005% 7T 1 —

3 3
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the REEEE  AXEBEZE B

Group to the directors and the other three (2022: three) & TEERHEAM=2(2022F -
highest paid individuals, as an inducement to join or —HR)EaEHeZ AT EAEM
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss in Ak R A K & B 2 42 B) 3k
office. In addition, during both years, no director waived ERREBB E - it - R
or agreed to waive any emoluments. MEFE SEEERNEXRE

MEEAMME -

8



Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2022/23 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£2023F3/531H 1L F &

10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE 10. FTBH (KRB
2023 2022
2023 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&5
Continuing operations SECEER
The tax (credit) charge comprises: HEMEAAZIEE:
Current tax: REAFR 1A
Hong Kong BE 76 7330
Other jurisdiction Hith RE#E = 304 549
380 7879
(Over) Underprovision in prior years: BOFE(EERE BEBETR
Hong Kong BE (4,313) (185)
Other jurisdiction H ity A = (27) 58
(4,340) (127)
Deferred tax iR TR IR (3.523) 3,637
(7,483) 11,389
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the EMEFE 2B AENESHIIRBREMES
estimated assessable profit for both years. JERB A Z216.5% & ©
Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the rates HAbRARE R E A 2 B IE THiZ 8 5

prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction. ERERZBRITHEASE -
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e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE 10. FRBH (E %) Bz @)
(Continued)
Taxation (credit) charge for the year can be reconciled to AEEHBHE)ATEHGZEERE K
the results from continuing operations per the consolidated EtmermBaR s REFBESEER
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income LEBZHEAT:
as follows:
2023 2022
2023 20224
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(=EH)
Profit before taxation B 5% A& A 17,858 990,965

Tax of Hong Kong Profits Tax at 16.5% & 7& i F 13 B #% &£ 16.5%

(2022: 16.5%) (20224 : 16.5%) 2 Fi 18 2,947 163,509
Tax effect of expenses not deductible  TEMFHAS 7 fHEFE

for tax purposes 18,588 29,985
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax #E 7B R Uk A 2 % 18 &2 £

purposes (39,907) (189,253)
Tax effect of share of results of an DIE—EBE R EE HIE

associate w8 - 206
Tax effect of share of results of joint DEEERAEEZIHEXE

ventures (18) i
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FAERMREEBE 2R EZE 23,783 9,670
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FRAATAERMIEBEEBRZ

previously not recognised HETE (1,952) (3,953)
Utilisation of deductible temporary BABTERERAUEN ZBRE

differences previously not recognised =% (6,985) (2,639)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERTENZGEEEH

differences not recognised HyE 14 3,916
Effect of different tax rates of REMAEERELE 2

subsidiaries operating in other WEARTRMEZZE

jurisdictions 408 58
Overprovision for prior years BEFEBERE (4,340) (127)
Others Hfth (21) 16
Taxation (credit) charge for the year AFEEFRBEMR)MAX (7,483) 11,389
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e T RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

Pursuant to a land resumption agreement signed on 5
October 2022 by the Group and the municipal government,
the lands and buildings in Huzhou will be resumed by the
municipal government. The investment properties have
been reclassified as assets classified as held for sale as
at 31 March 2023 (see note 15). Other than the property
investment business, the management has abandoned
the investment in securities and others and loan financing
businesses in the PRC during the year ended 31 March 2023.
Accordingly, the operation in the PRC is considered to be a
discontinued operation.

The profit for the year from the discontinued operation is
set out below. The comparative figures in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

11.

DRI EFE

1B & 7N 5 B B T T 7220221085
AETR TR E - BMNmE L
HEREFHEATERMAKE - R2023F
A3 MERECEFTHEASD
HABELREZEE(RWH5) - kK
MEREEBKIN EEEBEREE
2023$3ﬂ315¢¢1#%<¢f5€¢2
BENEMKREURERMEER -
.lﬂ: FEHEBSHERADRIEEEE

f%o

KECKRIERERH 2 AF R ENE
I - Re BB R EMEE KSR
MEBBFELES RGP EER

have been restated to re-present the operation in the PRC as

a discontinued operation.

EF2IRERIEREER -

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(=&E5)
Revenue (Note) EEE(ME)
Rental income HEBA 4,602 8,210
Building management BFEE 10,807 18,007
Interest income from loan financing KEEFRBE ZFBBKA 503 1,177
15,912 27394
Other income H A g A 1,472 161
Other gain and losses Hfh gz & B 18 (256) 89
Administrative expenses THAX (12,170) (4,659)
Gain on changes in fair value of KEMEZ A TFEEH W
investment properties 8,864 14,866
Net loss on changes in fair value of TRMEECATEEZESEIR
financial assets F R (5,392) (1,610)
Reversal of impairment loss on loans JE W & FOR (8 B 18 & Bl
receivable 221 37
Profit before tax B 2% Al & A 8,651 36,278
Taxation charge MIER X (4,049) (6,354)
Profit for the year AN g A 4,602 29,924
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

Note:

Rental income and interest income from loan financing fall
outside the scope of HKFRS 15 and the revenue from contracts
with customers for the year ended 31 March 2023 amounted to
HK$10,807,000 (2022: HK$18,007,000).

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

. BERLERERB @

HeWARKEBERRME ZF B A
PEBSMBEREENEGR2BE &
F20BF3A3ALEEHKRBAEF A
4 8 % % %8 /510,807,000 7T (20224 ¢
18,007,000/ 7T) °

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
(Restated)
(E5)
Profit for the year from discontinued REERIEBEEBIAFE
operation has been arrived at after A BB GEA) AT
charging (crediting): I
Staff costs, including retirement BT RA - BIFRAKEFR KR
benefits costs 1,942 1,935
Auditors' remuneration % BLRD BN 255 210
Depreciation of property, plant and WE BEREKETE
equipment 52 88
Net exchange (gain) loss e 5 (Wes) B 185 &8 (256) 89
Bank and other interest income R1T R E Ah R B U A (1,421) (136)

During the year, the operation in the PRC contributed a net
cash outflow from operating activities of approximately
HK$38,200,000 (2022: inflow of approximately
HK$400,000) and a net cash inflow from investing activities
of approximately HK$253,000,000 (2022: approximately
HK$300,000) to the Group.
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e T RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

12.

13.

DIVIDEND 12. RE
No dividend were paid or proposed for the years ended 31 RE E2023F & 2022F3831H ILFE
March 2023 and 2022, nor has any dividend been proposed MERMEZRNERHRKRE B3
since the end of the reporting period. EHRBTEEZZRENTAHRE -
EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. ZIREF
From continuing operations REFELLEER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share ARG EBAEBLREFTHELEXTK
from continuing operations attributable to owners of the ZERERNRESRBANTIRBEUTE
Company is based on the following data: BEHE
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&)
Earnings for the year attributable to RAGIHBANELEERFEERT
owners of the Company (from (REBBELEEBRDK
continuing and discontinued 148 & 5 )
operations) 13,280 979,437
Less: Profit for the year attributable DEN/NGIE: ¥ N X =
to owners of the Company ERIEEEEBRAFTE
from discontinued operation i A (2,375) (22,371)
Earnings for the purpose of basicand B EF B S LEBE TR ELR
diluted earnings per share from LEERNmE 2 &8F
continuing operations 10,905 957,066
Number of shares
i 1n & H
Weighted average number of ordinary FstEEREREFmME 2
shares for the purpose of basic &3 AR A0 4 S B
earnings per share 73,988,403 78,620,943
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BEBEELBARNTE
shares:
Share options i e — 12,324
Weighted average number of ordinary ?#E EEREERIME 2T
shares for the purpose of diluted A% i F
earnings per share 73,988,403 78,633,267
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
from continuing and discontinued operations attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

13. BIREF @)

REFBERCRIEEERE
ARFEEARERE S EREL L
EEEB2SREARBEEEF TR
BUAT BURH -

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&)
Earnings for the purpose of basicand ~ Bt EERE AL E ERFM
diluted earnings per share Byl 13,280 979,437

The denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for both basic and diluted earnings per share.

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the discontinued
operation is HK$0.03 per share (2022: HK$0.28 per share),
based on the profit for the year from the discontinued
operation of approximately HK$2,375,000 (2022:
HK$22,371,000) and the denominators detailed above for
both basic and diluted earnings per share.

For 2023, the computation of diluted earnings per share
does not assume the exercise of the Company’s options
because the exercise price of those options was higher than
the average market price for shares for the year. It also does
not assume the conversion of Eminence Enterprise Limited's
("Eminence”) convertible notes since their exercise would
result in increase in earnings per share.

For 2022, the computation of diluted earnings per share
did not assume the conversion of the former associate’s
outstanding convertible notes since their exercise would
result in increase in earnings per share.
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RS SR EXHLARHESRE
AR EERFZH TR

ERINEEEB EREAREBER
A A& & 0%0.037% 7T (20224 : H%0.28
BT DIRBERIEEEER A
F Z % N #92,375,0005%8 7T (20224 -
22,371,000 )k EXFF 2 BIRE
ARBERBF 2D EFE -

R2023F BN ZEBBRENTEE
BRZFENRMDFATE  RERKR
BERNNFELY RBRRARRER
RETE HETERIRELBSULE
ERARUTSWDHATBERERE
SRETESEHERANIEMN -

720225  BREERN ZFEL R
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£2023F3/531H 1L F &

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERR®E

Leasehold
improvements,
furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
properties equipment vehicles Total
HAXER -
BH - HER
AW R RE aE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
COST B R
At 1 April 2021 202154718 113,264 11,127 3,857 128,248
Additions NE — 960 964 1,924
Write-off e - (36) = (36)
Disposal HE — — (549) (549)
Exchange adjustments EHAE — 15 30 45
Acquisition of subsidiary (note 76/ WEEH B AR (A#£16) 3,468 737 1,312 5,517
Transfer from investment properties EHKEME 97400 = = 97400
At 31 March 2022 ®20226E3 4318 214132 12,803 5,614 232,549
Additions RE — 142 436 578
Write-off e - (821) = (821)
Exchange adjustments EHAE — (27) (57) (84)
At 31 March 2023 12023634318 214,132 12,097 5,993 232,222
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 2HME
At 1 April 2021 20214718 8,457 9,037 3,616 21,110
Provided for the year TEEAE 5,586 1,973 608 8,167
Exchange adjustments EHAE = 11 27 38
At 31 March 2022 12022634310 14,043 11,021 4,251 29,315
Provided for the year rERRE 5,882 589 550 7021
Fliminated on written off SR B8R — (821) — (821)
Exchange adjustments EHAE — (22) (54) (76)
At 31 March 2023 20234 3A31H 19,925 10,767 4,747 35,439
CARRYING VALUES REME
At 31 March 2023 202346 3A31H 194,207 1,330 1,246 196,783
At 31 March 2022 202246 3A318 200,089 1,782 1,363 203,234
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis after taking into account
the residual value over the following useful lives:

Over the duration of the leases
or fifty years, whichever is
the shorter

3to 10 years

Owned properties

Leasehold improvements,
furniture, fixtures and
equipment

Motor vehicles 3 to b years

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group transferred
industrial units from investment properties with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$97,400,000 to property, plant and
equipment upon the completion of acquisition of Eminence
as the properties are leased to a subsidiary of Eminence
(2023: nil).
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

14. 9% - BERRKRE @

EREEME  BENEE  ETEE
UTzrEBFERZRHBKEEGAE
BIATHEINE:

BEME Rz FH
At+E
NEEEHE
HAME - &M 3E10F
®ENERE

"E KEES

HZE202293A31BILEFE - REi K
Bolg AEEEITEEMRER
48 %8 597,400,000 T 2 I B W) ¥ 8
EWME BMEMEZE TTHEHRDER
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out various residential, commercial and
industrial units under operating leases with rentals payable
monthly, quarterly or semi-annually. The leases typically run
for an initial period of 1 to 3 years (2022: 1 to 10 years), with
unilateral rights to extend the lease beyond initial period
held by lessees only. Majority of the lease contracts contain
market review clauses in the event the lessee exercises the
option to extend.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in
the respective functional currencies of group entities. The
lease contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/
or lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of
lease term.

15. REY

AEBRELLHAEHASEEE -
MEMIEEN YREA - BFE
SEBFFURRN—AESES A2
)45 7 B @ B A1 5I3FE (20224F 13
10) A ABREFEDAVIRA
HEmESEHEOTH KZ2HHEES
NHBEMHSERER - AEAEA
TEEREHZEF -

HRAAEROOAEEEREAZY
REBGE BAKREFERABOR
BEmmEERNERR HEANTEER
BRHBEEERE LABAERY
HimERBEMRZEN -

HK$'000
T T
FAIR VALUE ~EE
At 1 April 2021 R2021F 4318 1,179,400
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 16) Wi — MK B AR (E16) 1,285,074
Additions NE 41,433
Disposal e (19,517)
Reclassification to properties held for EF DB AFIELELRRE Y E
development for sale (16,300)
Reclassification to property, plantand EF D EAME  BMENEZHE
equipment (97400)
Increase in fair value recognised in profit 718 25 #3722 A F{E N
or loss 37064
Exchange adjustments & i 3 & 13,819
At 31 March 2022 20229 3A31H 2,423,573
Disposal & (68,150)
Reclassification from properties BN EERIFLHEYME
held for sale 36,887
Increase in fair value recognised in RIBEERZAFEE M
profit or loss 200,225
Exchange adjustments [E 53 & (27.880)
At 31 March 2023 M2023F3A31H 2,564,655
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e M RAR MR

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

15. IWEWZE )

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

Analysed as: PRI

HK$'000
FET

At 31 March 2023 F2023%F3A31H
Assets classified as held for sale DEABELEEE 370,114
Non-current assets JEREBEE 2,194,541
2,564,655

At 31 March 2022 20229 3A31H
Non-current assets EREEE 2,423,573

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
March 2023 and 31 March 2022 have been arrived at on the
basis of valuation carried out on the respective dates by the
following independent firms of qualified professional property
valuers not connected with the Group:

Location of investment
Name of valuers properties

At 31 March 2023

Colliers International Hong Kong
(Hong Kong) Limited

Knight Frank Petty Limited Hong Kong

Vigers Appraisal and Hong Kong and the PRC
Consulting Limited

Edmund Tie & Company Singapore
(SEA) Pte Ltd

At 31 March 2022

Colliers International (Hong ~ Hong Kong

Kong) Limited

Vigers Appraisal and Hong Kong and the PRC
Consulting Limited

Edmund Tie & Company Singapore
(SEA) Pte Ltd
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e T RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The unrealised gain relating to investment properties held at
the end of the reporting period of HK$192,671,000 (2022:
unrealised gain of HK$35,847,000) was recognised in profit
or loss during the year ended 31 March 2023.

All investment properties of the Group are under the Level
3 fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers into or out of
Level 3 during the year.

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of the investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and key inputs used),
as well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is
observable.

15. IWEWZE )

B E2023F3ANBIULFE - RIEHR
BHZIEE YRR IE192,671,000
78 7T (20224F : K & 37 YL 2235,847,0007%8
TLERBEER -

AEBRBERENMENREIRRFE
ERT - ARFEEERRAFESFTRH
BEMEASIEDL -

TRIRNMAEERENEZAFE
ZER(EER FIERZHEESE
R@A) UERBREBEATFEFENEG
AU BREEEINATFESHK(E
12 FE3H) -

Investment properties Fair value Valuation techniques
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity
AREREZRENR AYEMIANE ATEEA HEFERIERA  EARWEEHA 9EE
2023 2022
2235 W0F
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FEr FAT
Classified as
non-current assets
PERFRBEE
Commercial units in 92,500 992,700 Level3 Income approach Term yield, taking into account of yield ~ The higher the term yield,
Hong Kong —term yield generated by market average selling the lower the fair value
price and the market average rental
from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the conditions
of the building, which is 2.7% (2022:
from 2.0% 10 3.0%)
BERREL 34 LN TAkE ZEULEMELOST EHUERR ATE
—EHhE HERRmETHREEE MG  RE
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£20234#3H31H 1t F &

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15. REY= @)
Investment properties Fair value Valuation techniques
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity
AREREZRENE LPEMIANA ATEER HEFERIEHA  EXTUHEEA HEE
2023 2022

20235 2A000E
HKS00  HKSO00

FER AT
—reversionary yield Reversionary yield, taking into account  The higher the reversionary
of yield generated by market average yield, the lower the fair
selling price and the market average value

rental from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the risk
associated with the future rental,
which is 2.7% (2022: from 2.45% to
3.6%)

—E5hs AEkE ZRALENE TS BABUEAR ATHE
THERRMSTHRE ZhER  RE
RBEAXASAREE BLT%

(20225 : 2. 45% Z3.6%)

— monthly term rental Monthly term rental for each unit is The higher the monthly
derived from the average of the term rental rate, the
rental as stated in the existing rental higher the fair value

agreements, which is ranged from
HK$28 to HK$105 per square foot
(2022: from HK$33 to HK$420 per
square foot)

—GAEHHES SRENGATHASIRERERN §ATHALAS AT
BilcTaReRE TR BRA
8B EI06B T (20226 : 8 ¥

RE33ET 2420 T)

—reversionary rental Market monthly rental rate, which is from  The higher the reversionary
HK$24 to HK$118 per square foot market unit rate, the
{2022: from HK$35 to HK$556 per higher the fair value
square foot)

—F5He m58AES  SYARNTUERE EETBENERAR:
N8B T(2022F §YHRABEL  ATERR
E556:8 1)
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e T RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£2023F3/531H 1L F &

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15. REW = @)
Investment properties Fair value Valuation techniques
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity
AREREZRENE LPEMRIANA ATEER HEFERIERA  EXTUHEEA HEE
2023 2022

20235 WNE
HKSO00  HKSO00

TR 7T
Commercial units in 1,103,200 136,900 Level 3 Direct comparison method  Price per square foot, using market direct  The higher the price per
Hong Kong Note (i)} — based on market comparables and taking into account of  square foot, the higher
observable character, location and other individual ~ the fair value
transactions of factors such as road frontage, size of
similar properties property, stc., which is ranged from
and adjusted to HK$43,000 to HK$381,714 (2022:
reflect the locations  HK$60,350 to HK$310,924) per square
and conditions of foot
the subject property
ERHEEN (i) 234 ERLBE BYHREE RATREZILRN SYAREERR AT
—ERAENEZT ER - UEZEMERE LENR GRS
BUBESHREE  EbERRZ mELER 0X
BURBARNEZ  ANE STARNT430008T
EREFR F381,714% 7T (2022 : 60,3508
TE310924% )

Commercial unit in Hong 2,100 2810 Level3 Direct comparison method  Price per car park, using market direct ~ The higher the price per
Kong (car parking —hased on market comparables and taking into account car parking space, the
space) observable of location, age and other individual higher the fair value

transactions of factors, which is HK$2,700,000 (2022:
similar properties HK$2,810,000)
and adjusted to
reflect the locations
and conditions of the
subject properties
ERBEEN(EN) 234 ERLEE SRENER FATSERTLRY SEBNEERR

—ERRENEZT B TEEDENE -BRNR  ATHEAR
BUBETARESE  EpBENEz  HEEBM2700,000
EIRBEENEZ  EL(2022F: 28100005 7T)

frERER
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£20234#3H31H 1t F &

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15. REY= @)
Investment properties Fair value Valuation techniques
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity
AREREZRENE LPEMIANA ATEER HEFERIEHA  EXTUHEEA HEE
2023 2022

20235 2A000E
HKS00  HKSO00

FER AT
Industrial units in 76,400 128800 Level3 Direct comparison Price per square foot, using market direct  The higher the price per
Hong Kong method—based on comparables and taking into account square foot and price
market observable of location, age and other individual per car parking space,
transactions of similar factors, which is ranged from the higher the fair value
properties and adjusted  HK$4,457 to HK$5,508 per square foot
to reflect the locations (2022: from HK$4,008 to HK$9,438
and conditions of the per square foot and car parking space
subject properties of HK$2,600,000 eachl.
BEIEEN 234 BRABA BYHREE RAMSEZALRE BYAREERBHEENL
—ERAENEZT  EH UEZRNEME BRUR  EBRS ATER
SUBRRARER  EtBRRZ SYARNT4MT B
BURBERNE.  BLE5A8ET(02F: §TAR
NERER N 4008 T E9438R T I RE
{E%112,600,000% 2
Industrial-office units in 634,400 519,200 Level3 Income approach Term yield, taking into account of yield ~ The higher the term yield,
Hong Kong (note (iv)) — term yield generated by market average selling the lower the fair value
price and the market average rental
from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the conditions
of the building, which is ranged from
25% 10 2.6% (2022: 2.7%)
ERLEHAEEN (Wit 234 LN EHNE ZEALENE HETY TRANEDE ATE

—EHkE EGRTAETHHCEL L MER  AE
RHEENERZAE  NT25%
22.6% (2020% : 2.7%)

ke
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£2023F3/531H 1L F &

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March
AREREZRENE MPERIANA
2023 2022
2235 W0E
HKS'000 HK$000
FEL AT

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
HEFERTERA

15. IWEWZE )

Significant unobservable inputs

EXATTBERA

Sensitivity

HEE

—reversionary yield

—monthly term rental

—gAEHHe

— reversionary market unit
rate

—BEHAEMER

194

Reversionary yield, taking into account
of yield generated by market average
selling price and the market average
rental from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the risk
associated with the future rental,
whichis 2.6% (2022: 2.7%)

BENE ZEALENE 25T
EERMETYAL AR RE
ARBEER A B26% (2022

£:27%)

Monthly term rental for each unit is
derived from the average of the
rental as stated in the existing rental
agreements, which is ranged from
HK$9.05 to HK$25.05 (2022: HK$13.2
to HK$19.5] per square foot

BEELEATHAL NRERER
sl TReEL  §YAR
N 99,058 7 225,078 70 (20225 :

BUETLE95ET)

Reversionary market unit rate for each
unit is compared with direct market
comparables and taking into account
of character, location and other
individual factor, which is ranged from
HK$18 to HK$7200 (2022: HK$6,420)

per square foot

RENRGTREMER HN5E
BULBRHERELR  UZEY
$RECNENREAENRR
BEARNTISELETN0E T

(2000% : 6.420% 77)

The higher the reversionary
yield, the lower the fair
value

#

S5
=
B

ez
olop
>
-
TmF

co)
=R
Dk

The higher the monthly
term rental rate, the
higher the fair value

The higher the reversionary
market unit rate, the
higher the fair value

BETSELRALS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£20234#3H31H 1t F &

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15. REY= @)
Investment properties Fair value Valuation techniques
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity
AREREZRENE LPEMIANA ATEER HEFERIEHA  EXTUHEEA HEE
2023 2022

20235 2A000E
HKS00  HKSO00

&7 AT
Residential units in Hong 108,300 31800 Level3 Direct comparison method  Price per square foot, using market direct  The higher the price per
Kong —based on market comparables and taking into account square foot, the higher

observable of character, location, age and other the fair value
transactions of individual factors, which is ranged
similar properties from HK$9,014 to HK$40,200 (2022:
and adjusted to HK$8,078 to HK$18,222) per square
reflect the locations ~ foot
and conditions of
the subject property

EAATEN 234 ERLEE BYHREE RAMREETLEN SYAREERS AF

—ERRENEcT  EH UZENEREONE & EAR

SUBRRARE  RURE4BIEZ  §FARN
HEURBERY  TO0UBTE02008 (20205
ERRER 8078 T £18.2225 )

Residential units in 137,041 183,680 Level3 Direct comparison method  Price per square foot, using market direct  The higher the price per

Singapore Note () — based on market comparables and taking into account of  square foot, the higher

observable character, location and other individual ~ the fair value
transactions of factors such as road frontage, size of
similar properties property, etc., which is ranged from
and adjusted o HK$21,971 to HK$25,429 (2022:
reflect the locations ~ HK$20,966 to HK$22,563) per square
and conditions of foot
the subject property

FIRETEN (i) 23 BRI SYHREE RRTMBERALERN §TARERAR AT

—ERFAENELT  ERCUZEMERH NENR 0 EAB
SUBRRSRE  EnENEE - DEEER 0E
ARRMEE  ANE FTARNTUINELE
EIERER 25,4097 70 (20005 : 209668 T £

256375 )
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£2023F3/531H 1L F &

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15. REYWR @)

Investment properties Fair value Valuation techniques
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity
AREREZRENE LPEMRIANA ATEER HEFERTERA  EATTHEEA HEE
2023 2022
2235 20205
HKS 000 HK$000
FEL AT
Industrial units in the PRC = 387683 Level 3 Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate, which is 8% per The higher the
of net income annum capitalisation rate, the
with provisions for lower the fair value
reversionary income
potential Monthly rental rate, taking into account ~ The higher the monthly
of market comparables, which is rental rate, the higher
Renminbi (“RMB") 11.5 per square the fair value

metre

HETEEN £34 BUANFEHEZNA  BERE §EARS% ERfEAS ATHE
ERLELRBEL 2E
WAENGRER
MEERRE ZRMAALBMES - THEEARADAR AT
BIARBARE(ARE)NSE  BER&

Land with attached 40,000 40,000 Level3 Direct comparison method  Price per square foot, using market direct  The higher the price per
structure in Hong — based on market comparables and taking info account  Sauare foot, the higher the
Kong observable of character, location, age and other 1 Vaue

trvanvsactions of individual factors, which is ranged

simir pIOperties o 181,349 to HKS1,600 per

NGRSO g e ot 2022: 1,349 o HKS1 600

reflect the locations

and conditions of LRI

the subject property

EENBRE LY 234 ERLBE BYRRER RRTRERTLERN SYHIREERR AT
—ERNRENETE AR UZEMERECNE B RS

IEERSREAE  RURERENER  8¥HFRA
WRBEBMEZL  F1,3495 21,6007 (20225 :
ERER 1,349% T 21,6005 )
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£20234#3H31H 1t F &

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15. REYWR @)

Investment properties Fair value Valuation techniques
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity
AREREZRENE LPEMIANA ATEER HEFERIEHA  EXTUHEEA HEE
2023 2022
2235 2025
HKS 000 HK$000
i
Classified as
held-for-sale
PEABELE
Industrial units inthe PRC 370,114 — Level3 Depreciated replacement  Replacement cost per square metre, The higher the
(Note (i) cost approach which is ranged from RMBI1,800 to replacement cost per
RMB1,850 per square metre square metre, the
higher the fair value
Depreciation rate, which is ranged from ~ The higher the depreciation
3.6% to 14.1% rate, the lower the fair
value
hETEEN (Hrthi) 234 REEEMAL SIHKEERS NTARMIS0 SFEFREERARR
TEARH18507 AVERR
FEZ . NF36%H141% hEZAG ATHE
a3
256465 2423573
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

On 31 March 2023, the management of the Group offered
an option to an independent third party (the “Purchaser”) to
purchase an investment property located in Singapore with the
fair value of Singapore dollars (“SGD") 11,500,000 (equivalent
to HK$67,494,000), the offer has not been mutually agreed
by the Purchaser before 31 March 2023. On 14 April 2023,
the Purchaser signed the option to purchase agreement and
exercised the option granted by the Group and agreed to
purchase the investment property at a total consideration of
SGD13,009,000 (equivalent to HK$76,752,000). The disposal
is expected to be completed in July 2023. For details, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 14 April 2023.

The assets classified as held for sale as at 31 March 2023
represented lands and buildings in Huzhou to be resumed
by the municipal government at a total consideration
RMB386,982,000 (equivalent to HK$439,752,000) pursuant
to a land resumption agreement signed on 5 October 2022.
As at 31 March 2023, an amount of RMB199,586,000
(equivalent to HK$226,802,000) has been received by the
Group as deposit received. EIT of RMB22,373,000 (equivalent
to HK$25,424,000) has been prepaid by the Group. The
transaction is expected to be completed within twelve months
from the date of classification, accordingly, the investment
properties have been reclassified to assets classified as held
for sale as at 31 March 2023.

During the year, the valuation techniques used for
determining the fair value of certain commercial units
amounting to HK$960,000,000 as at 31 March 2023 (2022:
HK$908,700,000), was changed from income approach to
direct comparison method as the management considers that
there were the most recent market comparables for similar
properties in current year that were appropriate to assess the
fair value of these commercial units.

198

(i

(ii)

(iii)

15. IWEWZE )

g

MR2023%F3A31H K& B & 12
mM—EZ2BYE=ZARTEARDET
BEMRFNEN—BAIAFES
11,500,000% hn 4% 7t ([ #7003 7T (48
B R #167,494,000/8 T) IR A W
B3 12§ - A2023F3A31HAT - B
FRHARZENEXBERE - ¥
2023F4R148 - EHF R EBRIEEE
EHETITEAERR T EEE -
[ E KA 4 4 {E13,009,000% 0 3
7T (F8 & 1476,752,000/8 7T) BEE R &
Y ¥ o 3z & B8 T8 815 7020234F
TR - F1BERBLHMAARBHA
2023F 4[4 R E -

MR2023F3A3MBM N EABELE
2 EEREHaTRFRER2022F
10A68 % 7] & + 0 U 1% 1 8 LA 2
B A K #386,982,0007t (18 & 1
439,752,000 7T) Y2 [B & 588 M T &Y
+ 3 M8 F o B2023%3A31H » &
£ B2 WH A K #199,586,0007T (18
& 14226,802,000/% Jt) 1 B B W %
& AEFEEENCEMEHAR
#22,373,0007T (16 & 7225,424,0007%
) e R ZPHEHER S EABHE
+—@ AR Bt R20237F3
A3B - REMECEF>EAD
HABIEREZEE -

RAFE  BEEETEEELR2023
F3H318 B A F & A960,000,0007%
7T (20224 : 908,700,000% JT) Fr £% A
WEEFZHRAEZEEAEEL
EX DHREEEBRABAEEAR
RELMENST TSI LBEMNE
HEaTHZEREELNATE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15. IREWXE @)

Notes: (Continued) BiaE - (&)

(iv)  During the year, the valuation techniques used for determining (ivi RAFE BETHTILHEENMMN2023
the fair value of certain industrial units amounting to F3A318 1 A F & £58,400,000/%
HK$58,400,000 as at 31 March 2023 (2022: HK$60,500,000), 7t (20224 : 60,500,000/ JT) AT £ A
was changed from direct comparison method to income MEBELTEZHEEERELEREZEE R
approach as the management considers that most recent AZ THREBERARAEE
market unit rates for similar properties in current year were RAEEMENETIMSEMEBRE
appropriate to assess the fair value of these industrial units. EREZEIEEUN R TIE-

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the REEXREMEZATFER  WEZ

highest and best use of the properties is their current use. REBREAERRNERK ZF A

e

As at 31 March 2023, except for the industrial properties R2023F3A318 %370,114,000/%

amounted to HK$370,114,000 (2022: HK$387,683,000), 7t(2022% : 387,683,000/ ) 2 L

the land with attached structure in Hong Kong amounted to W 40,000,000 T(20224

HK$40,000,000 (2022: HK$40,000,000) and a commercial 40,000,000/ 7T) 2 & B M BRZ £+ i

unit in Hong Kong (car parking space) amounted to 1.2,700,0007% JT( 20224 : 2,810,0007%

HK$2,700,000 (2022: HK$2,810,000), all of the Group's B BB FEMEL) N REBR

investment properties have been pledged to secure banking EREMECERUDRERTAEE 2

facilities granted to the Group. RITRUE ©
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16. CHANGES IN EQUITY INTERESTS IN 16. R—EN B ARNKRA RS

A SUBSIDIARY/ACQUISITION OF A
SUBSIDIARY

Acquisition of additional interest in a
subsidiary

During the year ended 31 March 2023, Goodco Development
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
the holder of the convertible notes issued by Eminence
in 2017 and 2019, converted the convertible notes with a
total principal amount of HK$97,280,000 into 400,786,666
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each, resulting in an acquisition
of additional interest in Eminence held by the Group and an
amount of HK$281,959,000, after re-attribution of translative
reserve of HK$1,018,000) was credited to accumulated
profits.

Deemed disposal of partial interestin a
subsidiary

During the year ended 31 March 2023, Eminence allotted
a total of 793,680,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
to certain placees, such placing of shares resulted in a
deemed disposal of partial interest held by the Group. The
difference between the proceeds from placing of shares of
HK$59,180,000 and the attributable non-controlling interest
of HK$1,050,632,000 and re-attribution of translative reserve
of HK$4,351,000, which amounted to HK$995,803,000, was
charged to accumulated profits.

Acquisition of a subsidiary

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group acquired
additional equity interest in Eminence through cash offer and
Eminence became a subsidiary of the Company upon close
of the share offer in April 2021. A loss on remeasurement
of interest in an associate amounting to HK$656,380,000
was recognised in profit or loss, which included release
of translation reserve and FVTOCI reserve amounting to
HK$570,000 and HK$12,707,000, respectively. Aggregate
consideration of HK$210,588,000 has been paid in cash. The
acquisition has been accounted for as acquisition of business
using the acquisition method. At 31 March 2022, the Group
held 74.76% of the issued share capital of Eminence.
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W E—EHE AT
U B — B B 2N 9 3 S 25

R E E2023F3A3MHIEFE - KA
AME2ENBRARIESZEREERA
A &= WL R20174F K 20194 3 1T Ky A
RBREBZEBEA BA2BEAR
97,280,000 LM A MR RiE & A
400,786,666 1% & % [ {H0.01% T &) &
BER SRWEBAEEMFES L
MBENEZREETRBE LHE
1,018,000/ 7L 1% + 281,959,000/ jt B
STARFHAF o

gﬁﬁ%m—ﬁWEﬁﬂZ%ﬁﬁE

REE2023F3A31BIEEE  51A
A TR A B % & $£793,680,000%
SHREECBTHERR ZER
MEOEEENRIELEARAEEHFFS
D o K AR SR %K 59,180,000
BT ERIEEEGEIETERER
#91,050,632,000% JT & & %7 55 B B
W 154,351,000 T2 MW E B A
995,803,000/ 7t © B 8 & & & A 0
[gé.f °

W A —EH BT

HE2022F3A31HILFE AEEFE B
ReZHWESILBEIINEAEZE Mo
W RIR2021F4R R BN E RIBK B
ARRlz—ENBRAG - EFFTEHE
N A #E 2% 2 [E5 18 /5656,380,0007% 7T
BEEERTER BERRELFEER
ERAFEFAEMEZERSREED A
570,0007% 7T %.12,707,000/8 jc» 2K (B
210,588,000/ T E AR & F1+f- IIESE
HEFBREEARIEEBKE - B
2022938310 AEBEFAES LB
1THEART74.76% °
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

16. CHANGES IN EQUITY INTERESTS IN 16. R—ENBATRNKRA RS

A SUBSIDIARY/ACQUISITION OF A B, WE-ENEAR @
SUBSIDIARY (Continued)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued) W B —RER B AT (4%)
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised on the RUBAHERNE KIEZEER
date of acquisition BE
HK$'000
FET
Investment properties "EY 1,285,074
Property, plant and equipment WME - WEKEE 5,517
Right-of-use assets EREEE 48
Financial assets at FVTPL BEATEFAESZCEREE 153,365
Debt instruments at FVTOCI EAFEFAEMZEKTE 2
EBHBIE 36,182
Loans receivable FE W B 121,347
Deferred tax assets BELERIEE E 8,250
Properties held for development for sale BEHEERYDE 2,760,807
Trade and other receivables 8 5 N E g W RIE 119,233
Bank balances and cash RITHEB AR S 98,736
Trade and other payables B 5 N E M R (100,780)
Tax payable P& 77 18 (8,882)
Secured bank borrowings BEMBIRITEE (1,508,353)
Convertible notes A}k EE (199,944)
Lease liabilities HEBE (50)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIABE (19,767)
2,750,783
Except for the loans receivable and debt instruments R pA Uk B8 B HA DA & £ {E121,347,0007%
at FVTOCI acquired with fair values of HK$121,347,000 7T 536,182,000 7T W & #9 FE I B K
and HK$36,182,000 at the date of acquisition had PEAFEFAEMEZE R E 2EB
gross contractual amounts of HK$173,605,000 and TAMEHHETE D R /173,605000%
HK$39,530,000, respectively, the remaining receivables 7 }.39,5630,000/% 7T 4 - H 4 B UL fE
acquired mainly comprise of trade and other receivables with EWRIBXZRERKWERBRAATE
a fair value of HK$119,233,000 at the date of acquisition #%119,233,000% 7T 2 B 5 & H th J& Ut
which were approximated to the gross contractual amounts. HIE - BHESBHSGNBEMRSE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

16. CHANGES IN EQUITY INTERESTS IN

A SUBSIDIARY/ACQUISITION OF A
SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued)
Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests (25.24%) in Eminence
recognised at the acquisition date of HK$726,200,000 was
measured by reference to the proportionate share of the
assets and liabilities of Eminence Group on acquisition date,
representing the assets acquired and liabilities recognised
for the Group of HK$2,750,783,000, adjusted by: (i) adding
back the difference in fair value and liability component of
the convertible notes issued by Eminence to the Group of
HK$141,780,000 less deferred tax liabilities related to these
convertible notes of HK$15,343,000, and (ii) adding back
right-of-use assets of HK$5,634,000 less lease liabilities of
HK$5,674,000, recognised by Eminence in relation to lease
arrangements between Eminence and the Group.

Gain on bargain purchase on acquisition of a
subsidiary

16. I —E B AT IR A #E 1= 2
BB B AT ()

W EE—EME AT (&)
FE 1R AE 2

U BE B HA T 3R 4 58 /A2726,200,00008
TCR L FE R IR M 25 (25.24%) T & E
BLEERKBEEENEERABGEL
B 5 = - M8 E KA % E2,750,783,000
BTHEREBEERDCEREE &
LTEERAZ - ()EELmAEER
ﬁ*ﬁﬂﬁﬂx EEN AT EEEEI

5 ) = ¥E141,780,00058 7T 18 W = %
#T?ﬁ’ﬂx " BEEMNELERBAEE
15,343,000 JT : K (i) pn B 5 FA & &
EE5,634,00078 JL1& Bk 2= = LU Bt H B A
EEAMFVAETHRRANEERR
5,674,0007% 7T °

okt

WE—EHEBRAELZHEBK
B W &

HK$'000
FET
Consideration transferred BEERE 210,588
Plus: interest in an associate upon M-EFFEELAFEN —HEE QA

remeasurement to fair value = 137,844
Plus: non-controlling interests hnc JE R R s 726,200
Less: recognised amount of net assets acquired 8 : D WEEE FENER L HE (2,750,783)
(1,676,151)

The directors of the Company considered that the acquisition ARBEERAE WERLALRAR

of Eminence was an effective channel for the Company
to expand into the non-residential property development
sector and could create synergy values by achieving greater
business coherence and enhancing resources allocation.
Gain on bargain purchase on acquisition of a subsidiary
amounting to HK$1,676,151,000 is recognised in profit or
loss as a separate line in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. The transaction
resulted in a bargain purchase gain as the fair value of shares
of Eminence is much less than the net assets acquired at the
date of acquisition.
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I WRHELEREENERKES
MEREERIE  HmHEEHRREE
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16. CHANGES IN EQUITY INTERESTS IN
A SUBSIDIARY/ACQUISITION OF A
SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued)

Net cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£20234#3H31H 1t F &

16. BA—FH B AT A M 2
B, WE—EH B AT

W B B AR (#)

WE—BEHEBRAELEZRE RS
FH

HK$'000

T T

Consideration paid ERRE (210,588)
Less: cash and cash equivalents balances B EKREReIRESEEVESR

acquired 98,736

(111,852)

Included in the Group’s revenue and profit for the year
(after intragroup eliminations) is HK$58,770,000 and
HK$56,445,000 attributable to Eminence, respectively.

No proforma information of revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 April 2021 is presented as
the contributions are insignificant.

17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

REBAFEMNE XB R E MK
SERARIZHEEHE R BE WL
fE 15 B 9 5 A&58,770,000%8 T &
56,445,000 7T °

B 2 ) A B R2021F4818 T KX

WRERERERNEXBREEXE
MEBEER ABRERMEITEK -

17. & AT)HEZE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET

Cost of investments in unlisted joint RIELETMEERTZ
ventures & & B AR 1,797 1,744
Share of post-acquisition losses paklRl g Xy (1,583) (1,692)
214 52
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£20234#3531H 1- £ &

17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 17. & RARIER &)
(Continued)
Details of the Group's principal joint venture at the end of the RBEBHAR AEEZETEE5ERF
reporting period are as follows: HEMT
Proportion of Proportion of
Name of joint venture Place of incorporation ownership interest voting power held Principal activity
RENRER R RE RERERLA FrisRERLA TEEH
2023 2022 2023 2022
2023% 2022 20235 2022
Bonita Springs Global Limited ~ British Virgin Islands (“BVI") 50% 50% 50% 50% Investment holding
RERABEG(EBRAES)) REABRK
No financial information of the joint ventures is disclosed in BHREERRIEASETREATE
the consolidated financial statements as the joint ventures WY EBRGEVBEREEBREGZE AT

are not material to the Group.

18.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

ZHHBER -

18. BAFEFABRZZEHME

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Listed investments, at fair value: FWERE  EAFE:
— Equity securities listed in Hong —REBREINET 2R
Kong and overseas (note (i) KEH (B0 126,726 287033
Unlisted investments, at fair value: FLEMIEE AT E:
— Unlisted securities (note (i) — JE LB E (B i) 6,264 =
— Investment in limited partnership — WEBRE R K i)
(note (ii1)) 28,230 27087
— Life insurance policies (note (iv)) — ABREWHv) 14,436 13,718
— Film right investment (note (v)) — B RERE M Fw) 15,504 15,756
— Principal protected deposits — RATF (T 5% (vi)
(note (vi)) - 27171
— Investment funds (note (vii)) —REESE (K #F (i) - 7339
— Equity-linked notes (note (viii)) — R E B8, (A 22 (vii) = 27570
191,160 405,674
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18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£20234#3H31H 1t F &

18. BAFEFAEBERZZERME
Eu)

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$000 HK$'000
FETT FE T

Analysed as: 2RI
— Current assets — REBEE 142,230 362,400
— Non-current assets —FERBEE 48,930 43,274
191,160 405,674

The Group's financial assets at FVTPL that are denominated
in a currency other than the functional currencies of the

7 S5 A A6 o L D) A O DA S0
EHEHEZ AT EHARDZ B

relevant group entities are set out below: BEESHINWOT
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
United States dollars (“US$") Erx(xExD 55,428 43,357
RMB AR 15,504 15,756

Notes: B it -

(i) The fair values of the listed equity securities were determined
based on the quoted market bid prices available on the Stock
Exchange or an overseas recognised stock exchange.

(ii) In March 2023, the Group invested a minority stake of an
unlisted investment holding company which holds an entity
with subsidiaries engaged in beverage business in the PRC at
a consideration of USD800,000 (equivalent to HK$6,264,000).
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(i)

(ii)

IR AZBSZ2AFEDRERR
BN RABLRRGAARZT
BHEETE -

2023437 A& E LA {800,000
= (% 176,264,000/8 7T) % & — [
FLEMREERAANNDHRE Z
AR E—HBEERTPENEHRE
KRB AT EE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£2023F3/531H 1L F &

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes. (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

The amount at 31 March 2023 represented HK$28,230,000
(2022: HK$27,087,000) for interest in a limited partnership (the
“Limited Partnership”) as a limited partner.

The interest in the Limited Partnership is recognised as
follows:

18. RAVEFABEZZERME

=3

(

42
A

(A=

/

B et (&)

(i)

M2023%3A318 - BRAE(A
REBDIEREREBAZER R
28,230,000 JT(20224F : 27,087,000
BT o

BEREBZERERNT

HK$'000

T

At 1 April 2021 20214818 —
Acquisition of a subsidiary U B — R B A A 12,089
Additions NE 6,145
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss REEBRZAFERZ 8,770
Exchange adjustments ME 5 70 B 83
At 31 March 2022 202243 A31H 27087
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss REZBRACAFERS 971
Exchange adjustments M X, 58 B 172
At 31 March 2023 720233 H31H 28,230

In May 2021, Goldchamp International Limited (“Goldchamp”),
a subsidiary of the Company, entered into life insurance
policies with an insurance company to insure Ms. Lui Yuk Chu,
a director of the Company, and Mr. Koon Wing Yee, general
manager of the Company. Under the policies, Goldchamp is
the beneficiary and policy holder and the total insured sum is
US$2,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,480,000). Goldchamp
is required to pay an upfront deposit of US$2,000,000
(equivalent to HK$15,480,000) including a premium charge at
inception of the policies amounting to US$400,000 (equivalent
to HK$3,096,000). Goldchamp can terminate the policies at
any time and receive cash back based on the cash value of
the policies at the date of withdrawal, which is determined
by the upfront payment of US$2,000,000 plus accumulated
interest earned and minus the accumulated insurance charge
and policy expense charge. Goldchamp’s insurance policies
have been pledged to secure banking facilities granted to
Goldchamp.
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(iv)

202168 + KRR Z WE A Attt
EEBAERAR(HE])H—ER
BARGIZABREURREAQR
EEEIHRLLIRARGBBAEETS
KERE - REZRE HEAT
SEARREREEARBRRES
2,000,000 7t (48 % 7415,480,0007%
JC) o & 7B X 1% £2,000,000
2 70 (F8 5 715,480,000 7T) © B
R AR E AN 2R 400,000
= 7t (M8 & 73,096,00058 L) » t &
ARTMERKREZRERBIER
REZREZRESEERDE S -
it 75 48 #% 38 £ $£2,000,0003 7T & BT
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18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(Continued)

In December 2021, Eminence entered into life insurance
policies with an insurance company to insure Ms. Lui Yuk
Chu, a director of the Company. Under the policies, Eminence
is the beneficiary and policy holder and the total insured sum
is US$120,000 (equivalent to HK$933,000). Eminence is
required to pay an upfront deposit of US$120,000 (equivalent
to HK$933,000). Eminence can terminate the policies at any
time and receive cash back based on the cash value of the
policies at the date of withdrawal, which is determined by the
upfront payment of US$120,000 plus accumulated interest
earned and minus the accumulated insurance charge and
policy expense charge.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group entered
into an agreement with a film production house for a total
investment cost of RMB13,600,000. The film right investment
represented the 20% of interest of film production which
entitled the Group to predetermined percentage of income to
be generated from the film based on the Group’s investment
portion as specified in respective film right investment
agreement. As at 31 March 2023, the fair value of the film
right investment which amounted to HK$15,504,000 (2022:
HK$15,756,000) is measured using the discounted cash flow
method. As the film delay expected broadcast from fourth
quarter of 2022 to fourth quarter of 2023, the film right
investment is classified as a current asset in both years.

As at 31 March 2022, the principal protected deposits were
denominated in RMB and issued by banks in the PRC. They
contained embedded derivative, the interest rate of which
was determined with reference to the exchange rate of US$
against HKD and ranged from 1.00% to 3.00% per annum.

The investment funds were denominated in RMB and
issued by an unlisted entity in the PRC. The fair values of the
investment funds were measured using the discounted cash
flow method. The expected interest rate was 6% per annum.
The investment funds were matured and defaulted in payment
during the year ended 31 March 2023.
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18. BATEHABSZ SME
Ewm

Brat o (&)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(&)

M2021F12A8 - mLE—HREAQ
ARV ASRENRREARGES
EEHRLT - BREZRE "5LA
T ARREFBEARBRRES
120,000 7t (#8 % 7 933,000/ L) ©
= 1L 7B 4B 42 £120,0003 7T (A7
% 74933,000/8 7T) ° @& W AT A T
BEARLIFZRERBERRBEZR
EHRESEBBARBES I HRE
78 1+ $120,0003 7T & T BEEL 2 251
FMERINBREFRERREE AR
ST MEE -

H E2022F3A3BLEE A& H
H-EZEERARFI L — D
1835 & R B A R #13,600,0007T ©
BYMEREEEE R E20%HE
wm FAEEBHERERNEBREY
MRIEEEREPETHNBEELD
ERADEEBEEHELERARN
ETBADL - R2023%F3A31H * &
¥R E 2 A FE A15,504,000
7 7T (20224 : 15,756,000/ 7T) * /b
FANBEBRSREANENSGE - A
REBEE BT H202FFNFE
EEZEZMR2023FFMNEE LB - X
BEYREREREMEFESEA
MEEE -

MW2022F3A31H - RAGFHRUAAR
BOIETHRPERZRITHET - H
BEHRARTETR BT aXxB
TWREETLRBLZEE  HFEF
N F1.00% E3.00% °

REESUARBSEL HFEHEIFE
EMEEET - REESIEHAE
BB REXFE - BHENRE
6% o & & & & KB £2023F3A31
AEFEERHERHER M -
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18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 18. BAFEAEBREZERME
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued) E)

Notes: (Continued) BiaE: (&)

(vii)  (Continued) (vii) (&)
The investment funds are recognised as follows: REESHROT:
HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2021 R2021%F4R18 —
Acquisition of a subsidiary I iE — M E R A 9,827
Interest received 2 F B (825)
Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss REZERZAFEFIE (1,641)
Exchange adjustments HE 3, 38 B (22)
At 31 March 2022 202243 A31H 7.339
Interest received B F 8 (161)
Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss REZBRRAZAFEEE (6,601)
Exchange adjustments fE 5 3 & (577)
At 31 March 2023 M2023%F3A31H —
(viii)  The fair values of the equity-linked notes as at 31 March 2022, (viii) IREHE B FEER2022F3A31H 24

which amounted to HK$27,570,000, were determined based
on the market closing prices quoted by banks. The equity-

F B /327,670,000 7T © JIiR B IR 1T
BT EEE REBBRER

linked notes were matured during the year ended 31 March

2023.

The equity-linked notes are recognised as follows:

BREHARREERDT:

H E2023F3A31HILFEEIH -

HK$'000

FET

At 1 April 2021 R2021%F4R18 6,231
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note) U B — B B R R (A 2E) 7058
Additions (note) NE (K T) 131,000
Disposals & (31,248)
Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss REZERACAFEEE (6,571)
Transfer to listed equity securities (note) WA LWRAEZ S (K77 (76,915)
Interest received B F S (1,850)
Exchange adjustments P& X 8 & (135)
At 31 March 2022 72022434318 27570
Additions (note) NE (W) 44,000
Disposals k= (43,312)
Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss REZBRRAZAFEEE (807)
Transfer to listed equity securities (note) [N il N ) (27.308)
Interest received B F 8 (143)
At 31 March 2023 72023434318 —
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(viii)  (Continued)

Note: Save as disclosed otherwise in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following
non-cash transaction. During the year ended 31
March 2023, the Group acquired equity-linked notes
for HK$44,000,000 (2022: HK$138,058,000). These
equity-linked notes were linked to securities listed on
the Stock Exchange. Subsequent to the acquisition,
certain equity-linked notes of HK$27,308,000 (2022:
HK$76,915,000) were converted into listed equity
securities as the share price at date of maturity of the
underlying securities reached the strike price.

DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£20234#3H31H 1t F &

18. RAVEFABEZZERME

=305

Brat: (&)
(viii)  (45)

Me: BEEVERESEESR
9I\ CAREBMAUTIHERS
T 5 o NE E2023%F3A31
BEFEE - AE@EB AR
= # $9 Z $£44,000,000%8
7t (20224 : 138,058,000
BIL) - ZEREHBERE
THEPEE XA BT 2B
M- BAKB ETRE
B $5 Z 327,308,000 T
(20224 : 76,915,000/ JT)
BEBRAEFTMERAES -
AiEEEFHFBREREBHA
BEITHEERS -

19. RO EFAEMZEEK S

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE ZEBIA
INCOME
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Listed investments, at fair value: EWEE  BAFE:
Debt securities listed in Hong Kong REBNBINETZEEFE
or overseas with fixed interests 5 BEFEMENTH
ranging from 6.50% to 9.50% 6.50% £9.50% (20224 :
(2022: 6.92% to 9.50) per annum 6.92% %9.50%) * EIHi B
and maturity dates ranging from 20229 4 A11H £2025
11 April 2022 to 11 July 2025 F£7A8118 (20224 : 2022
(2022: 11 April 2022 to 21 January FAR1MH £2023F1 721
2023) (Note) B)(#at) 1,095 4,884
Analysed as: DA
Current assets mENE E 624 4,884
Non-current assets EmMBEE 471 —
1,095 4,884
Note: As at 31 March 2023, included in the balance is an amount of Kiat: H2023FE3A31H @ &2 B IER R

HK$624,000 which is past due as at reporting date.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, debt instruments at FVTOCI
are stated at fair values which are determined based on the
quoted market closing prices available on the Stock Exchange
or overseas recognised stock exchanges.
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19.

20.

DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (Continued)

Debt instruments at FVTOCI are listed bonds with the credit
loss allowance measured on 12m ECL basis when the credit
risk on financial instruments has not increased significantly
since initial recognition. For those credit-impaired bonds,
credit loss allowance is measured using lifetime ECL. The
Group assessed the ECL for debt instruments at FVTOCI by
reference to credit rating of the bond investment by rating
agencies, macroeconomic factors affecting the respective
industry for each issuer, corporate historical default and loss
rate and exposure of default of each bond investment.

Credit loss allowance of HK$5,378,000 was recognised in
profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022:
HK$22,286,000).

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 39.

All debt instruments at FVTOCI are denominated in US$, a
currency other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities, at the end of the reporting period.

DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTISED
COST

19. ROV EFAHMEEW S

ZEEIR®

EeRMIAZEERBREV AR N
RIYB|BEIRNE - HAFEFAH
thrER s 2B T AERI2EAEH
FERREEFECFEBRRAEMBL
tHES - REHFEEREESFTE
FEEERGERABEANNEN
FEBRFAE -AKE2EFAKE
HEFREZEEFR RESHNT
ABRTTEZEZBRERE  ©EE
LROXRBREURZEFKRERE
HWRER  FHEEAFEFARGCEZE
WavEHRITAZERERERSR-

#H £2023F3H31H IF F & » 5,378,000
BT ZEEEBEEREREZINER
(20224F : 22,286,000 7T) °

BRABE A ZF BRI M FEI9 -
RmERR AERAFEFAEM

PHEHKEZEHFTANEBREEES
DR EE AN EB R TEE -

20. RBERATEZEBTR

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH#E T
Unlisted debt instruments in Hong Kong & &I FHEFLIE
Fixed-rate unsecured promissory note ENEIEEREALER

(the “Promissory Note") (note (a)) (I H W’ DK () 23,490 23,340
Fixed-rate secured note (the “Secured EEMRERER ([EREE )

Note") (note (b)) (K &2 (b)) 12,800 16,004
Other unsecured notes HEIEEREE 2,095 18,918
Less: Impairment allowance R E B (1,771) (1,890)

36,614 56,372

Analysed as: DA
Current assets mENEE - 15,436
Non-current assets EREEE 36,614 40,936
36,614 56,372
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20. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTISED
COST (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

In May 2021, the Group and Lion Best Global Limited
(the “issuer”), an independent third party incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, entered into a promissory note
agreement with principal amount of US$3,000,000 which
carried interest at 8% per annum and will be fully repayable on
the maturity date of 25 September 2025. At 31 March 2023,
the carrying amount of the promissory note (net of impairment
allowance) was HK$22,576,000 (2022: HK$22,426,000).

In January 2020, Mark Profit Development Limited (“Mark
Profit”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a subscription agreement with Reliance Global Holdings
Limited (the “Note Issuer”), which its shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange, pursuant to which Mark Profit subscribed
the Secured Note issued by the Note Issuer in the principal
amount of HK$16,000,000, with interest rate of 7.125% per
annum, which HK$3,200,000 was repaid during the year
ended 31 March 2023. In January 2023, the Group entered
into a supplemental agreement to extend the maturity date
of the remaining principal amount of HK$12,800,000 to 16
January 2025, with interest rate unchanged. The Secured
Note is secured by a debenture incorporating by a first floating
charge over all the undertaking, property and assets of a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Note Issuer.

The Promissory Note, Secured Note and other unsecured
notes were measured at amortised cost since the Group's
business model to hold these debt instruments is to hold
for collection of contractual cash flows, and the cash flows
represented solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding. The Group assesses the
ECL with reference to the internal credit rating of the issuer
assigned by the Group.

Reversal of credit loss allowance of HK$119,000 (2022: credit
loss allowance of HK$1,090,000) was recognised in profit or
loss during the year ended 31 March 2023.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 39.
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20. BBHEUATEZEHR LA

i

’
(28 )
NG,

(a)  H2021%F5AH © & % B B Lion Best
Global Limited ([ 2 77 A D(— & R &
BHBRAEESEMAINBILIES
FANEARZEHeE A8 A
3,000,000 7T © FH & B8E « I 1§
R EIHI H2026F9A25H B & E & -
M2023E3A3ME AR ER ZE®T
B (R E# %) £22,576,000/% 7T
(20224 : 22,426,000 7T) °

(b)  M2020F18 - ARAZ2EHE QR
BERBEEARQARA(EZ)EESER
BEERERARTEEEITAL
HBRHORBRT EM) I RE WS
B 828 A R £16,000,0007% JT 7R
BEERBETABITHNERZRITIZ
F | E7126% 5H 2 - & £2023F3A
318 I F [ + {8 #3,200,000/%8 7T °
MR2023F1A  AEEFTLH T HE
5 ¥ £8 28 412,800,000 7T #9 & B B
TR E2025% 10168 © Fll R & -
EREZEBEDIUASRZBEBITAZE
MBARKMEZHER MEREE
ZER—FYWIECEEBEER-

HRASBERAEZSEB LA ZER
BEABSURBDAENASRENSE
BAEREE EREBRREMIEER
SBRRBHERAGE BRERERE
RERSBERREEREMEZAK -
AEBSEEMERNETAZAL
EEFRFHEREEEE -

H E2023F3A3MBILFED R IE %

REEEEBREERED A119,0008 T
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JTL) °
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21. LOANS RECEIVABLE

21. BIWRE

2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FAE T

Fixed-rate loans receivable E B W E K 298,671 342,252
Variable-rate loans receivable FEERER 2,136 3,080
300,807 345,332
Less: Impairment allowance R B B (110,914) (99,352)
189,893 245,980

Analysed as: ek

Current assets MEBEE 159,272 152,031
Non-current assets IEREBEE 30,621 93,949
189,893 245,980

Secured B I 18 120,638 153,948
Unsecured i 69,255 92,032
189,893 245,980

No aged analysis is disclosed, as in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the aged analysis does not give
additional value in view of the nature of business of loan
financing.

At 31 March 2023, the range of interest rate on the Group's
fixed-rate loans receivable is 0% to 16% (2022: 2.3% to
16%) per annum and the range of interest rate on the Group’s
variable-rate loans receivable is prime rate less 1% to prime
rate (2022: prime rate less 1% to prime rate) per annum.

Impairment assessment

Before granting loans to outsiders, the Group assesses the
potential borrower’s credit quality and defines credit limits
granted to each borrower. The credit limits attributed to the
borrowers are reviewed by the management regularly.

The management closely monitors the credit quality of loans
receivable amounting to HK$189,893,000 at 31 March 2023
(2022: HK$245,980,000). At 31 March 2023, allowance
for loans receivable amounted to HK$110,914,000 (2022:
HK$99,352,000). Except for those credit-impaired loans
receivable, there are no loans receivable which are past due
at the end of the reporting period.

2%

BMERBEREIN  BARBEER
BoREFBREEXEHKUEEMS Rk
DT B R SME(E -

M2023F3A31E AEE 2 E B E
WEREFFENT0%ZE16% (2022
F:23%E16%) MAEE 2 Z B EIK
BEREFMNENTREEZENZRI%
EREEMNERQIN2F - REEHX
B1% ExEEFER) -

BB R fd

ERMERFINRERN  AEEF G
BEERAZEGHEEREERTE
MGk A 2 {5 88 - IR EE i
BTERAZEESE -

ERERTETF N2023F3A31H
€15 45189,893,000/ ;L (20224 :
245,980,000/ 7T) v EWEREEHE
=0 R2023F3A31H BIREZEH A
110,914,0005% 75(20224F : 99,352,000
B cBREBEREMERERIN R
wEPABEDR Y BRERK-
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21. LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued) 21. EWEF @)
Impairment assessment (Continued) W AE R ()
Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 39. A IHFE BN FEI9 -
The movement of impairment allowance for loans receivable EWER 2 REREESHNT
is as follows:
Lifetime ECL
— credit-
12m ECL impaired Total
BEBHW
EHEE
1218 A HA BB —
FEEE EERE M
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2021 R2021F471H 5,675 75,202 80,777
Changes due to loans receivable 72021 3H31HE R
recognised as at 31 March JIE U B 3R P B MY
2021
— Repayments (note (i) —EBEZ0) (465) (7.812) (8,277)
— Net remeasurement of ECL ~ —E #F st 8 FFE 2
(note (i) B BB M) (1,844) 15,467 13,623
Changes due to new loans arising Y88 — R M B 2 A E £ #7
from acquisition of a subsidiary BRI A E H
— Settlement by properties — A ¥
(note (v)) (H1 &) — (8,649) (8,649)
— Impairment loss recognised ~ — 2R EE 1B
(note (iv)) (1 &% (iv) 52 21,552 21,604
New loans granted (note (i) BEIE (K 2 (i) 274 — 274
(1,983) 20,558 18,575
At 31 March 2022 720229 3A31H 3,592 95,760 99,352
Changes due to loans receivable 722022F3A31HEZ# R
recognised as at 31 March ERERFIENED
2022
— Repayments (note (i)) —BEHF0) (153) (4,848) (5,001)
— Net remeasurement of ECL~ —E# st £ FFEHZ
(note (i) BB (A et i) 270 16,000 16,270
New loans granted (note (iii)) B E (77 i) 293 = 293
410 11,152 11,562
At 31 March 2023 20234 3A31H 4,002 106,912 110,914
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21. LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

The reversal of impairment loss of HK$5,001,000 (2022:
HK$8,277,000) was related to loans receivable with gross
carrying amount of HK$52,524,000 (2022: HK$41,154,000)
which has been fully repaid during the year.

The remeasurement of ECL of HK$16,270,000 (2022:
HK$13,623,000) was related to loans receivable with gross
carrying amount of HK$292,807,000 (2022: HK$180,438,000).

The impairment loss of HK$293,000 (2022: HK$274,000)
was related to loans receivable with gross carrying amount
of HK$8,000,000 (2022: HK$77,700,000) which are newly
granted during the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the impairment loss
of HK$21,604,000 was related to loans receivable with gross
carrying amount of HK$87,194,000 which are arising from a
subsidiary acquired during prior year.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, unsecured loans
receivable arising from acquisition of Eminence with gross
carrying amount of HK$11,719,000 have been further
impaired for an amount of HK$8,649,000. Subsequently,
the loans receivable and the relevant interest receivable of
HK$1,084,000 have been settled by properties with properties
with fair value of HK$40,000,000, which constituted a
non-cash transaction and resulted in a gain on settlement of
loans receivable by properties of HK$35,846,000 during the
year.
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21. BIREF @)

A
ES

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

FAE ()

B &5 B [ 25,001,000 7T (2022
:8,277,0008 L) ME R A F B &
(28 2 R m 4 E 552,524,000/ 70
(20224 : 41,154,000 7T) 2 E W &
RER -

B EEH{EEEE 216,270,000
7 7T (20224F : 13,623,000 JT) & BR
T 48 {8 /£292,807,0007% 7T (20224 :
180,438,000 7T) 2 [EWWE B # -

B 5 18 2293,00058 7L( 20224 ¢
274,000/ ) ERAFEHRHZ
B T 42 {8 /58,000,000 7T( 20224
77,700,000 70) 2 FEW E KB -

H E2022F3A3IHILFEE - BER
821,604,000/ 7T £ 7 i@ & F E AT
WE—HNBARELEZ FEAAE
£87,194,000 T2 EWERER -

HE2022F3831BILFE WES
LWEAZERBERREREELAE
11,719,000/ L EAE# — B 1E -
B & %8 58,649,000/ 7T - &4« &
I B 3% X 4E B8 FE U F 21,084,000
7T 5 LA A F {& 440,000,000 7T 2
MESZEN BRIEBEREH WK
FEBEBENDERKERZKE
35,846,000 Tt °
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22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

22. BILEE

Crypto
assets Trading right Total
g%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FETT FETT FET

(note i) (note ii)

(K7 5%1) (Kt atin)
COST OR REVALUED AMOUNT gk AN 8k E {5 & 58
At 1 April 2021 R2021%4A18 — 500 500
Additions NE 10,733 — 10,733
Loss on revaluation HHEBE (723) — (723)
Disposal & (3,447) — (3,447)
At 31 March 2022 720229 3A31H 6,563 500 7,063
Additions =T 2,839 — 2,839
Impairment loss R 1B B 18 (3,207) = (3,207)
Disposal & (401) - (401)
Exchange adjustments PE 5 3 & 53 — 53
Loss on revaluation EHEBE (5,847) = (5,847)
At 31 March 2023 720234 3A31H — 500 500
Notes: Bt

(i)

As at 31 March 2022, the Group's crypto assets were carried
at a revalued amount of HK$6,563,000 being the fair value
of the crypto assets determined by reference to their market
price. If the crypto assets of the Group had not been revalued,
they would have been included in these consolidated financial
statements at historical cost and their carrying amounts would
have been HK$7,397,000 as at 31 March 2022 (2023: nil).

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the crypto assets
trading platform went into bankruptcy and the Group fully
impaired the remaining crypto assets.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the years
ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.
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(i)

MR2022%F3A31H - AEB 2B E
& E /56,563,000 T % & 4
KEFHIE NEEEEELR
EHMEETZAFE - MAEEH
mMZEEEEREEL NSRE
ERAFAZSEHZRAVBE®RE B
H R202263A3HM R E B 5 =
7,397,000/ 7T (20234 : 4&) -

B E2023F3A3BILFE  MEE
BEEXSTEWRE AKSEEZH
HMERBMNEEEEE -

H £2023F K%202293A31H IFF &
FEIR AT EELBE( AL -
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22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii) As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group has a trading right,
which is stated at cost, with carrying value of HK$500,000
that confers eligibility of Constance Capital Limited
(“Constance Capital”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, to trade on the Stock Exchange for the purpose
of securities dealing and broking. The trading right has no
foreseeable limit to the period that Constance Capital can
use to generate net cash flows. As a result, the trading right
is considered by management of the Company as having
an indefinite useful life because it is expected to contribute
to net cash inflows indefinitely. The trading right will not be
amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite. It will
be tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an
indication that it may be impaired. At 31 March 2023 and
2022, no impairment loss has been recognised in respect
of Constance Capital’s trading right as amount involved is
insignificant.

23. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

FOR SALE

The Group's properties held for development for sale are
situated in Hong Kong.

At 31 March 2023, HK$2,595,506,000 (2022:
HK$1,850,951,000) of properties held for development for
sale are expected to be completed within twelve months
after the end of the reporting period, while the rest are
expected to be completed more than twelve months after
the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group performed
assessment of net realisable value on its properties held
for development for sale with reference to valuations made
by independent qualified professional property valuers not
connected with the Group. The valuations were arrived at
by using the residual method. As at 31 March 2023, there
was an increase in the estimated net realisable value of the
properties held for development for sale which were written
down in prior years, a net write-back of HK$11,832,000 (2022:
HK$1,629,000) was recognised in profit or loss due to the
gradual recovery of property market from Covid-19 pandemic
in both years.
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22.

23.

BREEE @
Bt (48)

(i) 720234 K&202243H3180 © K&
WA AR AN 5 E B BR B {E500,00078
TTZRGE  ZRXPEFLEER
ERABI(LAHEELR] Karlz—
ME2EMB AR BERNEATHE
TEE NETEERIRERE
oo\ EAFERHREHRZR
SENEEXRSAEFE - A
ARAREBEERARIERERKE
BEMREHEATERBEFRE S
MEFE XHZBTSWEHFEESR
HERAFTHETAEBER - WX F#E
EREFRSERBRTREBARERE
BF 3E 7705 B B 5 o 720234 &2022
F3A3A ARFRZEBITE
K AHEEAZR G LB RERL
BWHER -

FELEREYR

AEBZHFLEZRYEDURE

B e

720234 3H31H © 2,595,506,000/8
7t (20224 : 1,850,951,000/8 JT) 2 #*
EREEEMERRRREB R 2%
TZEARER BT Z2HEHER
EYEFEHARFEHARA+—M@EAZ
B5ERK -

720234 20224938318 » A& B 5
BIELERRMEETZEEFE
T2 ERASEELSBERBE B
EEREEYEMGHBEMITZMEE - %
ZHEDREFRKGEEESDH - X8
TFEHBREZBIELEERYE
A] & 35 0% (4 {E 12023938318 B F1
A - HAREREFERMEMSR
2009 R mERBBEFREHER - 18
I A B e R 4 8] F 5811,832,0007% T
(20224 : 1,629,000 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£20234#3H31H 1t F &

23. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 23. HEHEERYE @)

FOR SALE (Continued)

Analysis of leasehold lands component: A L E o DA -
HK$'000
T T
As at 31 March 2023 720234538318
Carrying amount BREE 4,260,954
As at 31 March 2022 M202263H31R
Carrying amount BRHEE 4,112,733
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Operating cash outflows LIRS R (242,197) (512,820)
Additions NE 148,221 3,273,627
Write-back B o 11,832 1,629

The carrying amount of leasehold lands is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The residual values are determined as the estimated
disposal value of the leasehold land component. No
depreciation charge is made on the leasehold lands taking
into account the estimated residual values as at 31 March
2023 and 2022.

All properties held for development for sale have been

pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group in
both years.

2057

AT ISz BREE KRR AT
MRFIEMEMEAEEBELGTE - F
HEEETABO T WIS ZEFTE
EEE - E & 520235 KX2022%3 A8
JNBZHETERE REBEHLHEIR
WEEH -

RMEFEE AEERBERIELHER
EMECEAUDNEGE TAEEZR
THRE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

24. BN Hib U F A

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables from contract with REBEFPAENZE S EIKFIA
customers — 507
Lease receivables HEEKFKIE 1,015 6,048
Prepayments T8 - BB 26,996 1,020
Interest receivable JE WA B 774 1,032
Escrow deposits for properties BELHEYMEZAERS
held for sale 4,456 16,541
Staff loans (note i) ST SR D 9,000 —
Accounts receivable from margin REBESBE EUWEBRK (A 2Li)
financing (note ii) 8,725 24,093
Refundable stamp duty AR BENE - 103,160
Amounts due from joint ventures FEUR & & X B A (I i)
(note iil) 1,921 45
Other receivables and deposits E b e RIE MR & 13,343 12,929
66,230 165,375

Notes:

EE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group entered into
several loan agreements with certain staff. Pursuant to the
loan agreements, the staff loans were unsecured with fixed
interest rate at 2% per annum and repayable on demand.

The Group provides margin financing to certain individuals for
securities transactions secured by the individuals securities
held as collateral. Securities are assigned with specific
margin ratios for calculation margin values. Additional funds
or collateral are required if the outstanding amounts of
accounts receivable from margin financing exceed the eligible
margin value of the securities deposited. No aging analysis is
disclosed as in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the aging analysis does not give additional value in view of the
nature of margin financing.

The amounts due from joint ventures are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.
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(ii)

(iif)

RE £2023F3A3IHIEEE - A&
EHEEFETIAIVHEDERRF# -
BEERGE ELERAEEM .
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24.

25.
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e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£20234#3H31H 1t F &

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. ES K Hib EUWNFEE ()
(Continued)
The Group did not grant any credit period to its tenants in REELSBHTHMEREDHMARL
property investment segment. The aged analysis of trade FREESR BESEKRERHEERE
receivables and lease receivables, based on invoice date, at WHRERBRERRBREZZEAHRZE
the end of the reporting period is as follows: RO
2023 2022
2023 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET
0-60 days 0-60H 761 6,280
61-90 days 61-90H 109 —
91-120 days 91-120H 145 275
1,015 6,555
Details of impairment assessment of trade and other EEREMEBERFERETHFEH
receivables are set out in note 39. B FE39
No credit loss allowance has been recognised on the trade HRARAIZEERABEBIFTEKXR
and other receivables as the directors of the Company MU ERES R HMERRIEERE
consider that the amount is immaterial. EEBELRERE -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25 RERREEEY

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits and
short term deposits for the purpose of meeting the Group’s
short term cash commitments, which carry interest at market
rates range from 0.001% to 3.7% (2022: 0.001% to 1%) per
annum.

The Group's cash and cash equivalents that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entries are set out below:

Re kB EEBYEREEHERK
EHER URRAEEMNEHES
AIE M5 FEHEB0001%E37%
(20224 : 0.001% £1%) °

AEBUAEBEEEEEBHNINEEEN
SN EEIEZRERREEFEDH
FIanT

2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET F#&r

uss X 6,719 7251
SGD g ot 4,695 85

N
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£2023F3/531H 1L F &

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 26.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

BEREMENREARE
WEE

Trade and other payables BESKkHith B RIE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F#E T
Trade payables g S ENMNFRIE 29,622 20,655
Retention payable (note (i)) ERRES B Z0) 39,149 27078
Rental deposits received and rental BlEcZESLERES
received in advance 11,648 23,880
Interest payable JE 15 FI) B 7195 6,479
Guarantee money received (note (ii)) BEIREE & B8 (07 7 07) = 10,000
Other taxes payable H i pE T B 18 9,832 6,194
Accruals and other payables et B A R H A e 5K IE 21,474 58,818
118,920 153,104
Notes: /]/]tgf .

(i) Retention payable is withheld from subcontractors and will be
released by the Group within twelve months upon completion
of their works.

(ii) The amount represents money received from a borrower of
the loan financing business as security for loans granted. The
amount has been repaid to the borrower upon the repayment
of loans during the year ended 31 March 2023.

The aged analysis of trade payables determined based on
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows.
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days.

ih ENRESDIHREEIRYIEH
He AEESRIRETHER T
AR -

(i) ZeBERREFBEEBFZ (LG
FRARERERMRLERKR®
ZHE - & BE NE £2023F3A
NELFEEEERBRERGLER
}\o

REKREHARBZZANMETZES
RN RIEREDITMT - BE Z2FH
EEHR30H -

2023 2022

2023 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FE T

0-60 days 0-60H 29,622 20,567
Over 90 days @ @m90H — 88
29,622 20,655
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND

27.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued)
Contract liabilities

The Group receives deposits from customers when they
sign the sale and purchase agreement of sales of properties.
The deposits from customers are recognised as contract
liabilities until the customers obtain control of the properties.
At 31 March 2023, the contract liabilities amounted to
HK$29,085,000 (2022: HK$16,534,000 and 1 April 2021:
HK$6,276,000). The contract liabilities brought forward from
prior year were fully recognised as revenue during the year.
Contract liabilities are expected to be settled within a year
when control of the completed properties are transferred to
the customer.

AMOUNT DUE TO A
NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

The amount is unsecured, interest-free, repayable on demand
and non-trade in nature.

22

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£20234#3H31H 1t F &

26. ESRHMWENREURES

27.

HNEEw
BHEE

AEBEEEPEIEEVNEEEHER
WEREFE BEFESERAEENE
& BEERFPEUS Y= # - 712023
F3H31H &4 8 1E%29,085,000% T
(20224 : 16,534,000/ 7T & 12202144
A1H:6,276,00087T) - EFEHES
HNEBEEREAFERHERREER
EHABEEHANDERERNE e
BERFRBR—FRNEN-

FEA— 1 IR 42 IR IR 3R R IE

ZRERERR 28
NIFEHZMEE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

28. SECURED BANK BORROWINGS 28. BIKHFIRITEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Carrying amount repayable as
follows (based on the scheduled

REZEZFREENTRESR
SIRER G # 28 EEER

repayment dates set out in the loan H) -
agreements):
— within one year ——FR 1,615,464 1,206,455
— within a period of more than one — A —FETHBREMN
year but not exceeding two FHREA
years 884,750 888,846
— within a period of more than two — EHEBMFEEIERAR
years but not exceeding five FHREA
years 876,325 1,237.338
— within a period of more than five —ERFNLEEBEREA
years 152,638 230,065
3,529,177 3,562,704
Less: Amount due within one year BRARBEBEETZ
shown under current liabilities —FRNIEHEHE (1,615,464) (1,206,455)
Amount due after one year shown RIERBEBEETZ
under non-current liabilities —FrIHAeHE 1,913,713 2,356,249
At 31 March 2023, the Group's secured bank borrowings R2023F3831H ' AEE 2B EF IR
carry interest ranging from the Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offered TEESFURSBRTRAERE(S
Rate (“"HIBOR") plus 1.0% to 1.825%, the London Inter-Bank BIRITRIZERE]) MN1.0% E1.825% -
Offered Rate (“LIBOR") plus 0.8% to LIBOR plus 1.0% MBI TEERE (HBRITRER
(2022: HIBOR plus 1.0% to 1.825%, LIBOR plus 0.8% to BN08% Efm HRITHEZEFKFE M
LIBOR plus 1.0%) per annum, with effective interest ranging 1.0% (20224 : HHRITEE /K E M
from 4.21% to 5.86% (2022: 1.24% to 2.11%) per annum. 1.0% £1.825% * fm R TR EHF B
The loans are secured by certain assets as set out in note I0.8% EMEIRITRZEHK B H1.0%)
31. The proceeds were mainly used to finance acquisition AR BEREFETIHA21%E5.86%
of investment properties, development of properties and (2022%F 1 1.24% E2.11%) » Z EE X

acquisition of financial products.

TAETEEFRBEMIL &N
- IR BATEAFEHELBRE
ME ZRVEANBESRE® -

22



28. SECURED BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 28. BIEFRITEE @)

29.

KEBBREBBR AR 2022/23F 1)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£20234#3H31H 1t F &

mE

The Group's secured bank borrowings that are denominated AEENBBAEEEEBYEEE UM
in currencies other than the functional currencies of the BEIE2HRFRITEESIOT
relevant group entities are set out below:

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FE T
HKS BT 4,372 10,767
USss$ ETT 21,530 20,513
DEFERRED TAXATION 29. IEAE B IE
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred tax assets EEMBEE 16,862 13,559
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHIEEE (24,537) (23,955)
(7,675) (10,396)
The followings are the major deferred tax (assets) liabilities TYXERFARBEIFERRNETE
recognised and movements thereon during the current and BELERBE(EE)BBEREZES):
prior years:
Accelerated
ECL tax Revaluation
allowance depreciation  Taxlosses of properties Total
BREEE  MEHE
BEEE wE  HEERE  NXRER @it

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TET TET TET TET TET

At 1 April 2021 202154518 (8,456) 1,657 (1,925) = (8,724)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 76/ WE-HRBAR N Z16) (8,250) - - 19,767 11,517
Charge (credit) to profit or loss REHNR(Ee) 4,136 (172) (549) 3,718 7133
Exchange adjustments BN AR — — = 470 470
At 31 March 2022 20228 3A318 (12,570) 1,485 (2,474) 23,955 10,396
(Credit) charge to profit or loss RBEGER) Mk (2,218 308 (1,393) 2,191 (1,112)
Exchange adjustments AR - - - (1,609) (1,609)
At 31 March 2023 1202334318 (14,788) 1,793 (3,867) 24,537 1675

IS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

29. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

At 31 March 2023, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$446,719,000 (2022: HK$305,965,000) available for
offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset had
been recognised in respect of HK$23,438,000 (2022:
HK$14,993,000) of such losses as at 31 March 2023.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining tax losses of HK$423,281,000 (2022:
HK$290,972,000) due to the unpredictability of future profits
streams. The tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

At 31 March 2023, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of HK$94,173,000 (2022: HK$122,978,000).
A deferred tax has been recognised in respect of
HK$89,627,000 (2022: HK$76,184,000) of such temporary
differences. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
relation to the remaining deductible temporary difference of
HK$4,546,000 (2022: HK$46,794,000) as it is not probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. At 31 March
2023, deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC
subsidiaries amounting to RMB58,794,000 as the amount
involved is insignificant (2022: accumulated losses).

224

29.

IE AE B I8 ()

R2023F3A31H AEBEEXREAM
T8 5518 5446,719,00078 J0 (20224
305,965,00078 7T) A AR 85 oK AR
Ao H A A2023F3A31B 2 A E 18
23,438,000 7T (20224 : 14,993,000
B EHMRAEEREEE ARE
ETERT AR R MR A EERBT
423,281,0005% 7t(2022% : 290,972,000
BIL) 2RIBEERBELEHIBEE
HBIEERAGE-

M2023F3A318 A& E KA K
B B = %8 594,173,000/8 7£(2022
% :122,978,0008 7T) - EMZE S
BF =58 % 71 289,627,000/ 7t (2022
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% 4 5L #5 74,546,000/ 70 (20224 :
46,794,000/ JT) 2 7] 05 BR B 2= 58 1
RELERIBEE  BARRE G A8
AR RN EEA A
MIBBEE-

BIEFBD®EMBGHE - B2008%F1
B1A#®  FEMNBARREIUEFNE
K2 IREBEHMENE - 12023F3
A318 ' AR PRk &8I T E K (2022
FRHER) AhGEEUBHBHREL
Kb B M B AR REE T FEAL R
M = %8 A R #58,794,0007T 5T iR IE I
FRIE -



SEBRRAA

2022/234F R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

the Company's subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities for both years.

22

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. B4
Nominal value Number of
per share shares Amount
SREE RAHE X
HKS HK$'000
BT FHET
Authorised: ETE
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022 and 20214 4A18 + 2022
31 March 2023 3A31H &202343A31H 0.1 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BERTRERE:
At 1 April 2021 R2021F4A1H 0.1 82,200,403 8,220
Share repurchase and cancellation 10 BB B 5 8 0.1 (8,212,000) (821)
At 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023 20226 3A318 &
2023F3A31H 0.1 73,988,403 7399
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company B E2022F3A3MHIEFE - AAE R
repurchased its own shares on the Stock Exchange as BRI BERMONAT:
follows:
Price per share Aggregate
Number of SRERK consideration
shares Highest Lowest paid
Month of repurchase [ i A 17 SREE 55 BE EBHEKE
HK$ HK$ HK$000
BT BT FHETL
For the year ended 31 March 2022 Z2022%3831H 1 /&
August 2021 2021%8H 1,371,000 4.00 3.90 5,416
September 2021 2021497 3,007000 3.98 3.95 11,979
October 2021 20214 10A 2,616,000 3.87 3.87 10,163
November 2021 2021118 125,000 4.70 470 590
December 2021 202112 8 872,000 4.80 4.60 4137
February 2022 2022F2 8 20,000 4.00 4.00 80
March 2022 20225348 201,000 4.05 4.00 847
8,212,000 33,212
The above shares were cancelled upon purchase. None of FABROREERFE KREFE

N $ATZW%”ATT&%HE%E *
S D AR R EA L&
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

31. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of
the Group were pledged to banks to secure credit facilities
granted to the Group:

31.

EERA

RBEHR AKEERTRITER
EETAGREEEREZEEN

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

Owned properties BEME 190,924 196,728

Investment properties "EYE 2,151,841 1,993,080
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong & R /B2 IR & %

and overseas 20,703 82,218

Life insurance policies ASRE 13,626 12,914

Properties held for development for sale #{EH & E M % 4,770,716 4,418,372

Properties held for sale BIELEYE 703,439 761,499

7,851,249 7464,811

At 31 March 2023, 300,000,000 shares (2022: 300,000,000
shares) of Eminence with fair value of HK$11,400,000 (2022:
HK$37,200,000) held by a subsidiary of the Group is pledged
to a bank.

In addition, rentals in respect of the above investment
properties and future sale proceeds and rentals in respect
of the above properties held for development for sale and
properties held for sale are also pledged to banks.

226

MR2023F3A31MB A5 E —MWE
AR ¥ H300,000,0000% (20224 :

300,000,0000%) A ¥ 18 A11,400,000/%8
70(20224F : 37,200,0005 7T) 2 & LU A%
MEEB TR

BN LR EME S R LA #
FHEERVMEERBHELEDERZR
KIHEMSRA KRB S IREMTRT
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£20234#3H31H 1t F &

32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 32. MEMENZH

The Group as lessor AEEEREEA
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET

Property rental income earned during R EARNRER 2 W EE & W A

the year 47,857 65,283
Less: Outgoings W2 H (6,339) (8,122)
Net rental income e WA FEE 41,518 57161
Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as REMBCHERKEENTOT
follows:

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —F K 35,430 48,164
In the second year F_FN 22,477 30,755
In the third year EF=ZFN 2,766 17813
In the fourth year FNFRN = 4,184
In the fifth year FRFA - 3,417
After five years hE® — 2,513
60,673 106,846

33. COMMITMENTS 33. &I
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$000
FET F& T

Capital expenditure contracted for but not 2 5] #4118 (5 R R 45 & 81 7%

provided in the consolidated financial WMEPEECELRARE

statements in respect of R

— interest in Limited Partnership (note) — BREBEE (M) 19,635 19,510
— film right investment — BYRERE — 829

19,635 20,339
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

33. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

Note: The amount at 31 March 2023 represented US$2,500,000
(equivalent to HK$19,635,000) (2022: US$2,500,000
(equivalent to HK$19,510,000)) for subscription for interest
in the Limited Partnership as a limited partner. The purpose
of the Limited Partnership is primarily achieving capital
appreciation and participation through investments in equity
and equity-related securities in Asia-Pacific and Europe and
portfolio funds with a similar investment focus. The business
of the Limited Partnership will be conducted and managed
by one single general partner (the “General Partner”)
who will act as agent of the Limited Partnership while the
investment committee of the Limited Partnership (comprising
individuals who are not connected with the Group) shall
decide and approve all investment and divestment decisions
of the Limited Partnership with reference to the investment
objective. The limited partners of the limited partnership,
including the Group, shall take no part in the operation of
the Limited partnership on the management or conduct of
the business and affairs except with the written consent of
the General Partner. Details of this transaction are set out in
Eminence’s announcements dated 27 March 2019 and 10
May 2019.

34. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “"MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. Under the MPF Scheme, the
employees are required to contribute 5% of their monthly
salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 and they can
choose to make additional contributions. The employer’s
monthly contributions are calculated at 5% of the employee’s
monthly salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 (the
“mandatory contributions”). The employees are entitled to
100% of the employer’'s mandatory contributions upon their
retirement at the age of 65, death or total incapacity.

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll to the pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the pension scheme is to make the required
contributions.

228

33.

34.

I )

Hat: M2023E3A3B Y RIUEBRAEEBA
BORBEREGENEZNESEA
2,500,000 7t(48 & 719,635,000/
7t) (20224 : 2,500,000% JT(AE ©
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34. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

35.

(Continued)

There were no forfeited contributions utilised to offset
employers’ contributions for both years. The employers’
contributions which have been dealt with in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
were as follows:

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

34. RIKBRIFTE )

P 8 £ JE 0 0R A 2 M3 3R AT A 4
BEHR ERGAEaREME2E
WeatRkPREEZEBEFRRDOT:

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Employers' contributions recognised in REZFPERZEZHK
profit or loss 1,080 1,117

At 31 March 2023 and 2022, there were no forfeited
contributions available to reduce the contributions payable in
the future years.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Share option scheme of the Company

On 5 July 2012, a share option scheme (the “2012 El
Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of the
Company. Under the 2012 EI Scheme, the directors of the
Company might at their absolute discretion grant options
to all directors (including any executive and non-executive
directors), full-time employees and consultants of the Group
to subscribe for shares in the Company. The 2012 El Scheme
was valid for ten years commencing 5 July 2012, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, and expired on 4 July
2022.

The purposes of the 2012 El Scheme were to encourage
eligible participants to work towards enhancing the value of
the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

The maximum number of shares which might be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2012 El
Scheme must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the
date of adoption of 2012 EI Scheme. The overall limit on the
number of shares which might be issued upon exercise of
all options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2012 El
Scheme and other share options schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time.

Each grant of options to any director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
respective associates would be subject to the approval of
the independent non-executive directors of the Company.
Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or
any of their respective associates, would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted to such person in the 12-month
period representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of
the Company issue and having an aggregate value, based
on the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
each grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000, such further grant
of options shall be subject to shareholders’ approval with the
connected persons of the Company abstaining from voting.

Subject to the aforesaid, the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and
to be granted to each grantee (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any further
grant of options in excess of the limit shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval with such grantee and his associates
abstaining from voting.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

The exercise period of the share options under the 2012 El
Scheme was determined by the board of directors of the
Company and would end on a date which was not later than
ten years from the date of grant of the options. At the time
of grant of the share options, the Company must (a) specify
the minimum period(s), if any, for which a share option must
be held before it can be exercised in whole or in part, and
(b) specify the minimum performance target(s), if any, which
must be achieved before the share options can be exercised
in whole or in part. The amount payable on acceptance of an
offer for grant of share options was HK$1.

The subscription price in respect of any particular option of
the 2012 ElI Scheme would be no less than the highest of
(i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets on the date of offer; (ii) the average closing price of
the Company's shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer; and
(ii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares on the date of
offer.

On 30 August 2021, the Company granted share options
to eligible persons to subscribe for a total of 365,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each in the share capital of the
Company, subject to acceptance of the eligible persons
and upon the terms and conditions of the 2012 El Scheme.
Among the share options granted, 146,000 share options
were granted to directors of the Company who are also
substantial shareholders of the Company and 219,000 share
options were granted to employees of the Company who are
associates of the substantial shareholders of the Company.
The share options granted can be exercised on or before 29
August 2031 with an exercise price of HK$3.99. During the
year ended 31 March 2022, the fair value of the share options
determined by trinomial option pricing model amounting to
HK$581,000 that vest immediately at the date of grant was
recognised in profit or loss. No share options are exercised
during the year ended 31 March 2022.

No share options were granted under the 2012 EI Scheme or
exercised during the year ended 31 March 2023.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

Share option scheme of a subsidiary

On 29 June 2012, a share option scheme (the “2012 Share
Option Scheme"”) was approved by the shareholders of
Eminence. Under the terms of the 2012 Share Option
Scheme, the board of directors of Eminence might, at its
absolute discretion, offer options to any full-time employee,
director or consultant of any member of Eminence Group
(including associated companies) to subscribe for shares
in Eminence subject to the terms and conditions stipulated
therein. The 2012 Share Option Scheme was valid during
the period of ten years commencing 29 June 2012, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, and expired on 28 June
2022.

The purposes of the 2012 Share Option Scheme were to
encourage eligible participants to work towards enhancing
the value of Eminence and its shares for the benefit of
Eminence and its shareholders as a whole.

The maximum number of shares which might be issued
under the 2012 Share Option Scheme must not (when
aggregate with any shares to be issued under any other share
option schemes of Eminence) exceed 10% of the shares
in issue at the date of adoption of the 2012 Share Option
Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise
of the share options granted to each eligible participant of the
2012 Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period, was
limited to 1% of the shares of Eminence in issue. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit was subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting of Eminence
with such grantee and his associate(s) abstaining from voting.

The exercise period of the share options under 2012 Share
Option Scheme was determined by the board of directors of
Eminence and would end on a date which was not later than
ten years from the date of grant of the options. At the time
of grant of the share options, Eminence must (a) specify the
minimum period(s), if any, for which a share option must be
held before it could be exercised in whole or in part, and (b)
specify the minimum performance target(s), if any, which
must be achieved before the share options can be exercised
in whole or in part. The amount payable on acceptance of an
offer for grant of share options was HK$1.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share option scheme of a subsidiary (Continued)

The exercise price in respect of any particular option of the
2012 Share Option Scheme might be determined by the
board of directors of Eminence in its absolute discretion and
notified to each offeree but may not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of Eminence’s shares on the Stock
Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets on the date of offer, which must be a business day; (ii)
the average closing price of Eminence'’s shares on the Stock
Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of Eminence’s shares
on the date of offer.

No share option was granted under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme or exercised during both years.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of
cash flows from financing activities.

36.

iﬁ%ﬂﬁiﬁiﬂZﬁ%Z%ﬁE

TRAAGEEKREMEZD BB
2% ERAGNFASEY - KA
REZDZABNEHEREAES
IRKBRERERENBRAKEZ
HARERERZIKRABREEH 2R

i/}mi °

Amount due
Secured to a non-
Lease Interest bank controlling
liabilities payable borrowings shareholder Total
B
BHEA FER
HEAE EAFE RITEX BRRE&E aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2021 R2021F481H 510 2,563 1,472,467 101,288 1,576,828
Bank borrowings raised EERTEX — — 1,830,377 — 1,830,377
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEER — —  (1,252,012) —  (1,252,012)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHERE (656) — — — (656)
Interest paid ERHE (27) (51,773) = = (51,800)
Advance from a non-controlling shareholder — i 35 ¥ % ik R 8 %7 — — — 57826 57826
(173) (49,210) 2,050,832 159,114 2,160,563
Non-cash changes: kR #
Acquisition of subsidiary (note 76) WK B AR
(Htit16) 50 — 1,508,353 — 1,508,403
Interest expense on bank borrowings BABEZNERE — 55,689 3,519 = 59,208
Addition of lease liabilities HEGEEM 1,214 = = == 1,214
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEABEZFERY 27 = = = 27
At 31 March 2022 #2022 38318 1,118 6,479 3,562,704 159,114 3,729,415
Bank borrowings raised E£HRTER - - 670,504 - 670,504
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEER - - (696,260) = (696,260)
Repayment of lease liabilities g Lﬁﬁ g8 (398) - — - (398)
Payment of loan arrangement fee SNERLHE - - (8,179) - (8,179)
Interest paid BA ﬂ B (22) (144,099) — — (144,121)
Advance from a non-controlling shareholder — fiz 3F 122 ik i & 8 % - - - 52,580 52,580
698 (137,620) 3,528,769 211,694 3,603,541
Non-cash changes: FREED
Interest expense on bank borrowings BITEE Z FERX - 144,815 — — 144,815
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEABEZFERY 22 - - - 22
Exchange adjustments 5 A - - 408 - 408
At 31 March 2023 #2023F3A31H 720 7195 3,529,177 211,694 3,748,786
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, during the year, the Group had

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

37. BHAEIR G BEXS

(@) BEAHBRRMEBEIN  NF
N AEBEEGLEENE QR

the following transactions with the Eminence and its ETOTIRS:
subsidiaries:

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$000 HK$'000
F#E T FET
Rental income e WA N/ATE A 208
Management fee income BEEEBERA N/ATRE A 35

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director and substantial shareholder
of the Company, is also a director of Eminence.

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of

ARBEERTEMREEHRK
ITTHABILZES -

(b) FEEEABZHM

EFENEMIBEEXRERSF

key management during the year was as follows: AZBET:
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Short-term employee benefits HEEEREN
Salaries and other benefits FeREMEF 42,099 32,202
Retirement benefits scheme R K AE A 5T 814 3%
contributions 335 469
Share-based payments VAR 0 3 B 55T 3K - 464
42,434 £f8} &

The Group has been providing accommodation to Ms.
Lui Yuk Chu for use by her and her family members
including residential units and car parking spaces
provided to Mr. Koon Chun Ting, a son of Ms. Lui Yuk
Chu and a director of subsidiaries of the Company, and
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy free of rental and charges for
as long as they are employed by the Group. Details of
the arrangement are set out in note 9(a)(ii).

2S5
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Compensation of key management

(c)

(d)

personnel (Continued)

The remuneration of directors and key executives are
recommended by the remuneration committee and
approved by the board of directors of the Company,
respectively, having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

In January 2011, the Company and Eminence entered
into employment agreements with Mr. Koon Wing
Yee to act as general manager of the Company and
Eminence. The employment agreements, which
constitute connected transactions, commenced on 21
February 2011 but may be terminated by either party
at any time by three months’ notice. The monthly
salary has been adjusted a few times to HK$300,000
for the Company with effect from 1 April 2022 (2022:
HK$270,000 with effect from 1 April 2021) and
HK$450,000 for Eminence with effect from 1 April
2022 (2022: HK$400,000 with effect from 1 April 2021).
The remuneration of Mr. Koon Wing Yee as general
manager of the Company and Eminence during the year
(excluding those paid by Eminence before the date of
acquisition) was HK$9,750,000 (2022: HK$8,146,000)
and an incentive bonus of HK$5,280,000 was paid to
Mr. Koon during the year (2022: nil). The remuneration
and bonus were included in the “compensation of key
management personnel” in (b) above.

Mr. Koon Wing Yee is the spouse of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu
who is a director of the Company. Ms. Lui Yuk Chu also
holds 18.98% (2022: 23.75%) equity interest of the
Company through an entity wholly-owned by her at 31
March 2023.

During the year, the Group received rental income
totalling HK$528,000 (2022: HK$504,000) from certain
close relatives of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon Ho
Yan Candy.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(e) During the year, the Group paid HK$1,890,000 (2022:
HK$1,212,000) to Wing Yee Football Teamn Company
Limited, a company controlled by Mr. Koon Wing Yee,
which is recognised in profit or loss as “advertising
expense”.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which includes secured bank borrowings disclosed in note 28
and amount due to a non-controlling shareholder, net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital, accumulated
profits and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with the capital.
Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and raising or repayment of
bank borrowings.

Constance Capital (see note 22) is regulated by the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Commission and is required
to comply with the financial resources requirements
according to the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Financial
Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R"”). Management closely
monitors, on a daily basis, Constance Capital’s liquid capital
level to ensure compliance with the minimum liquid capital
requirement under the SF(FR)R. Constance Capital has no
non-compliance of the capital requirement imposed by the
SF(FR)R during the year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 39. €FiTH
a. Categories of financial instruments a. SRIAEZEH
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$000 HK$'000
FE T FETT
Financial assets EMEE
Amortised cost 5 R
— Trade and other receivables — B R HMEK
wIE 27504 53,997
— Debt instruments at amortised —RBENAFTEZ
cost BEHTA 36,614 56,372
— Loans receivable —EWER 189,893 245,980
— Cash and cash equivalents —RERREFEEY 398,894 184,425
652,905 540,774
FVTPL BRRATEFAER
— Financial assets at FVTPL —EBAFEFARR
ZEREE 191,160 405,674
FVTOCI REAFEFAEMEZER
I =5
— Debt instruments at FVTOCI — B AT EFAHA
2EWE 2 ERS
ITAa 1,095 4,884
Financial liabilities EA- =N
Amortised cost 5 R
— Trade and other payables — B RHMER
IR 87,282 89,167
— Amount due to a non-controlling — B — A FEE R
shareholder REEHE 211,694 159,114
— Secured bank borrowings — BEERBRITEE 3,529,177 3,662,704
3,828,153 3,810,985

LSS
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’'s major financial instruments include
financial assets at FVTPL, debt instruments at
FVTOCI, debt instruments at amortised cost, trade
and other receivables, loans receivable, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other payables, amount due
to a non-controlling shareholder and secured bank
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure that appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Interest rate risk

The Group’s primary cash flow interest rate
risk relates to its secured bank borrowings and
variable-rate loans receivable (2022: secured
bank borrowings, variable-rate loans receivable
and principal protected deposits which are
classified as financial assets at FVTPL). As at
31 March 2023, protected deposits have been
fully matured. The interest rates and terms of
repayment of the secured bank borrowings of the
Group are disclosed in note 28. The Group is also
exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
certain financial assets at FVTPL, fixed-rate loans
receivable, debt instruments at amortised cost,
debt instruments at FVTOCI and lease liabilities.
The Group has not used any derivative contracts
to hedge its exposure to such interest rate risk,
however, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider other necessary
action when significant interest rate exposure is
anticipated.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk on
financial liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group's
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of HIBOR and LIBOR arising

39. €M I A

b. FBEREEEERBK®E

G EEE (E)

() FEE b
AEERERBE ZHE
BEERANF 2 REE
LEEEE -SAFE-

$%.Zfﬁﬂi//m§ﬂ$rk
T EERREAFEMR

TEEZER

RIT R E A

from secured bank borrowings.

A fundamental reform of major interest rate
benchmarks is being undertaken globally,
including the replacement of some interbank
offered rates ("IBORs"”) with alternative nearly
risk-free rates. Details of the impacts on the
Group's risk management strategy arising from
the interest rate benchmark reform and the
progress towards implementation of alternative
benchmark interest rates are set out under

"interest rate benchmark reform”

in this note.

Total interest revenue/income from financial
assets that are measured at amortised cost or at

FVTOCI is as follows:

BN BER TR E HF BOR
) o

ﬁTT$E$|EE&$ @%Jﬂ
i B e B AR X
— &R TH%T&%(@E
TREXRFKRD - BEF X
EENEHAEERRE
BRBEBHNZEREREE
MENERERNFS
B2 N R E AR
Bl

WA A SR A FEE
AHME2EKRSZFEZS
BMEEZH B WA
MEIT

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest revenue Bz
Financial assets at amortised cost ~ RE M AT & 2
SR EE 13,727 17262
Other income H g A
Financial assets at amortised cost X # K Nt & 2
TREE 5,836 3,014
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BRAFEFTAEM
FEREZ
BEBLTA 233 2,149
Total interest income B A 4258 19,796 22,425
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative instruments as referred
to above at the end of the reporting period
and the stipulated change taking place at the
beginning of the financial year and held constant
throughout the reporting period. A 100 basis
points (2022: 100 basis points) increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest risk
internally to key management personnel and
represents management'’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates. If
interest rate had been 100 basis points (2022:
100 basis points) higher or lower for its variables
rate borrowings and loans receivable and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year ended 31 March 2023 would
decrease or increase by HK$29,451,000 (2022:
HK$29,496,000).

The bank balances are excluded from the
sensitivity analysis as the management of the
Group considers that the interest rate fluctuation
is not significant.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analyses
are unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.
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29,496,000/ 1) °

RITEHTIEREHRRE
IPHARAAREEEERER
RNEZ KRB AEK o

EEERR ZHEED
A RE K KRB E R XA
% B FRE R LR B
FARE R -



Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2022/23 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b.
policies (Continued)

39. €FTH (»)
BRREEEERBEK®)

Market risk (Continued) S EkE(E)
(i) Currency risk (i) B R
The carrying amounts of the group entities’ REEHR AN E
foreign currency denominated monetary assets CEEERCEBEER
and liabilities at the end of the reporting period BEZERAENT:
are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
a& BE
2023 2022 2023 2022
2023 20224 20234 20224
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
US$ against HK$ ETLRABTT - — 43,802 55,349
SGD against HK$ TR
BT 4,372 10,767 4,695 85
US$ against SGD e Ib
7T 21,530 20,513 1,095 2,408
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT

The Group is mainly exposed to the exchange rate
risk on US$ against SGD for the foreign currency
denominated monetary assets/liabilities.

Under the pegged exchange rate system, the
financial impact on exchange difference between
HK$ and US$ will be immaterial, and therefore
no sensitivity analysis has been prepared. No
sensitivity analysis for the currency risk of SGD
against HK$ is prepared as the directors of the
Company consider the net impact of such foreign
currency risk is insignificant.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the Group's sensitivity
to a 5% increase and decrease in US$ against
SGD. Sensitivity rate of 5% is used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to
key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.
The sensitivity analysis represents secured bank
borrowings where the denominations are in US$.
A positive number below indicates an increase in
post-tax profit where US$ strengthen 5% against
SGD. For a 5% weakening of US$ against SGD,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on
the post-tax profit.

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

39. €FTH (@)
b. B¥RMEEEERBEK®)

5 B ()
(i) EHE R &)
FRE DM (&)

TERHFAAEBRHETH
1003 T HHE K B2 BE5% B
BREE - RAETEEREA
BAEERIINERREE
BEFGIIEERASER
REEBHFARKELLERA
5%  MEEHDMEBRER
BENIINETENEE IR
B TRBEHRRINE
ERME%EEFHEBRE o
BEESTEBARUET
AEMEEBERITEE -
LWTEHEXRTEETTLH
PN T T 1EE% B - BR TN 1E
mAMEAHTEM LETH
MW TR E% M S 5
CTHBRBEREANEXRSE
MERFE -

2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FE T

Decrease in post-tax profit bR B 12 0 B R (893) (851)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
reflects the exposure at the year end, but not the
exposure during the year.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy to eliminate the currency
exposures. However, the management monitors
the related foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposures should the need arise.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through
its investments in listed equity and debt securities
and equity-linked notes. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio
of investments with different risks. The Group's
price risk is mainly concentrated on listed equity
instruments quoted in the Stock Exchange
or an overseas recognised stock exchange of
issuers operating in property investment and
development and banking and finance industry
sector. In addition, the Group has appointed a
special team to monitor the price risk and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should the
need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risk at the end of the reporting period.

If the prices of the listed equity instruments had
been 10% (2022: 10%) higher/lower, post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 March 2023 would
increase/decrease by HK$10,582,000 (2022:
HK$23,967,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of listed equity instruments.

In the managements’ opinion, the financial
impact on price risk of equity-linked notes and
debt securities as at 31 March 2022 would be
immaterial, and therefore no sensitivity analysis
has been prepared.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties are primarily attributable to
trade receivables, lease receivables, loans receivable,
other receivables, bank balances, debt instruments
at amortised cost and debt instruments at FVTOCI.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risk associated with
its financial assets, except that the credit risk associated
with loans receivable and margin receivables are
mitigated because they are secured over marketable
securities or properties (2022: guaranteed money,
marketable securities or properties).

At the end of reporting period, the historical observed
default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information including forecast of
unemployment rate index and other relevant factors are
considered.

Except for financial assets at FVTPL, the Group
performed impairment assessment for financial assets
under ECL model. Information about the Group's credit
risk management, maximum credit risk exposures and
the related impairment assessment, if applicable, are
summarised as below:
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

39. £ T H (s

b. BXEREEEERBEE)

1= B 3 B2 K 6L 1B AT 14 (%)

AEEOAIEERBRFEF

comprises the following categories: HEELATER :
Financial assets
other than
Internal credit Trade and lease  trade and lease
rating Description receivables receivables
BESRHEEKR EZRAESEKRRX
REBEETR #Hld ;A BHUSZERERE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default  Lifetime ECL — not 12m ECL
and does not have any past-due amounts credit-impaired
& & B RHEHFHNEANRRRE BV EEMN BEBHANFESH 12@ABHAGEE
0 HA KE EEEE—3FE B8
BRE
Medium risk Debtor frequently repays after due date Lifetime ECL — not 12m ECL
credit-impaired
R, BEBRAKLERIBPRAEER BEBEAHMESR R2EABEHEE
EEEE—3FE B8
BRE
High risk There have been significant increase in Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL — not

=

Loss

B8

Write-off

credit risk since initial recognition through
information developed internally or external
resources

F BN N EREVG B B R AT A E
BBV EERAREZEEM

There is evidence indicating the asset is
credit-impaired

BEEBBIZEECHFEGERE

There is evidence indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and the
Group has no realistic prospect of recovery
EEBRETEBABRAREMBEREER
REERAEER W E A8
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credit-impaired

EEE B 1B
EEBR—FE
ER{E

Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired

B (A 38 HA 9 7 B
EEEE—EE
B

Amount is written
off

WHBERE R

credit-impaired

EEBE B
FEEBR—3FE
&R (E

Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired

B (A 78 HA /9 78 AR
EEEFEE—FE
BB

Amount is written
off
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. €T R
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. HMEREEERERBE®)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EEREERBEFEE)
(Continued)
The table below details the credit risk exposures of TERENAEBBEETESRE
the Group's financial assets, which are subject to ECL EBEBETAzemEEMMAER
assessment: ZIEERRE:
External credit  Internal credit Gross carrying
2023 Notes  rating rating 12m or lifetime ECL Loss rate range amount
2235 fE APEERR  ABEEFIR  NBERIREESNREEEES FEXEE AR
HKS 000
FEn
Debt instruments at FVTOCI
BRATEFARM2ENEZ BRI
Investments in listed bonds 79 CtoCafi), i)  NA Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 100% 29,065
RER TS CZCafl, i)  TER BRABNRARERE - FERE 100%
Financial assets at amortised cost
REHAATEZSREE
Loans receivable 21 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 2% t0 6% 193,895
EHER TER Bk NEREAEEER 2hZ6%
N/A Loss Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 100% 106,912
TER i ERABNRAEERE - FERE 100%
Cash and cash equivalents 2% At to Prime-1 N/A 12m ECL N/A 396,894
ReRREEEN MZPrime  TER NEREHEEES TER
Debt instruments at amortised cost 2 NRA Low risk 12m ECL 5% to 6% 38,385
REHAAHE BRI TER Bk NEREAEEER 5%26%
Trade receivables from contracts with customers 24 N/A (ii Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired N/A -
REEPaliz 8RR TER ERABNRNEERE - FRENE TER
Lease receivables A N/A (i Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired N/A 1,015
RERYHE TER ERASBNENEERE - FEENE TER
Other receivables i N/A (ii 12m ECL N/A 27504
Efb WA TER NEREAEEER TER
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

39. €FTH (»)
b. BXEREEEERBEE)

1= B 3 B2 K 6L 1B AT 14 (%)

(Continued)
External credit Internal credit Gross carrying
2022 Notes  rating rating 12m or lifetime ECL Loss rate range amount
0205 B HBRETR MIEEFA NREAIEERANESEEES ERX4E fEEE
HK$ 000
AT
Debt instruments at FVTOCI
BATEHARH2ENEZ BRI
Investments in listed bonds 19 Cto Ca i), (i) N/A Lifetime ECL—creditimpaired 50% to 100% 30,799
RER L% CZCall. (i)  T@A LEERNEREEEE—CERE  S0%E100%
Financial assets at amortised cost
REHAATEZCREE
Loans receivable 2! N/A Lowrisk 12m ECL 2% t0 6% 233572
EUER TER ERR NEAESEERR 2%Z6%
N/A Loss Lifetime ECL—credit-impaired 100% 111,760
TR B EREANEREEEE-FENE 100%
Cash and cash equivalents % AT to Prime-1 N/A 12m ECL N/A 184,383
ReRAEEEY MZPrime TaR NEAESEERR TER
Debt instruments at amortised cost 2 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 5% 106% 58,262
REHAAHEZ BRI TR EER NEARHEEES 5%E6%
Trade receivables from contracts with customers 24 N/A (i Lifetime ECL—not credit-mpaired N/A 507
REEPENZEHRNFE TER EEESNRRRERE—FEEHE TER
Lease receivables A N/A i Lifetime ECL—not credit impaired NA 6,048
BERWE TR EERRNENEEFR—FEEHE TR
Other receivables A N/A [ 12mECL N/A 53490
RSB ER REARHEERS AER
Notes: B & -

(i)

(i)

(iii)

For the purpose of ECL assessment, the Group
estimates with reference to external credit rating and
forward-looking information such as forward-looking
macroeconomic information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

For the purpose of internal credit impairment
assessment, the Group considers if there is any past
due record or other relevant information available
without undue cost or effort to assess whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.

The amounts stated in the above table represents
the initial purchase cost. For the purpose of ECL
assessment, the Group considers the gross principal
amount and the related contractual interests of the
debt instruments. As at 31 March 2023, the gross
principal amount of these debt instruments amounted
to HK$28,920,000 (2022: HK$28,603,000).
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(i)

(iii)

REMEEBBRFGTS A
SE2EIBEEFRME
BATEBETVLERARBHE
B 2 AU BE 1B KL 0 BT EE

REREER -

RALEEREFETS A
SEEEREEEMABEEER
FCER R AL E T B A K
LHEE 2 H A A8 B E K AT
HEERREVHRERUARE
BRIME LT -

FRNSEATIANBERRE -
REHEEBEBETEMS &
EBERBERIANASRARE
MABBR A LR - R2023F
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39. €M I A
BRREEEERBEK %)

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b.
policies (Continued)

1= B/ B2 K Bl 1B P 14 ()

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Debt instruments at FVTOCI BN FEFAEMEENK 7

ZIEFTA

AEERBEEHTERER
BEZZEERR - NKEER
AFEFAEMLEZEHERE 2E
BIATZEEHEEFAK
BEREXRERZEZEIL L
tHEs METALEIISLEE

The Group assesses the credit risk of investment in
debt securities at the reporting date. The Group’s debt
instruments at FVTOCI mainly comprise listed bonds
that are graded by credit-rating agencies as per globally
understood definitions and certain bonds without
external credit rating are assessed by internal credit

ratings.

FRZEFNARNEEEFR

FEAdE o
Lifetime
ECL — credit
12m ECL impaired Total
EEBHH
1EAEN FEHEEFE
FEE#R -EEHE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2021 202154 1R 306 — 306
Changes due to debt instruments at R2021E3A3NAEER
FVTOCI recognised as at 31 March BRATEFAEME
2021 A& EBIAR
HHEE
— Transfer to credit-impaired —BRZEERGE (105) 105 —
— Upon redemption —RER% (201) — (201)
— Net remeasurement of ECL —ENMERBEER
BRER — 3,803 3,803
Changes due to debt instruments at MRERATETALM
FVTOCI acquired 2EMEZERIA
mEmE
— Net remeasurement of ECL —ENiERBEE
BB TR — 9,865 9,865
New bonds purchased T AFESH — 8,819 8,819
At 31 March 2022 #2022 37318 - 22,592 22,592
Changes due to debt instruments at R202263A3NBE B R
FVTOCI recognised as at 31 March BATEMAEMDE
2022 k& EBIAR
— Net remeasurement of ECL —EFERSEE
RS - 5,378 5,378
At 31 March 2023 #2023%3A318 - 27970 27970
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Loans receivable

The Group had concentration of credit risk in relation
to the gross carrying amount of loans receivable
amounting to HK$300,807,000 at 31 March 2023
(2022: HK$345,332,000) with 39% (2022: 45%) of the
balances secured by marketable securities with fair
values of HK$35,670,000 (2022: HK$36,900,000) or
properties with fair values of HK$98,245,000 (2022:
HK$251,707,000) or guaranteed money of nil (2022:
HK$10,000,000). The Group is not permitted to sell or
repledge the collaterals, if any, in the absence of default
by the borrower. Except for the decrease in collateral
due to loan repayment, there have not been any
significant changes in the quality of the collateral held
for the loans receivable. In addition, the gross carrying
amount of unsecured loans receivable amounting
to HK$57,309,000 (2022: HK$60,158,000) are with
personal guarantees. The largest borrower of the
Group by itself and together with the other four largest
borrowers of the Group accounted for approximately
26% and 52% respectively (2022: 20% and 56%
respectively) of the Group’s loans receivable at 31
March 2023.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding loans receivable to minimise credit risk.
The management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to the credit risk are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Impairment allowances on outstanding
loans receivable are determined by an evaluation of
financial background, financial condition and historical
settlement records, including past due rates and default
rates, of the borrowers and relevant information from
public domain at the end of each reporting period.
The borrowers are assigned different grading under
internal credit ratings to calculate the ECL, taking
into consideration of the estimates of expected cash
shortfalls which are driven by estimates of possibility
of default and the amount and timing of cash flows that
are expected from foreclosure on the collaterals (if any)
less the costs of obtaining and selling the collaterals.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Loans receivable (Continued)

Included in the gross amount of loans receivable
are HK$83,854,000 (2022: HK$86,702,000), net of
accumulated impairment allowances of HK$83,854,000
(2022: HK$70,702,000) due from a group of borrowers
including an individual (the “Borrower"”) with gross
amount of HK$32,397,000 (2022: HK$32,397,000) and
other individuals (with personal guarantee from that
Borrower) with gross amount of HK$51,457,000 (2022:
HK$54,305,000). In prior years, the management
assessed, taking into account the relevant information
from public domain, such balances became credit-
impaired and has taken various actions to recover
the balances. The management has requested the
borrowers to make settlement of the loans and total
settlements of HK$49,474,000 were received from the
borrowers by way of cash or properties as disclosed in
note 21(v) during the year ended 31 March 2022.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, no allowance
for impairment was made for a loan receivable newly
granted with gross amount of HK$16,000,000 since
the value of pledged asset is higher than the value of
amount borrowed. During the year ended 31 March
2023, there is a negotiation between the Borrower
and the Group on settlements which consist of (i) a
change in the pledged asset and (ii) the Borrower’s
commitment on pursuing the repayment of certain
other borrowers’ credit-impaired loans. Subsequently,
during the year ended 31 March 2023, HK$6,799,000
was received. As the pledged asset has been multiple-
mortgaged, an impairment loss of HK$16,000,000 was
provided.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

39. £ T H (s

Financial risk management objectives and b. HMKEREREERERBE®)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EEEERBEFEE)
(Continued)
Debt instruments at amortised cost HEHEEK AT EZEFTLA
The Group assesses the credit risk of debt instruments P S E AR = R R
at amortised cost at the reporting date. The Group's KA EZEBRIAZEER
debt instrument at amortised cost comprise the o REBIREHK AT E 2B
Promissory Note, Secured Note and other unsecured BITEREALEE  EREERK
notes without external credit rating, which has been FEMIWEINBEEFRERD
assessed by internal credit rating. During the year ERIEEFRTEHHEER
ended 31 March 2023, a reversal of impairment loss ZE g - RN # £2023F3A318 Lt
on debt instruments at amortised cost amounting to FE KREBEHEKAGFEZEBL
HK$119,000 (2022: impairment loss of HK$1,090,000) B 7 REEERE 1190008 T
with gross amount of HK$14,895,000 (2022: (20224 : & {& /& 51,090,000
HK$48,924,000) was recognised in the profit or loss. JU) ¢ #8 %814,895,0007% T (2022
F 48,924,000 7T) ERNE =R
RFER o
12m ECL
1218 A
EHEEESE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2021 M2021F4H18 800
Changes due to financial assets recognised as at ~ FHA & & & & 202143 A31H

31 March 2021 Rz EE:

— Impairment allowance recognised — ERRZRERE (232)
New notes purchased HEBAZRE 1,322
At 31 March 2022 72022438318 1,890
Changes due to financial assets recognised as at B R & &t & & R 202243 7831H

31 March 2022 R EE:

— Impairment allowance reversed — BB B (119)
At 31 March 2023 M2023F3H31H 1,771

Trade and lease receivables and other receivables

No allowance for impairment was made since the
directors of the Company consider that the probability
of default is minimal after assessing the counterparties’
financial background and creditability.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Staff loans

No allowance for impairment was made since the
directors of the Company consider that the amount
involved is insignificant.

Bank deposits and bank balances

No allowance for impairment was made since the
directors of the Company consider that the probability
of default is negligible as such amounts are receivable
from or placed in banks with good reputation.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations. The management
also monitors the utilisation of borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

At 31 March 2023, the Group has available unutilised
bank loan facilities of HK$1,386,535,000 (2022:
HK$966,219,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For
non-derivative financial liabilities, the table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

39. €FTH (»)
b. H¥EREEBZERBE®)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REELEEE)
Liquidity risk tables B E & E k&
Weighted
average  Ondemand Total Carrying
effective orlessthan3 3 months to 1to undiscounted amounts
interest rate months 1year Syears Over5years  cashflows  at31March
mEYY  REAME AfRES R3A3A
ERAZ  OM3fER  3AREIE 1258 BB5E REAE ZBAE
% HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
Al T FET T 7T FET 7T
2023 ANE
Trade and other payables EHRAMER R N/A
1R 48,133 39,149 - - 87282 87282
Amount dus to a non-controlling ER-UFBREREE N/A
shareholder TER 211,694 - - - 211,694 211,694
Secured bank borrowings EEBRIEE 47 877261 861,155 1818914 186,949 3,744,285 3529177
Lease liabilities HEAR 245 105 315 315 - 135 720
1137199 900,619 1,819,229 186,949 4,043,996 3,828,873
2022 WRE
Trade and other payables BAREMENE NA
TER 62,090 21077 - - 89,167 89,167
Amount due to a non-controling Efi-fikfEhRReE N/A
shareholder TR 159,114 - - - 169,114 159,114
Secured bank borrowings EEARARE 175 412,556 846,128 2,204919 244,007 3707610 3,562,704
Lease liablities HERRE 245 105 315 7% - 1,155 1118
633,865 873,520 2,205,654 244,007 3957046 3,812,103
Interest rate benchmark reform F| EEEHNE

For HIBOR bank borrowings, while the Hong Kong
Dollar Overnight Index Average (“HONIA") has been
identified as an alternative to HIBOR, there is no plan to
discontinue HIBOR. The multi-rate approach has been
adopted in Hong Kong, whereby HIBOR and HONIA
will co-exist. The Group’s bank borrowings linked to
HIBOR will continue till maturity and hence, not subject
to transition. For USD LIBOR bank loans, of which
amount of HK$36,002,000 will mature within one year
(2022: HK$41,863,000 will mature within one year),
the Group is in the process of communication with the
banks and specific changes have yet been agreed.

254

REBERITRAERBRITEER
ms ' @8 TREEIEEH(HE
TRREHEHNEEEEAE
BRTAEXERKENBERATR
BYEKITEBRTHRERS
Wersl - EEHAZREFK
EBBRTHREREERBTRER
FHEHBLTT - AEEEREE
FITREREHBNRTESE
REBEFERILE  AERTER
EBEERNTE - 5 E TR
TREREBRITERME  Ef
36,002,000/ 7T & K — F A E &7
(20224F : 41,863,000/ 7T —
FRE ) NEEIEFERT
ER O RREBMRER -



KEBREEBR QA

2022/234F R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Interest rate benchmark reform (Continued)

The management anticipates that the interest rate
benchmark reform will have limited impact on the
Group's risk exposure.

Fair value

(i)

Fair value of the Group's financial assets
that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

Some of the Group’'s financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The Board has delegated the valuation
work to the management to determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for
fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engages third party qualified valuers to
perform the valuation. The management works
closely with the qualified external valuers to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to the model. The management reports the
findings to the directors of the Company regularly
to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair
value.

The following table gives information about
how the fair values of these financial assets are
determined (in particular, the valuation techniques
and key inputs used).
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. €RIT R (#)

c. Fair value (Continued) c. AVE®
(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets (i) RELEMEELZLF
that are measured at fair value on a EFfEZFEFLHE
recurring basis (Continued) EZRFEE)
Fairvalue Valuation techniques and Significant unobservable
Financial assets Fair value at 31 March  hierarchy  key inputs inputs
SRHEE AFER3A3MA NYEEH HEHERIEAA EATTEERA
2023 2022
03%  202F
HK$000  HK$000
FAT THET
Financial assets at FVTPL
RAVEGABGEZEMER
— Listed equity securities 126,726 287033 Level1 Quoted bid prices in an N/A
active market
—EHRAEF F1R REETSMB2LE TEA
— Investment in Limited Partnership 28,230 27087 Level3 Net asset value quoted from  Net asset value of the
fund manager underlying investments
—REERAY £33 HEeEBFMBvEESE BAREZEETE
— Film right investment 15,504 15,756  Level 3 Discounted cash flows —  Discount rate of 4.35% (2022:
future cash flows are 4.35%)
estimated
— B MERE £33 FRATRE — AR THERR435% (2022F -
BeRE 4.35%)
— Life insurance policies 14,436 13,718 Level2 Quoted asset value provided N/A
by a financial institution
—ABRE F2R CRERRR AREE THA
ELE
— Unlisted securities 6,264 — Level2 Based on recent transaction  N/A
price
—FImES F2R AR HRRER TER
— Investment funds - 7339  Level3 Discounted cash flows —  Weighted average cost of
future cash flows are capital at 53.61% (2023: nil)
estimated
—REES £33 FHERERE — AR ERMETINAL361%
Reng (20235 : &)
— Equity-linked notes - 27570 Level2 Based on fair value of N/A
underlying assets which
are substantially derived
from Level 1 input
—BREABZE F2R ERTEREFERBAZ TER
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

c. Fair value (Continued)

(i)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets

39. 2R T H (s

c. AFE®
(i) RELEZMEERZLF

that are measured at fair value on a EBiEZAEFLHE
recurring basis (Continued) EZRFEE)
Fair value  Valuation techniques and  Significant unobservable
Financial assets Fair value at 31 March  hierarchy  key inputs inputs
tRHEE ATER3A3MA NYESE HEFERTERA EAFAEERA
2023 2022
023F  2022%
HK$'000  HK$000
&z T
— Principal protected deposits - 27171 Level 3 Discounted cash flows Potential return rate of 1.00%
— future cash flows t0 3.00%) (2023: nil) per
are estimated based annum
on exchange rate of
US$ against HK$ and
expected yields of the
instruments
—REER F3h FRBAGRE—RARES EERBEXEF100%ZE
MEDRBETLAT  3.00% (20235 : &)
MEXRBHERIA
{ELfEE
Debt instruments at FVTOCI
ROAVEGARMEZAKEZE
KIA
— Listed debt securities 1,095 4,884 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an N/A
active market
—rTEEEF F1R REBTSMBLE @A

A slight increase in the weighted average cost of
capital used in isolation would result in a slight
decrease in the fair value measurement of the
investment funds, and vice versa.

A slight increase in the potential return rate used
in isolation would result in a slight increase in the
fair value measurement of the principal protected
deposits, and vice versa.

A slight increase in the discount rate used in
isolation would result in a slight decrease in
the fair value measurement of the film right
investment, and vice versa.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

C.

(ii)

39. €M I E )

Fair value (Continued) c. AFE®
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value (ii) ZFE3RA-FEELH K
measurements
Principal Investment
protected Convertible Investment  inLimited  Film right
deposits notes funds Partnership investment Total
REBR EB¥RE
REER TRREE REES &% RE @it
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FAET FET FET FAET
At 1 April 2021 #2021F4R18 - 199,944 — - = 199,944
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-FEHBAR 21,341 (199,944) 11,511 12,089 - (155,003)
Additions RE = - - 6,145 15,511 21,656
Purchases BE 146,492 - - - - 146,492
Interest received BlHE (1,067) = (919) = = (1,986)
Realised fair value gain recognised in  RIB X AN EH
profit or loss AEEME 1,067 = = = = 1,067
Unrealised fair value loss recognised  RIBHBAHNREH
in profit or loss AVEEER — — 2,680) 8,770 - 6,090
Settlements 0] (141,514) - (967) - - (142,481
Exchange adjustments i 5 A 862 - 394 83 245 1574
At 31 March 2022 R2022%3A318 271N - 7339 21,087 15,756 717353
Additions NE - - - - 789 789
Purchases BE 553,516 - - - - 553,516
Interest received BIF & (551) - (161) - - (712)
Realised fair value gain recognised in  RIBHEANDEH
profit or loss AFEKE 551 - - - - 551
Unrealised fair value loss recognised  FME 2 A MK 2
in profit or loss ATEESR - - (6,601) 97 = (5,630)
Settlements & (578,549) - - - - (578,549)
Exchange adjustments ERAR (2,138) - (577) 172 (1,041) (3,584)
At 31 March 2023 12023F3A31H - - - 28,230 15,504 43,734

(iii)

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and
3 in both years.

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

The fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis. The directors
of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their fair values.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. T EMBATZF15

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31
March 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

20234 K2022F3A31H » AR FE
THB AR ZFEBHOT:

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

Nominal value
of issued share/

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share
capital/registered
capital attributable to

Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital the Group Principal activities
AEBELSET
MBI/ BT/ RA /A
) PN RURGEHE TMREAEE B Al TEER
2023 2022
20235 2022
Directly held by the Company:
ARAERERA:
Ace Winner Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Investment in securities
and others
EBRREFRRA At ERRIBT BrRREMRE
Amazing Universe Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Property investment
KBRTEE/ TRRIET MERE
BN
Arrowfield Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Investment in securities
and others
EREREE/ TBRRET ERRABRE
Charming Flash Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Loan financing
KBRAES/ LTARET EXEE
B
Coconut King Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Investment in securities
and others
KERTES/ TBERET EARAMRE
BE
Flourishing Day Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Loan financing
ERRARRAA KERTES/ TRRET ERRmE
B
Fortunate Master Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
EREaEE/ TBRRIET RERK
B
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

40. ZEMBATZFHE @)

Proportion of nominal

Place of value of issued share

incorporation/
establishment and

Nominal value
of issued share/

capital/registered
capital attributable to

Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital the Group Principal activities
AEBEELSET
MBI BT/ RA /A
) PN RURGEHRYE HMREAEE B Al TEER
2023 2022
20235 2022
Gold Winner Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Investment in securities
and others
FREEBERRA A ERRIBT ERREMRE
Great Sail Global Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Loan financing
BRRFERAA KERTESE/ ETBRRIET ERRE
BE
Quick Access Enterprise Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Loan financing
EREREE/ TBRRET ERmE
Winsor Miles Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
RBRAES/ LTARET REZK
B
Indlirectly held by the Company:
ARAGERE
Asia Million Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 51.60% 100% Property investment
BEREARLA BE LRRIET NERE
Capital Well (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 51.60% 74.76% Property investment
BEMER)ERAA B ERRIBT MERE
Chancemore Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 51.60% 74.76% Property investment
KBREAEE/ ETBRRIET NERE
Bk
City China International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 51.60% 74.76% Loan financing
HABERERAA B ERRIBT ERRE
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. FTEMBATZFE @)

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

Nominal value
of issued share/

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share
capital/registered
capital attributable to

Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital the Group Principal activities
AEBELSET
HEMmA&L BT/ RA /M
) PN RURGEHRYE TMREEE HE LAl TEEH
2023 2022
20235 2022
Clever Wise Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 51.60% 74.76% Property investment
BREREBAT RBERAES/ LTARET MERE
BE
Constance Capital Hong Kong Ordinary 100% 100% Investment in securities
HK$46,000,000 and others
AEEAR B £ 48 146,000,000 BrRREMRE
BT
Daily Leader Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 51.60% 74.76% Property development
RERTES/ TBRRET MEER
BE
Day Glory Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 51.60% 100% Property investment
HEREERAA BB ERRIBT MERE
Easyknit Properties Management Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100% Property management
Limited
KEMEEEBRRA R L@ 1%10,0008 T MEERE
Eminence Bermuda/ Ordinary HK$0.01 51.60% 74.76% Investment holding
Hong Kong
S BRE/BHE ERMk0.018 T REER
Excellent East Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 51.60% 74.76% Property investment
BRERAA B TERIET MERE
Everjet Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100% Property development
KERERBR LA £ £ 38 1210,000% T MEER
Extra Glory Limited Anguilla/Hong Kong  Ordinary US$1 51.60% 74.76% Property development
RERN/BE ERRIET MEER
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. TEMBATZFE @)

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

Nominal value
of issued share/

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share
capital/registered
capital attributable to

Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital the Group Principal activities
AEBEELSET
MBI BT/ RA /A
) PN RURGEHRYE HMREAEE B Al TEER
2023 2022
20235 2022
Fanju Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 51.60% 74.76% Investment in securities
and others
WEREBRRA KRRETEE/ TBRRET ERREMRE
Gainever Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 51.60% 74.76% Investment in securities
and others
XEBRARRA BE TEmoE T ERRABRE
Giant East Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 51.60% 74.76% Property investment
ERERAT BN ERRIBT NERE
Global Chance Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Property development
BREARERERAA RERAES/ LTARET MEER
Glory Link Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 51.60% 74.76% Investment in securities
and others
BERERRLA B TEBRIET BrRREMRE
Goldchamp International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 51.60% 74.76% Property investment
ttEBERARAR B L% 1%10,000% T NERE
Golden Top Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 51.60% 74.76% Property investment
RIEEXERAA R TEkR2ET MERE
Golden Star Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Property development
EHEREERAA B TERIET NEER
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

establishment and

Nominal value
of issued share/

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share
capital/registered
capital attributable to

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

40. T EMEB AT ZFE @)

Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital the Group Principal activities
AEBELSET

HEMmA&L BT/ RA /M

) PN RURGEHRYE TMREEE [ERER ] TEEH
2023 2022
20235 2022
Good Merit Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Property investment
EEERBERAR B TERIET MERE
Goodco Development Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
ERERBRARA RBRAHES/ LTBERIER REER
BN
Grandcorp Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Property investment
BEERAERLA B TERIET MERE
Great East Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Property development
KEREBRDA it TBRIET MEER
Grow Well Profits Limited BVI/Singapore Ordinary US$1 51.60% 74.76% Property investment
and investment in
securities and others
RERTES/ ETBERET NERBEUNREFR
GipIIps Hi g &

Janson Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 51.60% 74.76% Property investment
EBEXERAA B TER2ET MERE
Lion Capital Investment (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 51.60% 74.76% Property investment
RERBBEB)ERAA it TERIET MERE
Main Lucky Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 51.60% 74.76% Property development
AabEER QA BB TERIET NEER
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. TEMBATZFE @)

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

establishment and

Nominal value
of issued share/

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share
capital/registered
capital attributable to

Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital the Group Principal activities
AEBEELSET
MBI BT/ BA/ZRBRE
) PN RURGEHRYE HMREAEE B Al TEER
2023 2022
20235 2022
Mark Profit Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100% Property investment
and investment in
securities and others
ERERERAF B TER2ET NERERBEHFRE
fb 1 &
Nice Able Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 51.60% 74.76% Property development
RERAES/ LTARET MEER
On Channel International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 51.60% 100% Property investment
ZEHBRERAA BB ERRIBT S
Ovation Motion Picture Enterprise  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Entertainment and film
Limited (formerly known as right investment
Eminence Peaks Limited)
EEEYCEARAAGIE BN ERRIBT REREZRERE
Eminence Peaks Limited)
Pacific Land Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Property development
BEREFRRA A ERRIBT MEER
Pacific Way Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Property development
BEREBRRA BB TERIET MEER
Planetic International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100% Loan financing
A TER2ET EXmE
Real Supreme Limited Anguilla/Hong Kong  Ordinary US$1 51.60% 74.76% Property development
REN /BB ERRkIET NEER
Richstar Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Property investment
REERAERAA BE ERRIBT MERE
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

40. FTEMBATZFE @)

Proportion of nominal

Place of value of issued share

incorporation/
establishment and

Nominal value
of issued share/

capital/registered

capital attributable to

Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital the Group Principal activities
AEBELSET
HEMmA&L BT/ RA /M
) PN RURGEHRYE TMREEE HE LAl TEEH
2023 2022
20235 2022
Silver Prosper Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 51.60% 74.76% Property development
REEEERARA N TERIET NEER
Success Active Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Property development
RERTES/ ETBERET MEER
BE
Success Mark Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 51.60% 74.76% Property development
JEw &k BB R AR BB £ Ak10,0007% T MEER
Top Channel Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 51.60% 74.76% Property investment
RECERERAA £ ERRIBT MERE
Top Lead Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 51.60% 74.76% Property development
HEAREER DA BB ERRIBT MEER
Total Expect Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Property development
KBRAES/ LTARET NEER
B
Treasure Arts International Group BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 51.60% 74.76% Property development
Limited
EEAREEARAA RERTES/ TBRRET MEER
BE
Trump Elegant Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100% Property development
HEREERRAA BB T A%10,000%8 T MEER
Wealth Plan Development Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 51.60% 74.76% Property development
REZEERAA B TERIET MEER
Well Honest Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 51.60% 100% Property investment
LAREBERRA BE ERRIBT MERE
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. T EMBATZFHE @)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Proportion of nominal

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ Nominal value capital/registered
establishment and of issued share/ capital attributable to
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital the Group Principal activities
AEBEELSET
MBI BT/ RA /A
) PN RURGEHRYE HMREAEE [ERERA] TEEH
2023 2022

2023F 20224

Wellmake Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$9,998 51.60% 74.76% Property investment
(Non-voting
deferred shares
HK$2%)
BEREABRAR ER L3 129,998 7t (& MERE
CERELR2E
7T*)
Well Smart Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 80% 80% Property development
BKERERAA N L@ IR1005 T NEER
Widetop Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Property investment
REREBEBRAF S TRRIBT MERE
KEEZ(HMN BB Q7 (Easyknit  PRC Registered 51.60%  74.76% Property investment
Enterprises (Huzhou) Co., Ltd.) US$25,544,206
("Enterprises Huzhou")**
XBREZE(BAM) BB LA th 1 % 425,544,206 NERE
(THMEZE]) ** =
@ The non-voting deferred shares of Wellmake Investments * BUKREBRARCEREREL
Limited carry no rights to receive notice of, attend or vote at fREERRERREAG2BE -
any general meeting and have very limited rights to participate HESIRASLRE BEAI R
in a distribution of profits and, on liquidation, to the repayment ERENEDRENKR - N5EE
of the amount paid up on the shares. BREEHRNOHZ S -
**  Enterprises Huzhou is a wholly foreign owned enterprise > AMNEEA -—BERPEKZZI
established in the PRC, to be operated for 50 years up to 14 BRANE KEBMAROF HEZE
December 2054. 20541273148 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. FTEMBATZFE @)

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company, which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results of the year or constituted a substantial
portion of the assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company result in particulars of excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. Majority
of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal
activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

A LRI RZANABMHEBRA
REARREZZER TBXERF
NZFEEIBANASTEEEZEEH
DeMARRBEFZERRR  RH
HMMBRARAZFBEEERBRIT
£ o

RBERR ARAHAEMEARE
Bms TEERZHMBRA - thEH
BRBEIABONELELE - ILFWEB
RAEIZEBEXHBHBRBAOT:

Number of subsidiaries

WMEARHE

Principal activities Principal place of business 2023 2022
FEXE® FTEEXME 20234 20224
Investment holding Hong Kong 48 47
KEEK B
Inactive Hong Kong 28 25
I 5 BB HB
Inactive PRC 2 2
I E B #

78 74

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
31 March 2023 or 31 March 2022, except for the convertible
notes issued by Eminence to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. TEMBATZFE @)

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company that has material non-controlling

TRITHEBEERFZERERDE AR
AIEREMBARFE -

interest:
Place of Proportion of ownership
incorporation and interests and voting rights
principal place of held by non-controlling Profit allocated to non- Accumulated non-controlling
Name of subsidiary business interests controlling interests interests
MBI BER  FERESFEEEEER
MEARER TEEENY REZELH FEREZEAEEN Rtk 2RES
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
20235 2022F 20235 20226 2023%F 20226
HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS$000 HK$ 000
FAT THEL & FHET
Eminence Bermuda/Hong 48.40% 25.24% 17157 30,457 1,542,297 761,033
Kong
Al BRE/ER

BREERGFERERZAKENBA
AMBERREHINNT - AT B
ERMEBEDEEARR ZHEEHEANZ
T

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set
out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

B M EAT

Eminence and its subsidiaries

From the date

Year-ended of acquisition to

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
B£2023F HUKEEHRZE
3A31MHLFEE 202243H31H

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAE T
Income L @N 182,678 247091
Expenses 3 (119,106) (126,420)
Profit for the year/period REE /HRERF 63,572 120,671
Total comprehensive income for the year/  ZN4EE /Hif & @ W 25
period 4B R 29,404 138,007
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. T EM B AT FHE @
SUBS'D'AR'ES (Continued)

Eminence and its subsidiaries (Continued) Sk EHM B AR (&)

At 31 March At 31 March

2023 2022

2023 R20224F

3H31H 3A31H

HK$°000 HK$'000

FETT THET

Non-current assets ERBEE 1,438,126 1,495,937

Current assets REEE 4,186,141 3,383,871

Current liabilities mEAE (867,920) (901,866)

Non-current liabilities EREBEE (1,521,181) (962,755)

Total equity Em e 3,235,166 3,015,187

From the date

Year-ended of acquisition to

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
BZE2023F HUKEAHE
3A3MBLEE 202243H31H

HK$000 HK$'000
FE T FAET
Net cash outflow from operating activities R B & & E 8 2 IR & 7% H
P (115,152) (107.389)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing KREREEB RSN
activities (Rt i) %58 193,396 (26,875)
Net cash inflow from financing activities KEBMEETHZHEE M
F iR 191,787 117361
Net cash inflow (outflow) BeEmACRE) FHE 270,031 (16,903)
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023#3/31H 1t F &

41. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

The following significant events took place subsequent to 31
March 2023:

(a)

As mentioned in note 15, pursuant to an option to
purchase agreement, the Purchaser exercised the
option granted by the Group to purchase an investment
property at a consideration of SGD13,009,000
(equivalent to HK$76,752,000). This constitute a
major disposal transaction of the Company and a
very substantial disposal transaction of Eminence and
was approved in a special general meeting held by
Eminence on 31 May 2023.

On 29 May 2023, Eminence proposed to implement
the capital reorganisation (the “Capital Reorganisation”)
involving (i) share consolidation (the “Share
Consolidation”) that every forty (40) issued and
unissued then existing shares of HK$0.01 each be
consolidated into one consolidated share of par value
HK$0.40 each (the “Consolidated Shares”); (ii) capital
reduction (the “Capital Reduction”) that the par value
of each issued Consolidated Share be reduced from
HK$0.40 to HK$0.01 by eliminating any fraction of a
Consolidated Share in the issued share capital of the
Eminence arising from the Share Consolidation in order
to round down the total number of the Consolidated
Shares to a whole number; and cancelling HK$0.39
of the paid-up capital of the Eminence on each issued
Consolidated Share so that each issued new share will
be treated as one (1) fully paid-up share of par value
of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Eminence
immediately following the Capital Reduction and
the credit arising from the Capital Reduction will be
transferred to the contributed surplus account of the
Company; and (iii) share subdivision that, immediately
following the Share Consolidation and the Capital
Reduction becoming effective, each authorised
but unissued Consolidated Share (including those
authorised unissued Consolidated Shares arising from
the Capital Reduction) will be subdivided into forty (40)
authorised but unissued new shares of par value of
HK$0.01 each. The Capital Reorganisation is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a special general meeting to
be held on 17 July 2023.

2740

M. WEHER 2SR

AN E 2 EEMN2023F3A31H 2 #
A

(a)

WM AT - R IB IR IERE B
E BEATEASER TR
R LA {E13,009,000% Hn 3
7T (% 776,752,000 JT) i B —
HIREME - BN AREME
EHERGEBUNIEFTERN
HE XS I E2023F5831H
BLBTHREFI RS L&
S -

M2023F56H29F  m L EREE
mRAEA(KRAEZEAD B
e t(kha6) e
/Y -+ (40) s & B2 E {B0.017%8 7T 1
ERIBEERTRRETRDE
AOtA—IREECL0E T A B
B& 1D (& BFR% 1) + (i) A% 25 B R
(TR AHEIR]) - PR EETA
BERS 19 2 TE (B H0.4078 ST HI R =
0.0VBIL  FEBINKREARGDE
fFMEEZSLUEBRTRA+TA
R 2 EMERRD - LA E
HERNRNDEBEAEY : Rt
SLEREBETAEHBROER
BAR0IVE T FEREFEITH
B 15 7 22 BE AR AN B R 1R S AR
AB—(MIREEAE001E T
% 17 i A% 25 Bl Rk BT EE AR B HE BR
HEBEBERARANENR
BRER KGR 374 - ERERR D
AR IEAE R EKE S TR
EEERBITINEHRBRND(BHE
BEAERETEENZEEER
BTHAEMRM) SIFMAEN T
(40) B B R EE0.01B LA F
BREBETHFRMD BRAEA
78 4% A% B FE2023F7A178 8B 17
AR R AR & EHEE -
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41. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (Continued)

(c)

On 29 May 2023, Eminence entered into a conditional
placing agreement pursuant to which a total of
50,000,000 placing shares will be placed by the placing
agent to not less than six (6) placees at the placing
price of HK$0.50 per placing share, representing (i)
approximately 94.08% of the issued share capital of
the Eminence as at the effective date of the Capital
Reorganisation; and (ii) approximately 48.47% of the
issued share capital of the Eminence as enlarged by the
allotment and issue of the placing shares after taking
into account the effect of the Capital Reorganisation.
The net proceeds from the placing, after deduction of
the placing commission and other related costs and
expenses of the placing, amounted to HK$20,000,000
will be used for the Group’s general working capital.
The placing of shares has not been completed on the
date of report. The management considered that the
Company will continue to maintain substantial control
over Eminence after the placing and therefore will
account for Eminence as a subsidiary of the Company.
Details are set out in the circular of the Company dated
27 June 2023.

2

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%#3/31H 1- F &

41. EPER 2B E 5)

(c)

M2023F58298 * ®ILEI Y A
BHEEEHE B BERE
BEADRNO)EERE ARE
4 #50,000,0000% B2 & M 17 B
EEBAEBRAESRM50ETT
iR BRAEALAESAHD
O3 1T AN 4994.08% R (ii) &% 5t
ERAEEANTFERREREE R
BORERMMEBEANSLEE
1TIX AN 4948.47% » B E BT 15 K
18 % %820,000,0003% 7T (30 % B
EHESMEESZEWNEMIEEH
MARMAX®E) SAREAEE
M—REEES  RIOEESHE
HMEBHHATK - EEER
B ARRIERERBEERE
oL EEEES  Ads
IWEBARRRINH B RRALR -
HEERARQ R B A2023F6
A278H8 B XK -
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£2023F3/531H 1L F &

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  42. &XAF])z B & AR R &

OF THE COMPANY

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Non-current assets EmBEE
Interests in subsidiaries B BB~ B 2= 34,162 34,162
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE I B B8 A B FR I8 1,985,498 2,191,593
2,019,660 2,225,755
Current assets mBEE
Other receivables H fth & Y 5118 168 174
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY 30,139 56,356
30,307 56,530
Current liabilities mBasE
Other payables H {th pE 5 5118 1,423 1,397
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE < B B 2 R FIB 703,423 960,111
Secured bank borrowings BEEBRITEER - 1,973
704,846 963,481
Net current liabilities mBAaEFEE (674,539) (906,951)
Total assets less current liabilities EERERRBAEGE 1,345,121 1,318,804
Non-current liability IEmBaE
Secured bank borrowings BEEBRITEER - 47,027
1,345,121 1,271,777
Capital and reserves BRI E
Share capital [N 7.399 7399
Reserves (note) R (T at) 1,337,722 1,264,378
1,345,121 1,271,777

%2
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z£20234#3H31H 1t F &

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  42. AARZ MR AT @)
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: B a7 -
Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current and prior KRB ZHERRAFARBAEFE &
years are as follows: PO
Share
Share Capital Contributed option Accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserve profits Total
ROEE BREFE BB BRERE EH il ¥l
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET FHET
At 1 April 2021 R2021F4 418 234663 196,565 220,937 - 648393 1,300,558
Loss and total comprehensive AN FE 18 & &
expense for the year ElEEt — — — — (4,370) (4,370)
Share repurchase and B 17 [l B8 &% BUH
cancellation (32,391) — — — — (32,391)
Recognition of equity-settled # R ELEE
share-based payment PARR 10 A B
(E — — — 581 — 581
(32,391) — s 581 43700 (36,180)
At31 March 2022 #202243A31A 202272 1965565 220,937 581 644,023 1,264,378
Profit and total comprehensive A [ % # & &
income for the year B A B - - - - 73,344 73,344
At 31 March 2023 M2023F3A31H 202,272 196,565 220,937 581 717,367 1,337,722
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MBERBE

RESULTS ¥iE
Year ended 31 March
HZ3A3MBLEE
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
20194 20204 20214 20224 20234
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FExT FET FET FHET F# T
Revenue SE X 830,347 63,633 323,382 350,784 102,674
Profit (loss) before taxation BRE A& (B8 354,985 (298,936) 18,961 1,027243 26,509
Taxation A (39,171) 877 2,968 (17.743) 3,434
Profit (loss) for the year AEE#F (EE) 315,814 (298,059) 21,929 1,009,500 29,943
Profit (loss) for the year JE 165 R F & i F)
attributable to: (E18) -
— owners of the Company — ARREAA 315,959 (297755) 22,308 979,437 13,280
— non-controlling interests — FERER (145) (304) (379) 30,063 16,663
315,814 (298,059) 21,929 1,009,500 29,943
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 March
H3A31R
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
20194 20204 20214F 20224 20234
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET F#E T
Total assets BEERE 5,026,789 4,858,129 4,903,606 8,919,158 9,188,964
Total liabilities aEpesE (1,479,439) (1,622,308) (1,673,161) (3,981,641) (4,196,579)
Net assets EEFE 3,5647350 3,235,821 3,230,445 4,937517 4,992,385
Equity attributable to owners of AR B A FELE
the Company R 3,5647495 3,236,270 3,231,273 4,177706 3,451,803
Non-controlling interests EERER (145) (449) (828) 759,811 1,540,582
Total equity ey 3,5647350 3,235,821 3,230,445 4,937517 4,992,385
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Note:

On 1 April 2019, the Group has applied HKFRS 16 “Leases”. Accordingly,
certain information for the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2019 which was
prepared under HKAS 17 “Leases” may not be comparable to the years

ended 31 March 2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023.
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YIE O

As at 31 March 2023 8202335315

A.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Location Purpose

it 1t R#g

REYZ
Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area
MOE®E
EAEE
(sq. ft.)
(FAR)

Lease term

B F

1. Block A on Seventh Floor and Industrial
Car Parking Space No. L11,
No. 481 Castle Peak Road,
Cheung Sha Wan,
Kowloon
NEERYDEFILEAISIH I%
T AR KL B

2. Block B1 and portion of Block B Industrial
on Seventh Floor,
No. 481 Castle Peak Road,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon
NERDESILBA8HR I¥
+EZBIERBEIN D

3! Shops 1, 2, 3 on Ground Floor Commercial
together with showcase on
Ground Floor, First Floor
and Second Floor of Fa Yuen Plaza,
No. 19 Fa Yuen Street,
Mong Kok, Kowloon
NEERE ATEE 195 EE3
TERESGHT
12 3WER
WTIEE —BR-E

4. Ground Floor, No. 50 Yun Ping Road, Commercial

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
& 76 o o 2 B 7 Bh05% T [

B Shops A and B on Ground Floor Commercial
and Shop C on First Floor, One Victory,
Nos. 1, 1A and 3 Victory Avenue,
Ho Man Tin, Kowloon
JUREAI ST H B A B15E - 1A EES
K3 TARBE &k —1ECHi
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Medium
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Medium
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Summary of Properties

YE O

As at 31 March 2023 #2023 35315

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) A. REYZR@)

Approximate
gross floor/

Location Purpose saleable area Lease term
MAEE
i 3k A ERAEE HAFH
(sqg. ft.)
(FAR)
6. Car Parking Space No. 407, Commercial N/A  Medium

4/F, Capital Centre, No. 151

Gloucester Road, Wanchai

BT & T ITE81515% EES N
B U 40755 B AL

& &

e
I8

7 Ground Floor Commercial 578 Long
No. 148 Johnston Road
Wanchai
Hong Kong
BABFHETBE4SHMT [HES K H

8. Ground Floor Commercial 472  Long
No. 6 Cannon Road
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong
EEREEREHRIMT [EES = 5

9. Sixth Floor Industrial 8,608 Medium
Nos. 650-652
Castle Peak Road, and
No. 18A Wing Hong Street
Kowloon
N8 F 1L E650E6525% I  HA
Mok FEET18ASR61E

10. Second Floor Industrial 2,981 Medium
Nos. 790, 792 and 794
Cheung Sha Wan Road
Kowloon
NERDEB I% A
790 - 792 k79455218

1. Roof Industrial 2,910 Medium
No. 20 Wing Hong Street
Kowloon

NBEXFEHE20RKE Ix 5

6
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A.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

BREWMZE )

Approximate
gross floor/

Location Purpose saleable area Lease term
MAEE,
Bl A ERAEE HAFEH
(sqg. ft.)
(FAR)
12. Fifth Floor Industrial 3,402 Medium
No. 20 Wing Hong Street
Kowloon
FLBE K BRAT 2057618 T + 85
13. Units 1 and 2 on Seventh Floor Residential 2,086 Medium
Block D and Car Parking Space
No. 46 on Lower Ground Floor
Shatin Heights
No. 8003 Tai Po Road
Shatin, N.T.
¥R O 880035k x= B
DHEEEDETEIR2E &
1K JE 30 T 5 465% B {7
14. Third Floor Residential 781  Medium
No. 161 Wong Nai Chung Road
Hong Kong
EBEEREI619 =1 F= &5
15. Easy Tower, No. 609 Industrial/ 74,458 Medium
Tai Nan West Street commercial
Cheung Sha Wan
Kowloon
NEER D& K AEH6095% IT¥ /A% H R
X EES
16. 15 Ardmore Park #04-03 Residential 2,885 Freehold
Singapore 259959
*= %7
17. 15 Ardmore Park #18-02 Residential 2,885 Freehold
Singapore 259959
F= it

2k



INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Location

3 3k

KEBBREBBR AR 2022/23F 1)

Summary of Properties

Purpose

Rz

YE O

As at 31 March 2023 #2023 35315

A. BREYE @

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area
WigmE
BEAEE
(sqg. ft.)
(FAR)

Lease term

HAOFH

18.

19.

20.

An industrial complex located at
No. 108 of Dongliang Road,

Zhili Town, Wuxing District,
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province
of the People’s Republic of China
with a total of twenty building
blocks being built

A EE A R LA BT T A BN T
R[4 B R RAR BK1085%

— i & H20R 2 HEH
EFMIXRRE

Lots Nos. 1278, 1279 and 1280 in D.D.
124 Yuen Long

New Territories

Hong Kong

B A A ITHAD.D.1245%

851278 ~ 1279128055 b B}

Unit A on 8th Floor and Roof of
Tower 1 and Carparking Space
No. 3, Ayton No. 18, Inverness
Road, Kowloon
NELEXELE

18R —ESEAZTERAR
IFREAL

Industrial

I%

Land with attached
structure

MEEEL

Residential

298

1,805,534

27,879

1,798

Medium

& &

Medium

&

Medium

A
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B. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT B. H{EHERRYE
FOR SALE

Approximate Stage of
Location Purpose gross site area  Lease term completion
i 3t R BAREEE HAFH 7 B B B
(sq. ft)
(FrR)
1. Nos. 93, 93A, 95 & 95A Residential 9,800 Long Under development
Waterloo Road, Kowloon
NEBTZEIH - FE =31 ERF
93A%E - 955 RIBA
2. Nos. 470, 472, 474, 476, 478 Residential 4,685 Long Under development
Chatham Road North, Kowloon
NEER R IE L4705 - 4725 - FE = BRET
4745 - 4765 - 478%%
3. Nos. 646, 648, 648A Industrial 9,206 Medium Under development
Castle Peak Road
Kowloon
NEEE 1L E646 - 648K648AT I% o H BRET
4, No. 121 King Lam Street Industrial 5,483  Medium Under development
Cheung Sha Wan
Kowloon
NERDEBME1215 T%¥ E RS
3 Nos. 11, 13 and 15 Commercial 2,857  Long Under development
Matheson Street
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong
BRMELMEEN  13RIBH GES =5 BERT
6. Nos. 1B-1E Residential 4,940 Long Under development
Davis Street
Kennedy Town
Hong Kong
AERRUMEZTHIBEIER FE 23" BEREF
7 Nos. 93 and 95 Catchick Street Residential 2,182 Long Under development
Kennedy Town
Hong Kong
BR BB A F 935 KI5 FE =31 RS

280
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